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Corporate Profile

China Everbright International Limited (the “Company”, and together with its subsidiaries,
collectively “the Group”) is a fast growing business conglomerate focusing on environmental
protection project operation, management and consultancy, toll bridge operation and property
investment. The Group invests and operates Fuzhou Qingzhou Bridge. It has also invested in
properties including Zhongshan Garden and Central Business Building in Shenzhen. In recent
years, the Group actively explores the environmental protection business, where it has made
significant progress in both waste-to-energy incineration as well as waste water treatment in
various cities in the PRC, including Suzhou, Yixing, Jiangyin, Changzhou, Qingdao, Zibo and
Jinan. With its management vision, expertise and flexibility, as well as the strong parental support
from China Everbright Holdings Company Limited, the Group is fully prepared to further expand
its foothold in the environmental protection sector on nationwide basis, with the aim to become

the leading player in the environmental protection industry in the PRC.
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Financial Highlights
M5 HR

RESULTS E 5
Turnover EER 235,859 132,855 78%
Earnings before interest and tax B F) B %% B I8 AT & A 490,580 143,927 241%
Profit attributable to equity IR R FE(E B A

shareholders 409,347 106,808 283%
Return on shareholders’ equity (%) fRERE £ B3R (%) 26.24 9.46 17%
Basic earnings per share (HK cents)  &RREARZEF] (B(L) 14.15 419 238%
FINANCIAL POSITION BRI
Total assets BELARE 3,614,975 2,676,181 35%
Total liabilities BERE 1,556,682 1,404,966 11%
Shareholders’ equity AR SR 1,941,338 1,178,335 65%
Net asset value per share (HK$) HREEFE (B¥%T) 0.631 0.462 37%
Gearing (%) BEBELE%) 43 52 -9%
Current ratio (%) mENEL 2 (%) 160 221 -61%
Interest cover (%) FEBELE(%) 932 449 483%
MARKET INFORMATION miFER
Share price at year end (HK$) FIREE 2 BB (BH%TT) 1.340 0.385 248%
Price earnings ratio at year end (times) F#R8 2 &R (%) 9.47 9.19 3%
Market capitalisation at year end FRE 2 BEATE 4,121,856 982,448 320%
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Financial Highlights
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‘ Corporate Milestones

2006

January

March

April

Successfully secured Jiangyin Waste-to-energy
Project, thereby further consolidating the leading
position of the Group in the waste-to-energy field
in Jiangsu province

Test running for Suzhou Waste-to-energy Project
commenced

Everbright Environmental Protection Engineering
(Shenzhen) Company Limited received the licence
of “Main Contractor for Municipal Public Works”
and obtained three certificates, namely the
ISO9001:2000 Quality Management System
Certificate, the 1SO-14001 Environmental
Management System Certificate and the
OHSMS28001 Occupational Health and Safety
Management System Certificate

Foundation stone of Jiangyin Waste-to-energy
Project was laid

Final result announcement for 2005, with profit
attributable to equity shareholders amounted to
HK$105,330,000, representing an increase of 21%
as compared to 2004

Entered into an agreement for the sale of an
investment property at the Eighth floor of Tower
One of Lippo Centre at a cash consideration of
HK$122,098,000, realising a gain on disposal of
HK$16,083,000

Construction work of “Everbright Road” under
Yixing Waste-to-energy Project completed

Successfully placed 510,000,000 shares of the
Company with independent investors, receiving
net proceeds of approximately HK$321,723,000
(net of related expenses)

Held Annual General Meeting of 2006
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‘ Corporate Milestones

2006

May

June

July

Has been awarded with the “Outstanding
Environmental Protection Corporation Award” in
“The First Capital Outstanding China Enterprise
Award”

Entered into a “Co-operative Agreement” with the
State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of Jinan Municipal
Government and Jinan Municipal Public Utilities
Authority for the acquisition of Jinan Waste Water
Treatment Project

Has been awarded with “The Most Socially
Responsible and Honest Enterprise in 2006” in
“The Most Competitive Persons and Brands
Contest in 2006”

Incorporation of Everbright Environmental Energy
(Jiangyin) Limited. Construction work for Jiangyin
Waste-to-energy Project duly commenced on 28
June

Extension Facilities of Qingdao Maidao Waste
Water Treatment Plant started to receive waste
water

Entered into the “Concession Right Agreement”
and the “Waste Water Treatment Service
Agreement” in respect of the waste water treatment
plant at Zibo High-tech Industrial Development
Zone with Zibo Finance Bureau and Zibo
Environmental Protection Bureau, under which
Hanmiao Waste Water Treatment Plant will be
constructed and operated on BOT (build-operate-
transfer) basis

Operation of Suzhou Waste-to-energy Project duly
commenced on 18 July
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‘ Corporate Milestones

2006

August .

September ¢

In the 3rd annual contest for the “Top 100 Most
Dynamic Enterprises in China”, the Group ranked
15th among the “Top 100 Most Dynamic
Enterprises in 2006”

Entered into an agreement with a subsidiary of
Shenzhen Energy Group Company Limited for the
sale of 15% interest in Shenzhen Mawan Power
Company Limited

Everbright Water (Zibo) Limited and Zibo Municipal
Government entered into a supplementary
agreement in relation to the overall upgrade of the
Southern plant and the Northern plant of Zibo
Waste Water Treatment Project

Construction work of the disposal centre for
industrial solid waste in Suzhou Everbright
Environmental Protection Industrial Zone duly
commenced on 31 August

Operation of Suzhou Methane-to-energy Project
duly commenced on 31 August

Interim result announcement for 2006, with profit
attributable to equity shareholders amounted to
HK$71,620,000, representing an increase of 15%
as compared to the same period of 2005

Upon successfully passing the “Shenzhen Hi-tech
Enterprise Appraisal”, Everbright Environmental
Protection Engineering (Shenzhen) Company
Limited was granted the “Shenzhen Hi-tech
Enterprise Certificate” and the copper plate of
“Shenzhen Hi-tech Enterprise Certificate” by the
Shenzhen Bureau of Science Technology and
Information
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‘ Corporate Milestones

2006

October ¢
o
[ ]
[ ]

November ¢

Dormitory building of Yixing Waste-to-energy
Project was ready for use

Boiler exhaust gas of Suzhou Waste-to-energy
Project passed the emission test carried out by
Shanghai branch of the SGS Group, a globally
renowned independent inspection company in
Switzerland. The result of which showed that the
emission level of the boiler met the Euro | emission
standard and dioxin emission level met the Euro I
emission standard and are better than the PRC
regulatory requirements

Entered into a “Strategic Co-operative Framework
Agreement” with North Carolina China Centre,
under which both parties will enhance their
cooperation in the areas of environmental
technology and staff training

Incorporation of Everbright Water (Ji'nan) Limited.
Entered into the “Concession Right Agreement”
and the “Waste Water Treatment Service
Agreement” in respect of Jinan Waste Water
Treatment Project with Jinan Municipal Public
Utilities Authority

Yixing Waste-to-energy Project successfully
supplied electricity to the electricity transmission
network of the city, and test running for the project
commenced

Upon completion of the hand-over of Jinan Waste
Water Treatment Project, formally took charge of
the operation of the same, including the collection
of waste water treatment charge, and preparation
for the machinery upgrade commenced
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‘ Corporate Milestones

2006

December ¢

Enterprise-university cooperation between
Everbright Environmental Protection Engineering
(Shenzhen) Company Limited and Tsinghua
University has been built. Both parties will jointly
set up a professional data base, establish a joint
laboratory, set up a training base, operate
technology research projects and conduct staff
training

Suzhou Methane-to-energy Project achieved its
objective of operating in full capacity to provide
electricity supply

Entered into a supplementary agreement to the
“Concession Right Agreement for Providing Waste
Treatment Service in Suzhou” with Suzhou
Municipal Public Utilities Authority in relation to the
extension work of Suzhou Waste-to-energy Project
Phase Il

Sale for the 15% interest in Shenzhen Mawan
Power Company Limited completed and
consideration duly received, realising a gain on
disposal of HK$310,000,000 (net of attributable
profit for 2006 of HK$32,838,000)

Incorporation of Everbright Environmental Energy
(Changzhou) Limited. Foundation stone of
Changzhou Waste-to-energy Project was laid

Foundation work of Jiangyin Waste-to-energy
Project completed
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‘ Corporate Milestones

2006

2007

January

February e

March

e Everbright Water (Zibo) Limited obtained three
certificates, namely the GB/T19001 Quality
Management System Certificate, the GB/T24001
Environmental Management System Certificate
and the GB/T28001 Occupational Health and
Safety Management System Certificate

e Everbright Water (Zibo) Limited received the China
Laboratory Quality Assurance Certificate

Invited Guanghua School of Management, Peking
University to provide training programme for the
management of the Group

Everbright Water (Zibo) Limited was accredited by
the Labor Bureau of Zibo city as a “Role Model of
Labor Protection and Integrity” in 2006

Civil engineering work of Zibo High-tech Zone
Hanmiao Project completed according to progress
schedule and installation work to be followed

Everbright Water (Ji'nan) Limited was accredited by
Jinan Municipal Government as one of the “Ten Best
Foreign-invested Enterprises” in Jinan

Jinan No.2 Waste Water Treatment Plant was
accredited by Jinan Water Association as the “Most
Advanced Entity under Jinan Water Association”

Entered into a “Cooperation Agreement” with Tongji
University, under which both parties will promote
different kinds of cooperation and exchanges in
various forms

Jinan No.2 Waste Water Treatment Plant was
accredited as the “Well Performed Jinan Enterprise
in Operation Safety in 2006”

Construction work for Changzhou Waste-to-energy
Project duly commenced
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‘ Chairman’s Statement

Carry forward the spirit of
China Everbright
Strive to establish a renowned

Environmental Protection brand

BB AKEH
FRIRRBE

The PRC government has put environmental protection high
on the agenda under the “Eleventh Five-year Plan” while the
economy has been growing rapidly. The aim is to ensure the
sustainability of the country’s development and to further
emphasize the importance of environmental protection. The
rising awareness of environmental issues and the government
measures to foster environmental protection business have
generated huge opportunities. With vision, the Group made
environmental protection business one of its core businesses
back in 2003, and has been adopting the strategy of focusing
on areas with stronger economy and market potential. As a
result, the Group has established footholds and market
leadership in Shandong and Jiangsu provinces. In the past
three years, the Group’s environmental protection business
explored possibilities and developed footholds in key
markets. The endeavours paid off and started yielding profit
in 2005. In 2006, the Group finished construction or
acquisitions of a number of environmental protection projects,
and launched them into operation. The environmental
protection business began reaping harvest and became a

growth driver of the Group.
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‘ Chairman’s Statement

In the year under review, profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Group was HK$409,347,000, an increase
of 283% as compared with the restated HK$106,808,000 in
2005. The growth was due to the expansion of profit base in
the environmental protection business, and the one-off gains
from the disposal of the Group’s 15% equity stake in Shenzhen
Mawan Power Company Limited and the sale of an investment
property in Lippo Centre. Basic earnings per share for 2006
were HK14.15 cents, a rise of 238% as compared with the

restated basic earnings per share of HK4.19 cents in 2005.

In view of the Group’s good results and healthy financial
position, the Board proposed to pay a final dividend of HKO.6
cent per share and a special dividend of HKO0.4 cent per
share, bringing the total dividends per share for 2006 to HK1.6
cents (including interim dividend for 2006 of HKO.6 cent per
share) (Total dividends per share for 2005: HK1.2 cents).

The Group’s environmental protection business continued to
seize the huge opportunities by making significant progress
in five projects in Jiangsu and Shandong provinces. They
are: Extension Facilities of Qingdao Maidao Waste Water
Treatment Plant, machinery upgrade of the Southern and
Northern Waste Water Treatment Plants in Zibo, the
commercial operation of Suzhou Waste-to-energy Project
Phase | and Suzhou Methane-to-energy Project and the
acquisition of Jinan No. 1 and No. 2 Waste Water Treatment
Plants. These projects started operation and began
contributing revenue in the year under review, expanding the
Group’s income source. The success of the projects enabled
the Group to achieve the capacities of treating more than
one million tonnes of sewage per day and processing more
than one million tonnes of industrial and household solid waste
per year two years ahead of schedule. Meanwhile, the Group
has eight new projects in the pipeline: the waste-to-energy
projects in Yixing, Jiangyin and Changzhou, Suzhou Solid
Waste Disposal Project, the overall upgrade of the Southern
and Northern Waste Water Treatment Plants in Zibo, Hanmiao

Waste Water Treatment Project at Zibo High-tech Industrial
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‘ Chairman’s Statement

Development Zone, the machinery upgrade of Jinan No. 1
and No. 2 Waste Water Treatment Plants and Suzhou Waste-
to-energy Project Phase Il. These projects are expected to
be completed and to start operation in 2007 and 2008. They
will expand the Group’s income source and sustain its fast

development.

With the strong support of the parent company, China
Everbright Holdings Company Limited, and the competent
management team of the Group, the Group has succeeded
in launching and operating a number of environmental
protection projects. This has enabled the Group to develop
“Everbright Environment” into a well-established brand and
build a good corporate image. In 2006, the Group received
honours and recognitions from a number of organizations
and the PRC government for its achievements in
environmental protection business. It will fully take advantage
of its brand to win more projects and develop the market. It

will also grasp every opportunity to sustain its stable growth.

In early 2006, the Group set up a technology research and
development center to enhance its core technology and
competitive strengths in environmental protection sector. The
Group planned to carry out sixteen research projects into
key issues of environmental protection both by itself and
through partnership at the technology research and
development center. With an aim of lifting technological
standards, the Group formed strategic partnerships
separately with leading academic bodies and research
institutes from home and abroad to develop environmental
protection technology and train staff. The partners include
North Carolina China Centre, Tsinghua University and Tongji
University. To fully utilize the resources of research and
development in the PRC, the Group planned to establish
Everbright Environmental Technology Research Centre in
Beijing. The center will enable the Group to collect information
about the country’s environmental protection sector, trends
of development and government policies and regulations
more efficiently and thus benefit the development of its core

technology and enhance its competitive strengths.
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‘ Chairman’s Statement

Environmental protection business benefits society and
satisfies the demand generated by the country’s economic
development. It also enables the Group to sustain its growth.
The Group will increase its commitment to research and
development of environmental protection technology and step
up its efforts to train and develop its technological and
management teams. With an aim of reinforcing its market
leadership in the PRC’s environmental protection sector, the
Group will strive to enhance its competitive strengths through

innovations.

| would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude
to the shareholders, members of the Board, the management
and all staff. Their efforts have contributed to the great
progress of the Group. We will continue to work hard for the

good returns to the shareholders.

Wang Mingquan

Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2007
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’ Chief Executive Officer’s Report

OPERATING RESULTS

2006 was the first year in the PRC’s Eleventh Five-year Plan.
Against the backdrop of rapid economic growth, the Central
Government has stressed the importance of sustainable
development, conservation of resources and energy and
environmental protection. As the country becomes more
aware of the environmental issues, the Central Government
has stepped up policies to support and encourage
development of the environmental protection industry. These
developments have bred huge business opportunities. During
the year under review, the Group actively developed its
environmental protection business by securing a number of
new projects and launching some into operation. As a result,
the Group met the target of treating over one million tonnes
of sewage per day and processing over one million tonnes
of industrial and household solid waste per year two years
ahead of schedule. In 2006, environmental protection
business developed into a main source of income, and
contributed 62% of the Group’s turnover, up from the 42% in
2005.
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During the year under review, a number of environmental
protection projects came on stream and became new growth
drivers, expanding the Group’s income source. The Group
also continued to adjust its assets structure and made one-
off gains by disposing of its 15% equity stake in Shenzhen
Mawan Power Company Limited (“Mawan Power”) and an
investment property in Lippo Centre, boosting the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company. For the
year ended 31 December 2006, the Group’s consolidated
turnover amounted to HK$235,859,000, representing an
increase of 78% from the restated turnover of
HK$132,855,000 in 2005. Profit attributable to equity
shareholders was HK$409,347,000, an increase of 283% as
compared with HK$106,808,000 as restated in 2005. Basic
earnings per share for 2006 were HK14.15 cents, an increase
of HK9.96 cents as compared with HK4.19 cents for the
previous year.

Net assets value per share
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While taking into account the Group’s future development
plans, the Board proposed to pay a final dividend of HKO0.6
cent per share and a special dividend of HKO0.4 cent per
share to the equity shareholders of the Company in
recognition of their support. Together with the interim dividend
of HKO.6 cent per share for 2006, the total dividends for the
year amounted to HK1.6 cents per share (2005: HK1.2 cents

per share).
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION BUSINESS

The Group continued to actively develop its environmental
protection business, which included a dozen projects in
Jiangsu and Shandong provinces with a total investment of
more than HK$3 billion. During the year under review, the
Group secured six new projects, including the Jiangyin
Waste-to-energy Project in Jiangsu province (“Jiangyin
Project”), the Jinan Waste Water Treatment Project in
Shandong province (“Jinan Project”), the Changzhou Waste-
to-energy Project in Jiangsu province (“Changzhou Project”),
the Hanmiao Waste Water Treatment Project at the Zibo High-
tech Industrial Development Zone, Shandong province (“Zibo
High-tech Zone Hanmiao Project”), the overall upgrade of
the Southern and Northern Waste Water Treatment Plants in
Zibo (“Zibo Southern and Northern Plants Project”) and
Suzhou Waste-to-energy Project (“Suzhou Project”) Phase 1.
During the year, Suzhou Project Phase | and Suzhou Methane-
to-energy Project (“Methane Project”) commenced operation.
The Group also took management control of Jinan No.1 and
No. 2 Waste Water Treatment Plants. Revenue from the
environmental protection business grew 163% to
HK$145,611,000 in 2006, and accounted for 62% of the
Group’s turnover (2005: 42% of the Group’s turnover).
Operating profit before deduction of interest and tax from
the business segment increased by 486% to HK$71,767,000
in 2006. Recording strong and healthy development and
promising tremendous growth potential, the environmental
protection business will support strong revenue growth of
the Group.
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Waste-to-energy Projects

Suzhou Project Phase |

The Group'’s first wholly owned environmental protection
project, Suzhou Project Phase |, completed a full load trial
run and started supplying electricity to the power grid on 20
June 2006. It began commercial operation on 18 July 2006.
In October 2006, the Shanghai branch of the globally
renowned independent inspection company, SGS Group from
Switzerland, conducted an emission test on the boiler exhaust
gas and found the results meeting the PRC’s national emission
control standards and the emission level of boiler and dioxin
met the Euro | Standard and the Euro Il Standard respectively.
The project not only will bring in stable income for the Group
in the long run, but will also help enhance the Group’s brand
name in the field of waste-to-energy operation. During the
year, the project obtained Jiangsu Province Price
Department’s approval to raise its up-loading tariff from
RMBO0.50 per kilowatt-hour to RMBO0.575 per kilowatt-hour,
benefiting from the country’s policy that favoured the
development of environmental protection business. As a new
growth driver, the project contributed a net profit of
HK$12,592,000 to the Group in 2006. It will make a full-year
profit contribution in 2007.

Yixing Project

During the year under review, construction of the Yixing
Waste-to-energy Project (“Yixing Project”) in Jiangsu province
progressed satisfactorily, with the site ready for boiler
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installation in March 2006. The construction of the “Everbright
Road” was completed in April 2006. At the end of June 2006,
the project’s boiler passed the water pressure test and
inspection of the Quality Supervision Centre of Jiangsu
province. The accompanying dormitory was ready for use in
October. The project succeeded in its trial run on power
transmission in November. The project is expected to be
completed in the second quarter of 2007, and will be a new

income source of the Group, generating profit in 2007.

Jiangyin Project

In January 2006, the Group won the tender for the Jiangyin
Project, which required a total investment of approximately
RMB388,744,000. Construction will take place in two phases,
with phase | having a daily processing capacity of 800 tonnes
of waste. The Group is entitled to an exclusive right to operate
the project for 30 years on BOT basis. Foundation stone of
the project was laid in March 2006, and construction has
been progressing smoothly since it started on 28 June 2006.
Major imported facilities have arrived in Jiangyin city and are
ready for installation in the second quarter of 2007. The project
is expected to commence commercial operation in the

second quarter of 2008.

Changzhou Project
On 5 June 2006, the Group signed a framework agreement
with Changzhou Municipal Administration Bureau in Jiangsu

province to obtain the right to construct a waste-to-energy

Foundation laying ceremony for
waste-to-energy project in Jiangyin
IR EFE TR BR =

China Everbright International Limited

NEFEM AT AR TR ZTTRFRAK:
TR B HSRIEEB TIT A BRE R K ERER 1e
RN+ AMIEE EEERAER +—A)
BXE—RKI A EB AR T FE -
FEET %A R B AAREE X —HE S
RH R_ZELFERAEBIRHANER -

TEIEE

ZETRF A AEEREYSIIRIER 818
B AR®E388,744,0007T D M EAFER B —
& HBRIR AR 800ME - It TE B BRA [BOT #E=
B R E BRI0F - ZBE R T F=
AMBEE WK RAZ+NA\RBIERXETI BAIER
METERIEE FRHEORBOEEERIRT-
BT LFEFEHEARBLESR IR
—EENEFEE —%Fﬁftiﬁ}ﬁ)\ﬁ%@ﬁo

=M EH

—ETERFRARR REBET &S B MK
MEERZEBNITEERIER T KA BOTJ
FAEEFMNEE BEEAREARY

- F-—'F.'-'f-' -
Signing ceremony for waste-to-energy project in
Changzhou
EIMII R I B E IR H 7

#gEs

HEXKEBRERA R



‘ Chief Executive Officer’s Report

project in Changzhou on BOT basis as well as an exclusive
right to operate the project for 25.5 years. Investment in the
project will amount to RMB412,560,000. The plant will have
capacity to process 800 tonnes of waste per day. Preliminary
work, project registration and injection of capital were
completed in September 2006 and foundation stone was laid
on 15 December 2006. Tendering of major equipment has
been finished and civil engineering work has begun in the
first quarter of 2007. The project is the Group’s fourth waste-
to-energy project in Jiangsu province and is expected to
begin operation in 2008. The Group will be able to centralize
the management of this project and the other three, namely
Suzhou Project Phase |, Yixing Project and Jiangyin Project,
which are close to each other. As a result, the Group will be
able to save cost. Investment in the project has enhanced
the Group’s advantageous position within Jiangsu province
and reinforced its market leadership in the waste-to-energy

sector of the country.

Suzhou Project Phase 11

The Group signed an agreement with Suzhou Municipal
Urban Utility Bureau in December 2006 to construct phase |l
of the Suzhou Waste-to-energy Project with capacity to
process 500 tonnes of waste per day at an investment of
approximately RMB220,000,000. Suzhou Project Phase Il will
adopt the same operation model and construction standards
as those of phase |. The new phase will be equipped with
imported advanced equipment including incinerators and
systems for emission control, automation and online
monitoring. The project’s dioxin emission will meet the Euro
standard. Construction of the project will begin in the second
half of 2007, and is expected to be finished by the end of
2008. Together with Suzhou Project Phase |, which has already
been in operation, the expanded power plants will be able to
process more than 1,500 tonnes of waste per day and
generate about 150 million kilo-watt hours of electricity per
year for the power grid. When phase Il commences operation,
the Suzhou Project will be one of the largest waste-to-energy

projects in the country.
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Integrated environmental protection project — Suzhou
Everbright Environmental Protection Industrial Zone

In July 2005, the Group signed a cooperative framework
agreement with the government of Mudu town, Wuzhong district,
Suzhou city, Jiangsu province to construct the Suzhou Everbright
Environmental Protection Industrial Zone (“the Zone”). The
project will be the country’s first integrated zone for environmental
protection to showcase centralized disposal of industrial and
household solid waste. The Zone is high on the agenda of the
State Environmental Protection Administration and backed by
the Suzhou Municipal Government. The Zone is dubbed a “vein”
in its Chinese name as it functions as such for the PRC’s
economic development in the way the vein does for the human
body — to gather used materials or waste, process them in a
harmless manner for reuse. The “vein”-type industry is defined
as an industry that maximizes utilization of resources, minimizes
environmental pollution, promotes recycling as a viable
economic pursuit and encourages conservation in land use. Of
no less than 2.5 sq. km., the Zone will be completed in phases
within three to five years at a total investment of around HK$1.5
billion. It contains waste-to-energy plants (Suzhou Project Phase
I and 1), a methane-to-energy plant (Methane Project) and a
centre for industrial solid waste disposal (“Solid Waste Disposal
Project”). As the country’s first integrated zone for environmental
protection to showcase centralized disposal of industrial and
household solid waste, the Zone will also be developed into a

scenic base for environmental education in Suzhou.

B IRIRIE B —# ML ARIRFIRE R

AEER _TTRFLARTIHEHMNTRTE
REBRARBUTRZ RN TR ARIRREFIKE
XERFERME -ZBBR/REEFE—E Reilt
MEFRE TR LABRBREMNGERRESR
—EMNTARREFMEXEER ([EXE]) &
HARIERRRERBNER BB 2IEIMN I
AN S Fre ERE R T [FHIR] - BER EER
RREFEANFIKEEPELBEEROFIRD
BEERCBRESKERNMARAL REITR
RME BERERKE SHOLHER SHER
WY EECRIEMEY R B AENAER
AR ER -EXE R T IR25F TR
BRI [BERE 2 EE] ERITE FTE
FABESF R T #IR B 498 #1,500,000,000
TTeERE BRI EHER (AN [E#MIER —
HE—H)) AREEmBIDERER]) ITXE
By 22 HEAA ([EERE ) F EXE
MEEEESEN2EE —BARTRETE 4
AEREYNGERRERE XS ERKAR
BEEENIESERRMSFMNTRRBE RBE
o

Ceremony for commercial operation of Suzhou
Everbright Environmental Protection Industrial Zone
BRI T AR IR (R AP AR EE 5 (B 7B R B T T A

China Everbright International Limited B} XEEEERA A



‘ Chief Executive Officer’s Report

After Suzhou Project Phase | started commercial operation
on 18 July 2006, the Methane Project began to supply
electricity to the power grid on 20 August 2006 and
contributed a net profit of HK$ 1,322,000 to the Group in 2006.
Currently, the two 1,250 kilowatt generators of the Methane
Project are operating at full load.

Furthermore, the Group has signed a concession right
agreement with Suzhou Environmental Protection
Administration to build and operate a solid waste landfill site
in Suzhou city. The Solid Waste Disposal Project will serve
the entire Suzhou city (including all districts in its jurisdiction),
providing support to the city’s industrial development.
Construction of the project has been progressing smoothly
since it began on 31 August 2006 and the project is expected
to be completed and start operation in mid-2007.

With the gradual roll-out of different projects, the Zone has
begun to take shape. Currently, the Group and the Suzhou
Municipal Government are in discussion over the plan of the
Zone and other projects there, including a leachate treatment
plant and sludge treatment center. The Group’s ultimate aim
is to build the Zone into the PRC’s first integrated zone for
environmental protection to showcase centralized processing
of industrial and household solid waste which will enhance
the “Everbright Environment” brand.

Waste Water Treatment Projects

Qingdao Project

The Group’s first environmental protection project in
Shandong province, the Qingdao Waste Water Treatment
Project (“Qingdao Project”), processed 52,152,000 tonnes
of sewage in 2006 and generated HK$16,272,000 in net profit
attributable to the Group. Construction of the Extension
Facilities of the Maidao Waste Water Treatment Plant started
in late June 2005. It commenced to receive waste water in
June 2006, ahead of schedule, to make way for the Qingdao
International Regatta that took place in August 2006. Currently
undergoing trial runs, the project is expected to gradually
increase its daily sewage treatment capacity from around
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150,000 tonnes to 220,000 tonnes after it starts commercial
operation in the second half of 2007. In 2006, the project
company embarked on thirty three improvement works for
the Haibohe Waste Water Treatment Plant. Efforts to upgrade
the facilities of the plant have significantly enhanced the
project’s treatment capability.
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Qingdao Maidao Waste Water Treatment
Plant (Extension Facilities)
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Zibo Southern and Northern Plants Project

The waste water treatment project in Zibo city (including the
Southern Plant and the Northern Plant) has been in stable
performance since it started operation in December 2005. In
2006, it processed 77,374,000 tonnes of sewage and
contributed a net profit of HK$14,490,000 to the Group.
Machinery upgrade of the two plants was completed on 28
April 2006. The completion of this work on schedule not only
ensured the smooth operation of the project, but also earned

Qingdao Maidao Waste Water Treatment
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for the Group the trust of the municipal government and
citizens of Zibo. On 28 August 2006, the Group signed an
agreement with the Zibo Municipal Government to invest
RMB130,221,000 in an overall upgrade of the two plants, with
the aim of improving the quality of the processed sewage to
Grade 1A (reusable water grade). The upgraded Southern
and Northern plants will command a sewage treatment fee
of RMBO0.98 per tonne, up from the previous RMBO0.75 per

tonne, bringing higher return to the Group.

Zibo High-tech Zone Hanmiao Project

On 13 July 2006, the Group signed a “Concession Right
Agreement for constructing a new waste water treatment plant
in the Zibo High-tech Industrial Development Zone” and a
“Waste Water Treatment Service Agreement” with the Zibo
Municipal Government. The new project will have a treatment
capacity of 300,000 tonnes of sewage per day. Phase | of
the project, which will have a daily treatment capacity of
100,000 tonnes, calls for an investment of RMB 150,000,000,
and will be ready for commercial operation by the end of
June 2007. It is the Group’s first waste water treatment project
on BOT basis, and the PRC’s first waste water treatment
project in a city to adopt the Grade 1A standard, which is a
high standard for sewage treatment. As such, the project is
a milestone in the Group’s development in the field of sewage
treatment sector. Since securing the project, the Group has
obtained concession rights to manage all sewage treatment
projects in Zibo and the city’s high-tech zone. This project
will not only enhance the Group’s development in Shandong,
but also allow the Group to realize resources sharing, boosting
overall management and operational efficiency of the different
projects in Zibo.

In December 2006, the Zibo project company received three
accreditations certifying that its quality, environmental
protection, occupational health and safety management
systems have met international standards (GB/T19001,
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GB/T24001 and GB/T28001 respectively). It also obtained
the China Laboratory Quality Assurance Certificate. In
January 2007, it was named a “Role Model of Labor Protection
and Integrity” in 2006 by the Labor Bureau of Zibo city in
recognition for its continuous efforts to safeguard the well-
being of its staff while enhancing management standards.
This achievement has laid a solid foundation for the Group to
build the Zibo project into a “benchmark enterprise in

Shandong and an environmental education base in Zibo”.
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Jinan Project

On 23 June 2006, the Group signed a “Co-operative
Agreement” with the Jinan Municipal Government to acquire
all assets of the Jinan No. 1 and No. 2 Waste Water Treatment
Plants by way of TOT (transfer-operate-transfer) at
RMB400,000,000. The two plants have a combined daily
sewage treatment capacity of 420,000 tonnes, and the Group
is entitled to an exclusive right to operate the project for 30
years. The formal concession right agreement was signed
on 31 October 2006 and operation began after the handover
on 18 November 2006. The project serves as a solid
foundation for the Group’s pursuit of future opportunities in
Jinan’s market for environmental protection and municipal

public works. It is an integral part in the Group’s strategic
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plan for its development in Shandong. The Jinan project
company was named one of Jinan’s “Ten Best Foreign-
invested Enterprises” by the Jinan Municipal Government in
recognition of its efforts to uphold the principles of “integrity,
pragmatism, high efficiency and innovation” in the acquisition
of the two waste water treatment plants. Presently, the Group
has made investment to upgrade the technology and
equipment of the two plants with an aim of enabling them to
reach full-load operation with stable performance and comply
with effluent standards. When the upgrade work is completed
in the first half of 2007, the plants will reach their designed
capacity for sewage treatment and will become a new income

source of the Group.
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Jinan No. 1 Waste Water Treatment Plant
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Environmental Protection Engineering

Everbright Environmental Protection Engineering (Shenzhen)
Company Limited (“Everbright Environmental Engineering”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, has a professional,
efficient and dedicated technical management team, which
is fully involved in all of the Group’s environmental protection
projects. During the year under review, it recorded a net profit
of HK$48,263,000, representing an increase of 99% over
HK$24,206,000 in 2005. Everbright Environmental
Engineering is the main contractor of the Group’s projects
and a member of the Group, and as such, its management
and consultancy fee income is not credited to the Group’s
consolidated income statement but reflected as reduction in
construction costs of the different projects.

Jinan No. 2 Waste Water Treatment Plant
R TKEF =

RRIE

RATE 2 2EMB AR RNRER TR ORI
BRAR (ERRRIR]) ERELT —X
BEE SR HMENIERMERERK Y2E2
HEEERRIEE N IREEZR -REEFEAN KK
IRIR TI28R15 F BB % 48,263,00070 L F
2 7816 24,206,0007T1E K99% o HEHRIRIRITIE
RAEBRERZRZIRRIBE 2 856 WEBER
REBEERBRRAAREBRRIKA R0
PORRIE B ZaRA AN - i R R AR S 1B R
Ao

Annual Report 2006 —ZZXFER

27



28

‘ Chief Executive Officer’s Report

In January 2006, Everbright Environmental Engineering
received the “Main Contractor for Municipal Public Works
Certificate” and three quality accreditations, namely the
ISO9001:2000 Quality Management System Certificate, the
ISO-14001 Environmental Management System Certificate
and the OHSMS28001 Occupational Health and Safety
Management System Certificate. It also obtained the
“Shenzhen High-tech Enterprise Certificate” in October. All
these achievements made in just three years enabled it to
enter the field of engineering and construction management
of public works sector, they are also proof of the Group’s
ability to develop its environmental protection operations. This

will greatly expand the scope of business of the Group.
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The roll-out of the Suzhou Project Phase |, Methane Project,
Qingdao Project, Zibo Project and Jinan Project marked the
Group’s successful transformation into a professional
environmental protection enterprise. After three years’ hard
work, the Group has built footholds in the markets of Jiangsu
and Shandong provinces. To ensure it is able to meet the
challenges in development, the Group began research and

development on environmental protection technologies.
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ENHANCED CAPABILITIES FOR RESEARCH
AND DEVELOPMENT ON ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

Strategic Partnerships

Apart from securing and operating different environmental
protection projects, the Group has been trying to carry out
research and development on related technologies and in
forging complementary partnerships with internationally
famous enterprises. In addition to the strategic alliance with
Keppel Seghers, in the year under review, the Group carried
out exchanges and cooperated in research projects with
institutes such as the North Carolina China Centre of USA,
Tsinghua University and Tongji University of Shanghai with
an aim of boosting its research and development capabilities,

which is its core competitive edge.

IR IR AR BT RE

B SERHF

HREIMGLERREARIN AEE-—EREER
B Ao bt e - 30 B0 Aok B B R RN 8 RIS 58 08
e ETTEZ BB (P BT TR
EITERASER AEETREBEFERNLRE
EBAERMBEP L IFEARR EERBEASZE
1F BERERMR LA FITEIRE - IR AR
PRI T T BV & VR LS Hs - ATR AN SR B B AT At
BhE ReEAKENREROEF -

Signing ceremony of cooperation with
North Carolina China Centre
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Research and Development Facility

In early 2006, Everbright Environmental Engineering set up
a technology research and development center specializing
in research on technology of waste-to-energy operation and
sewage treatment and sludge treatment. The aim of these
endeavors is to boost the Group’s core technology and thus
its competitive strengths. The Group has also required each
project company to set up its own technological innovation
team. It has also introduced policies and provisions such as

Signing ceremony of cooperation with
Tsinghua University
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an environmental expert data base, a research and
development project development fund and research and
development project management guidelines to standardize
research and development efforts. The Group plans to set
up an Everbright Environmental Protection Technology
Research Institute in Beijing to provide funding to research
projects and serve as a base for experiments. It will provide
laboratories for experiments on technologies of solid waste
treatment, sewage treatment and integrated environmental

protection technology.

Patent

During the year under review, China Everbright’s research
and development center planned to carry out sixteen research
projects into key issues of environmental protection, including
domestic production of incinerators, leachate treatment and
recycling of processed sewage. Until the first quarter of 2007,
the center completed six of the projects. Four projects are in
progress and six more will begin soon. The Group has also
applied for eight patents for technologies on waste-to-energy

operation and sewage treatment.

INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT

Toll Bridge

During the year under review, traffic on the Fuzhou Qingzhou
Bridge (“Qingzhou Bridge”) continued to grow and generated
steady cash flow. For the year ended 31 December 2006,
the average daily traffic on the bridge increased to 26,267
standard vehicles, 18% more than in 2005. Operating profit
before tax for 2006 was HK$39,583,000, an increase of 37%
over that in 2005. Taking into account the deferred tax and
the profit attributable to minority shareholders, the project
generated HK$28,531,000 in net profit attributable to the
Group in 2006.

As scheduled in the city development plan of Fuzhou
Municipal Government, the highway to the Fuzhou airport
was opened in late 2006 and boosted economy in
neighbouring areas. Meanwhile, the municipal government
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has also invested considerably to have the east-to-west road
system upgraded. These development and initiatives to
improve roads and government policies to clamp down on
overloading of vehicles and charging for road use by weight
of load will boost traffic on Qingzhou Bridge and the toll

EEUREAREH [BHER| H—THELR
- PEIBUNERAKER [FIEWE | BR K
SERPESMABNEREME G SEERIIE
R RAEETRBENRER.

revenue.
Fuzhou Qingzhou Bridge
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Energy Supply RERALE

Mawan Power is 15% held by the Group since 1998 and has
been one of the major profit sources of the Group. However,
after operating for 17 years, the plant's power generators are
worn out and more frequent repairing is expected for them in
the future. With such factors as mounting maintenance cost,
easing of the power shortage in the PRC in recent years,
implementation of the West-to-East power transmission
project, price competition in supplying electricity to power
grids and high coal and oil prices, Mawan Power is expected
to face growing pressure. And, as the proportion of profit
contribution from environmental protection projects is
increasing, that of Mawan Power is expected to gradually
diminish. In view of these developments, the Group decided
to exit the investment in Mawan Power in the year under review
and focus on developing environmental protection business.
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On 28 August 2006, the Group signed an agreement with a
subsidiary of Shenzhen Energy Group Company Limited to
dispose of its 15% interest in Mawan Power at a consideration
of approximately HK$657,708,000. The disposal constituted
a major transaction for the Company as defined in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”). The transaction
was completed on 14 December 2006. During the year under
review, the project generated a net profit of HK$342,838,000
for the Group, including an attributable net profit of
HK$32,838,000 and a gain of HK$310,000,000 from the
disposal. In 2006, the Group received a total of
HK$746,340,000 from Mawan Power, including the cash
dividend paid for 2005 and prior years in the amount of
HK$88,632,000 and the aforesaid consideration of the
disposal. The Group had used approximately
HK$440,480,000 of the net proceeds from the transaction to
repay liabilities and the remaining HK$305,860,000 as
working capital for investments in environmental protection

and municipal public works businesses.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

The PRC
In the PRC, the Group owns a four-storey commercial complex
with a shopping arcade in Shenzhen Zhongshan Garden for

lease. The property has been a source of steady rental income
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and cash flow for the Group. Its major tenants include
Walmart, Park’n Shop and McDonald’s, and its occupancy
rate during 2006 was 99%. During the year under review, the
Group recorded a net profit of HK$8,351,000 from this
property, representing a growth of 25% from HK$6,675,000
in 2005.

In 2006, the Group’s 95%-held Shenzhen Zhongshan Property
Management Limited recorded an attributable net profit of
HK$388,000.

The Group’s 14%-held Shanghai Trade Square and
International Apartments continued to generate steady
income and yielded a dividend income of HK$1,677,000 in
2006.

In addition, the Group recorded valuation gains of
HK$5,831,000 because of the rise in value of its investment

properties in the PRC.

Hong Kong

Hong Kong’s economy continued to boom in 2006, boosting
demand for Grade A offices and causing a big rise in both
rent and property prices. The Group made a rental income
totaling HK$2,171,000 during the year. On 13 April 2006, the
Group signed an agreement to sell the investment property
on the 8th floor of Tower I, Lippo Centre, Hong Kong at a
consideration of HK$122,098,000. The transaction was
completed on 18 May 2006 and brought a gain of
HK$16,083,000 from the disposal. Approximately
HK$54,154,000 of the proceeds from the disposal had been
used to settle relevant bank borrowings and the transaction
cost, and the remaining HK$67,944,000 was used as general
working capital for the Group’s environmental protection

business.
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HONOURS AND RECOGNITIONS

Guided by the operation principles of “integrity, pragmatism,
high efficiency and innovation”, the Group’s achievements in

environmental protection business in just three years are well
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recognized. The awards won by the Group during 2006 are  :

listed below:
Date Organizer
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—= 7/\ﬁzﬁﬂ <i§$%&é‘fg>
28 June 2006 Chinese Association of Productivity
—EEXNENA Science, Association of China
iy AN Economic Press and Forum for
International Competitiveness of
Chinese Enterprises
mEAENSS PELERTIGES
R (R B R
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—“ETRFNARA Science
FEERNEG

4

The 1t Capital Outstanding
China Enterprise Award
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Most Socially Responsible and
Honest Enterprise in 2006
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“Outstanding Environmental Protection Corporation Award”
of “The First Capital Outstanding China Enterprise Award”
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“The Most Socially Responsible and Honest Enterprise
in 2006"
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Ranked 15th among the “Top 100 Most Dynamic
Enterprises in China in 2006”
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Ranked 15" among the Top 100 Most
Dynamic Enterprises in China in 2006
2006 F B A L ) B H % —
ERAaRE

China Everbright International Limited B} XEEEERA A



‘ Chief Executive Officer’s Report

PROSPECTS

“Protecting the natural environment and establishing a society
that conserves energy and is friendly to the environment” is
the theme of the PRC’s Eleventh Five-year Plan (2006 to 2010).
To realize the goals, the Central Government has encouraged
and pledged support to the development of environmental
protection business. In 2007, the State Environmental
Protection Administration will step up its efforts in
environmental protection, including perfecting the
mechanism to monitor pollutant emission, preventing illegal
discharges in drinking water protection zones and industrial
parks, developing an economic model for recycling,
encouraging ecology-friendly design and improvement of
industrial parks and reducing discharge of waste water from
the chemical, brewing and printing and dyeing industries.

The Central Government has planned to invest RMB1.4 trillion
to improve the quality of water and air as well as the solid
waste treatment in the next five years. A series of government
measures are: setting the target of having at least 60% of the
country’s sewage treated by 2010; gradually opening up the
water supply market to foreign enterprises and privately
owned domestic enterprises; and providing support to
energy-saving power generation projects by allowing waste-
to-energy plants to charge a higher tariff for their supply to
power grids.

Riding on the strong support of its parent company, China
Everbright Holding Company Limited (“Everbright Group”)
and the well-established “Everbright Environment” brand, the
Group will seek to seize business opportunity in the booming
environmental protection industry. It will actively pursue
different projects that convert waste to energy and recycle
processed sewage.

In accordance with the PRC’s industrial development policies
and scientific development approach, and its overall goal of
establishing an energy-saving and environment-friendly
society, the Group will grow its environmental protection
business following the direction of “development,

consolidation and enhancement”. It will continue to maintain
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stable growth, actively explore new markets and secure new
projects. With the support of Everbright Group and the brand
advantage underscored by integrity, pragmatism, high
efficiency and innovation, the Group will strive to secure and
develop new projects in more affluent regions in the country,
explore new markets to drive growth. It will also upgrade
existing projects and lift the management and operational
standards to consolidate business foundation. On the
technological research and development front, the Group will
invest more resources in environmental protection research
and development and strengthening training of the key
technical staff. It will also seek to form strategic partnerships
with leading academies and research institutes from home
and abroad to enhance its core competitive strength and
reinforce its leadership in the environmental protection
industry. Meanwhile, the Group will continue to consolidate
its infrastructure and property investment businesses to
ensure steady income. The Company will continue to
contribute to the well-being of society and maximize returns

to shareholders.
FINANCIAL RESULTS

Consolidated turnover of the Group amounted to
HK$235,859,000 in 2006, representing an increase of 78%
as compared with the restated turnover of HK$132,855,000
in 2005. The increase was mainly attributable to the revenue
contribution from the Zibo Project that commenced operation
in December 2005. The other environmental protection
projects that commenced operation during the year have also
started generating revenue. The increased toll revenue of
the Qingzhou Bridge and the one-off gains from the disposal
of the 15% interest in Mawan Power and the sale of the
investment property in Lippo Centre also boosted profit
growth for the year. Profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company for the year amounted to HK$409,347,000,
representing an increase of 283% as compared with the
restated profit of HK$106,808,000 in 2005. In 2006, basic
earnings per share amounted to HK14.15 cents, an increase
of 238% as compared with HK4.19 cents in 2005.
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FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2006, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$3,614,975,000. Net assets attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company amounted to
HK$1,941,338,000 and the net assets per share attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company were HK$0.631,
representing an increase of 37% as compared with HK$0.462
as at the end of last year. As at 31 December 2006, the
gearing ratio (calculated by dividing total liabilities by total
assets) was 43%, representing a decrease of 9 percentage

points as compared with 52% as at the end of last year.

The Group generally finances its operations with internally
generated cash flow, loan facilities from banks and from its
ultimate holding company. As at 31 December 2006, the
Group had an aggregate cash balance of approximately
HK$866,986,000, representing an increase of
HK$368,316,000 as compared with HK$498,670,000 as at
the end of last year. At present, the Group has ample cash
on hand to fulfill its contracted capital commitments of
approximately HK$310,623,000. As at 31 December 2006,
the Group had outstanding borrowings of approximately
HK$989,860,000,
HK$158,011,000 as compared with HK$1,147,871,000 as at
the end of last year. The borrowings comprised secured bank
loans of HK$891,032,000 and loans from ultimate holding
company of HK$98,828,000.

representing a decrease of

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group’s foreign exchange risk is minimal as the majority
of the Group’s assets, borrowings and major transactions are
denominated in Renminbi, which has a relatively stable
exchange rate against the Hong Kong Dollar. Thus, the risk

of being impacted by exchange rate fluctuations is relatively
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low for the Group. The Group mainly settles the expenses of
its business in the PRC with Hong Kong dollar-remittance
and income in Renminbi. It has not used any financial
instruments to hedge against its bank borrowings in Renminbi,
which are used mainly to meet the capital requirements of
the Group’s business in the PRC.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2006, the Group had pledged revenues
from the operations of toll bridge, waste water treatment plants
and waste-to-energy power plant, finance lease receivables,
bank deposits, mortgages on fixed assets and shares of a
subsidiary to secure bank loans. The aggregate net book
value of the pledged assets was approximately
HK$919,947,000.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2006, the Group’s contracted capital
commitments amounted to HK$310,623,000.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2006, the Group had no contingent
liabilities.

SHARES PLACEMENT

On 25 April 2006, Guildford Limited (“Guildford”), a
shareholder of the Company entered into a placing agreement
with Deutsche Bank AG to place 510,000,000 shares of the
Company at HK$0.66 per share. According to the
subscription agreement made on the same day, Guildford
subscribed for 510,000,000 new ordinary shares of the
Company at HK$0.66 per share. The net proceeds of the
share placement were approximately HK$321,723,000 (after
deducting relevant expenses). The Group intended to spend
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approximately HK$200,000,000 of the net proceeds as
general working capital for existing environmental protection
projects and construction of new projects, and spend the
balance of HK$121,723,000 on new environmental protection
projects. As at 31 December 2006, HK$214,864,000 of the
net proceeds had been used in the development of the
Group’s environmental protection business, while the balance
of HK$106,859,000 was held as bank deposits.

INTERNAL MANAGEMENT

The Group adheres diligently to a management principle that
stresses “people-oriented, honesty, pragmatism, creativity
and standardized management” and is committed to building
a solid risk management culture. During the reporting year, it
adopted a series of measures to strengthen the Group’s risk
response strategy, raise risk awareness and set up a risk
prevention mechanism. It adjusted the membership of the
Risk Management Advisory Committee and the Engineering
Technical Management Committee to reinforce their roles and
responsibilities as well as authority. In addition, the Group
set up a Budget Approval Management Committee to improve
budget management, control expenses of project companies
and project construction costs. This endeavor will help to
assure the Group’s long-term, stable and sustainable
development. With its two major strategic markets Jiangsu
and Shandong taking shape, the Group will push on at full
steam with promoting interaction and connection among the
different projects developing in the regions. Its aim is to realize
overall operational integration, which will give it maximum
regional competitive advantage and allow it to maximize

returns from human and material resources application.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Code on Corporate Governance set out in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules (“the Code”) was duly adopted by the
Board as the code on corporate governance practices of the
Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2006, the Company had
complied with the code provisions and some of the
recommended best practices as set out in the Code except
that Mr. Wang Mingqguan, the Chairman of the Company, was
unable to attend the 2006 Annual General Meeting of the
Company. However, appropriate arrangements have been
made accordingly before the holding of the Annual General
Meeting.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Group has adopted the model code (“the Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. Having
made specific enquiry of the directors, all directors have
complied with the required standard of dealings as set out in
the Model Code during the twelve months ended 31
December 2006.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. Wang Mingquan
(Chairman), the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Zang Qiutao, the
Vice-chairman of the Board, and three independent non-
executive directors of the Company, namely Sir David Akers-
Jones, Mr. Aubrey Li Kwok Sing and Mr. Selwyn Mar. Its main
duties include offering advice to the Board on the matters
pertaining the remuneration policy and remuneration structure
of the directors and senior management of the Company.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
disclosed on the website of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, comprising all three independent non-
executive directors of the Company, namely Sir David Akers-
Jones (Chairman), Mr. Aubrey Li Kwok Sing and Mr. Selwyn

Mar, is primarily responsible for reviewing the accounting
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principles and practices adopted by the Group, as well as
discussing and reviewing the internal control and financial
reporting matters of the Group. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee are disclosed on the website of the
Company. The Audit Committee has reviewed with the
management and KPMG, the Company’s auditors, the
accounting principles and practice adopted by the Group
and discussed internal controls and financial reporting
matters, including a review of the annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2006.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group devotes much attention to human resources
management and developing the potential of each employee
to make sure it has a high quality team that can support its
business development in the long run. To strengthen the
Group’s financial management capabilities and the standard
of staff with financial responsibilities, the Group organized a
comprehensive training programme for finance staff during
the year under review. The programme covered topics such
as the new business accounting standards in the PRC,
internal auditing, budgeting and budget management, tax
planning, the differences between accounting standards in
Hong Kong and the PRC, etc. and the lectures were given
by accounting and tax specialists from Hong Kong and
Shenzhen. In early 2007, the Group also organized training
for its management staff with the Guanghua School of
Management of the Peking University. The training course
has helped managers of the Group to familiarize with modern
management concepts and in turn enhanced the Group’s

management standard.

As at 31 December 2006, the Group had approximately 840
employees in Hong Kong and the PRC. The employees
including directors are remunerated according to their
qualifications, experience, job nature, performance, and with
reference to market conditions. Apart from discretionary

performance bonus, the Group also provides other benefits
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such as medical insurance and provident fund scheme to
employees in Hong Kong. Since 2007, the average pay rise
of the employees in Hong Kong will be 5%. According to the
share option scheme approved at the Company’s
extraordinary general meeting on 26 May 2003, the Board
has the authority to grant share options as performance
incentives to any employees, including directors. On 3 August
2006, options for 66,000,000 shares at HK$0.85 per share
were granted to executive directors of the Company, key
management and technical personnel and staff of the Group
to reward and encourage their dedication in helping the Group

achieve stable and sustainable development.

By Order of the Board
Chen Xiaoping
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 22 March 2007
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION BUSINESS

Suzhou Waste-to-energy Project Phase |
“Constructing high quality projects and creating outstanding

works”

The Suzhou Waste-to-energy Project Phase | is the first wholly-
owned environmental protection project constructed and
operated by the Group. The total investment cost of the project
is approximately RMB500,000,000. The term of exclusive right
of operation is 25 years and the power plant has been
constructed on BOT basis. The power plant is equipped with
three waste incinerators with a respective processing capacity
of 350-tonnes per day and two 9,000 kilo-watt generators.
Construction work of the project duly commenced in October
2004 and commercial operation commenced on 18 July 2006.
With its designed waste processing capacity of 1,000 tonnes
per day, the power plant is designed to supply approximately
100,000,000 kilowatt-hour of electricity to the power grid per
year. The power plant has been operating smoothly and its
operating performance reached the designed level. Besides,
the boiler exhaust gas of the power plant has passed the
emission test carried out by the SGS Group, an independent

inspection company in Switzerland. The result of which

showed that the emission level of the boiler met the Euro |

&
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emission standard, and particularly the emission level of
dioxin met the Euro Il emission standard and is better than

the PRC regulatory requirement.

Suzhou Methane-to-energy Project

The Suzhou Methane-to-energy Project is a wholly-owned
environmental protection project constructed and operated
by the Group. The total investment cost of the project is
approximately RMB27,940,000. The term of exclusive right
of operation is 25 years and the power plant has been
constructed on BOO (build-operate-own) basis. Its main
equipment is advanced equipment imported from abroad.
The Suzhou Methane-to-energy Project and the Suzhou
Waste-to-energy Project are on the same power grid.
Commenced operation on 31 August 2006, the Suzhou
Methane-to-energy Project is expected to supply no less than
12,480,000 kilowatt-hour of electricity to the power grid per

year during the term of exclusive right of operation.

Methane-to-energy Plant
BREEM

ERERFHFEETENE (B | RiEE &
IR pER (B || SRR - B Bl
BB IR 2

HMBRBEEER

HNBRBEEIER EHAEEBEEERELEN
IRIRIER 18 B AR E X AR 27,940,0007T  %F
FHEEHR T RS 1R [BOO) (BE— K% —
HE) B EE-%IE R T ERERANENR
& I B ER N R RGeS B IE A 4 Fﬁﬁ_?&i?%x
BEHERZZEZEAFNA=+T—HERKE
AERAKEHAF ELEES $t’jT1ﬁiﬁA
12,480,000F FLBFe

China Everbright International Limited HE ¥ KEIBEAR L 7



’ Project Highlights

Suzhou Waste-to-energy Project Phase Il

In December 2006, the Group entered into a supplementary
agreement to the “Concession Right Agreement for Providing
Waste Treatment Service in Suzhou” with Suzhou Municipal
Public Utilities Authority in relation to the construction work
of Suzhou Waste-to-energy Project Phase Il. Lying to the south
of the existing power plant, the Suzhou Waste-to-energy
Project Phase Il will comprise a main plant with processing
capacity of 500 tonnes of waste daily. The total investment
cost of Suzhou Waste-to-energy Project Phase Il is
approximately RMB220,000,000. Its term of exclusive right
of operation is the same as Suzhou Waste-to-energy Project
Phase I. Construction work of the project is expected to
commence in the second half of 2007 and commercial
operation is expected to commence by the end of 2008. By
then, the total processing capacity of Phase | and Phase Il
will reach 1,500 tonnes of waste daily and Suzhou Waste-to-
energy Project will become one of the biggest waste-to-

energy power plants in the PRC.

Suzhou Solid Waste Disposal Project

The Group entered into the “Concession Right Agreement
for Operating a Solid Waste Disposal Centre in Suzhou” with
Suzhou Environmental Protection Bureau. The Disposal
Centre is a wholly-owned project to be constructed and

operated by the Group. The total investment cost of the project
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is approximately RMB377,484,000. The term of exclusive right
of operation is 30 years. The total storage capacity of the
Project is 600,000 cubic metre. As to phase | of the Disposal
Centre, the storage capacity will be 100,000 cubic metre and
the investment cost is approximately RMB78,260,000.
Commenced on 31 August 2006, the construction of the
project is expected to complete in mid 2007.

Suzhou Everbright Environmental Protection
Industrial Zone Project

“Making the area a base for environmental education and
promotion in Suzhou, establishing it as a beautiful industrial
zone”

In July 2005, the Group entered into a framework letter of
intent in respect of the construction of Suzhou Everbright
Environmental Protection Industrial Zone with the Municipal
Government of Mudu Town, Wuzhong district, Suzhou city,
Jiangsu province. The Zone will be the first integrated zone
for environmental protection to showcase centralised disposal
of industrial and household solid waste in the PRC. The whole
project will be implemented in phases over 3 to 5 years at an
estimated investment of HK$1,500,000,000. With an area of
2.5 square kilometres, the Zone comprises a number of
completed or uncompleted environmental protection projects,
including, inter alias, waste to-energy plants, a methane-to-
energy plant, a disposal centre for industrial solid waste, a
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sludge treatment centre and a leachate treatment plant etc.
The Group has made thoroughgoing preparation for the

construction of the Zone.

Yixing Waste-to-energy Project
“Establishing it as a waste-to-energy pioneer project by

domestic techniques developed from imported technology”

In April 2005, the Group entered into an undertaking in respect
of exclusive right of operation with the Construction Bureau
of Yixing city. Pursuant to which a waste-to-energy plant will
be constructed in Yixing city. The total investment cost of the
project is approximately RMB238,300,000. The term of
exclusive right of operation is 25 years and the power plant
will be constructed on BOT basis. The power plant will be
equipped with two waste incinerators with a respective
processing capacity of 250 tonnes per day and a 9,000 kilo-
watt generator. The Group has made thoroughgoing
preparation for the construction of the Yixing Waste-to-energy
Project. Commenced in September 2005, the construction
of the Yixing Waste-to-energy Project is expected to complete
by the second quarter of 2007. With its designed waste
processing capacity of 500 tonnes per day, the plant is
expected to supply no less than 44,500,000 kilowatt-hour of
electricity to the power grid per year during the term of

exclusive right of operation.
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Jiangyin Waste-to-energy Project
“Constructing high quality projects, enhancing techniques

and technologies and creating new focus”

In January 2006, the Group secured a waste-to-energy project
in Jiangyin city of Jiangsu province, which is a key project in
Jiangsu Province for the years 2006 and 2007. The total
investment cost of the project is approximately
RMB388,740,000. The term of exclusive right of operation is
30 years. The power plant is expected to handle 800 tonnes
of waste daily. The construction of the power plant will be
conducted in two phases on BOT basis. Its ultimate
processing capacity is expected to be no less than 1,200
tonnes of waste per day. Phase | of the power plant will be
equipped with two waste incinerators with a respective
processing capacity of 400 tonnes per day and a 12,000
kilo-watt generator. Construction work of the project duly
commenced on 28 June 2006 and commercial operation is
expected to commence in the second half of 2008. With its
designed waste processing capacity of 800 tonnes per day,
Phase | of the power plant is expected to supply no less than
77,000,000 kilowatt-hour of electricity to the power grid per

year during the term of exclusive right of operation.
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Changzhou Waste-to-energy Project
“Creating outstanding works by assimilating new ideas and

enhancing techniques and technologies”

In June 2006, the Group entered into a framework agreement
in respect of the exclusive right to operate a waste-to-energy
plant in Changzhou with Changzhou Municipal Administration
Bureau. The project is the fourth waste-to-energy project of
the Group in Jiangsu province. The total investment cost of
the project is approximately RMB412,560,000. The term of
exclusive right of operation is 25.5 years. The power plant is
expected to handle 800 tonnes of waste daily. It will be
constructed on BOT basis. The power plant will be equipped
with two waste incinerators with a respective processing
capacity of 400 tonnes per day and a 12,000 kilo-watt
generator. Foundation stone of the Project was laid on 15
December 2006. Commercial operation is expected to
commence in 2008. With its designed waste processing
capacity of 800 tonnes per day, the power plant is expected
to supply no less than 77,000,000 kilowatt-hour of electricity
to the power grid per year during the term of exclusive right

of operation.
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Qingdao Waste Water Treatment Project
“Producing quality projects and creating an attractive

environment”

In November 2003, the Group entered into an agreement in
respect of a waste water treatment project in Qingdao
(including Qingdao Haibohe Waste Water Treatment Plant
and Qingdao Maidao Waste Water Treatment Plant ) with
Veolia Water and Qingdao Municipal Government. The total
investment cost of the project is approximately
US$42,808,150 and the Group indirectly owns 60% interests
in the project. Upon execution of the supplementary
agreements dated 1 June 2004 by the Group, Veolia Water
and Qingdao Municipal Drainage Company, the project duly
commenced. Commercial operation of the plants duly
commenced on 1 January 2005. Waste water treatment
service charges were charged based on the daily treatment
capacity of 150,000 tonnes (of which 75,000 tonnes received
the first grade treatment by Qingdao Maidao Waste Water
Treatment Plant and 75,000 tonnes received the second grade
treatment by Qingdao Haibohe Waste Water Treatment Plant).
In March 2005, Qingdao EB-VW Waste Water Treatment Co.
Ltd. entered into the “Engineering, Procurement and
Construction Contract” with a consortium led by Veolia Water
Systems, under which the consortium led by Veolia Water
Systems was appointed to be in charge of the construction
for the Extension Facilities of Qingdao Maidao Waste Water

Qingdao Haibohe Waste Water Treatment Plant
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Treatment Plant under a turnkey contract. Construction of the
Extension Facilities duly commenced at the end of June 2005
and the Facilities started to receive waste water in June 2006.
It is expected that the Extension Facilities of Qingdao Maidao
Waste Water Treatment Plant will commence operation by
the second half of 2007. Its daily treatment capacity will then

increase from 150,000 tonnes to 220,000 tonnes.

Zibo Waste Water Treatment Project
“Establishing the project company as a renowned corporation
in the industry and making the same a base for environmental

education on waste water treatment in Zibo”

In September 2005, the Group entered into the “Zibo Waste
Water Treatment Project Agreement”, the “Concession Right
Agreement”, the “Asset Transfer Agreement” and the “Waste
Water Treatment Service Agreement” in respect of the Zibo
Waste Water Treatment Project with Zibo Municipal
Government, Zibo Finance Bureau and Zibo City
Environmental Protection Bureau and Zibo City Fisheries
Bureau. Under which, the Southern Plant and the Northern
Plant held by the Zibo Environmental Waste Water Treatment
Company was acquired by the Group. The term of exclusive
right of operation is 25 years. The daily treatment capacity of
the plants is expected to be 250,000 tonnes. The project is

operated on TOT basis and the total investment cost is
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approximately RMB224,055,000. Since the Group formally
took charge of the plants in December 2005, the plants have
been operating smoothly and have been making steady
contribution to the Group. As regards the machinery upgrade
for the plants, it was completed in April 2006. At present, the
daily treatment capacity of the plants is more than 220,000
tonnes. On 28 August 2006, the Group signed a
supplementary agreement in respect of the overall upgrade
of the Southern plant and the Northern plant with Zibo
Municipal Government. The cost for the overall upgrade is
approximately RMB130,221,000. It is expected that upon
completion of the said upgrading work in the second half of
2007, water quality will improve to Grade 1A of the national
waste water discharge standard. The upgraded Southern and
Northern plants will increase waste water treatment fee from
RMBO.75 per tonne to RMBO0.98 per tonne.

Hanmiao Waste Water Treatment Plant at Zibo
High-tech Industrial Development Zone
“Producing excellent projects and setting example of splendid

works”

In July 2006, the Group entered into the “Waste Water
Treatment Service Agreement” and the “Concession Right
Agreement” in respect of the waste water treatment plant at
Zibo High-tech Industrial Development Zone with Zibo
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Municipal Government. The Hanmiao Waste Water Treatment
Plant at Zibo High-tech Industrial Development Zone is the
Group’s first waste water treatment project on BOT basis.
The total investment cost of the project is approximately
RMB150,000,000. The term of exclusive right of operation is
25 years. The daily treatment capacity of the plant is expected
to be 100,000 tonnes. Water quality of the plant will reach
Grade 1A of the national waste water discharge standard.
The plant is still under construction. Commercial operation is
expected to commence in the second half of 2007 upon

completion of construction.

Jinan Waste Water Treatment Project
“Creating outstanding environmental protection works under

excellent management”

In June 2006, the Group entered into a “Cooperative
Agreement” with the relevant department of Jinan Municipal
Government to acquire Jinan No. 1 and No. 2 Waste Water
Treatment Plants. On 31 October 2006, Everbright Water
(Ji'nan) Limited duly executed the “Concession Right
Agreement” and the “Waste Water Treatment Service
Agreement” with the relevant departments of Jinan Municipal
Government. Jinan No. 1 and No. 2 Waste Water Treatment
Plants were formally handed over to the Group on 18
November 2006 and commercial operation of the same has
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commenced. It is the second wholly-owned waste water
treatment project acquired by the Group. The total investment
cost of the project is approximately RMB400,000,000. The
term of exclusive right of operation is 30 years. The daily
treatment capacity of the plants is expected to be 420,000
tonnes. Upgrade work on the machinery has already
commenced. It is expected that the daily treatment capacity
of the plants will gradually increase to its designed level.

INFRASTRUCTURE BUSINESS

Fuzhou Qingzhou Bridge Project

The Group has 80% interest in Fuzhou Qingzhou Bridge
(“Qingzhou Bridge”). Located in the strategic traffic
intersection of the city, Qingzhou Bridge is not only the major
bridge over Minjiang that connects to the “Shenhai
Expressway” (a coastal expressway in eastern China that runs
from Shenyang City of Liaoning Province in the north to Haikou
City of Hainan Province in the south), but also provides a
short cut for Fuzhou City to Changle International Airport.
The 1,196m-long Qingzhou Bridge has been designed to
carry dual six lane carriageways. With a main span of 605m,
the Qingzhou Bridge is one of the longest span cable-stayed
bridges in the world. It was opened to traffic on 29 December
2002. Given its geographical advantages as well as the rising
need for inbound traffic, the traffic flows of Qingzhou Bridge

will continue to grow.
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREEEEAS

Directors

WANG MINGQUAN - CHAIRMAN

aged 60, is the Chairman of the Company. He is also the
Chairman of China Everbright Group Limited, China
Everbright Holdings Company Limited, and China Everbright
Bank Company Limited. He is the Chairman of Everbright
Securities Company Limited and China Everbright Limited.
Prior to joining the China Everbright Group, Mr. Wang was
the Vice-chairman and Governor of Bank of Communications
in China and the Chairman of China Pacific Insurance
Company Limited. He had also been appointed as the Deputy
Mayor of Wuhan City. Mr. Wang holds a Master’s Degree in
Economics from Zhongnan University of Finance and
Economics. He is also an instructor of the Graduate
Department of the People’s Bank of China and a part-time
Professor of Shanghai University of Finance and Economics.
Mr. Wang has extensive knowledge and experience in
banking, securities, insurance and business administration.
He joined the Board in June 2000.

ZANG QIUTAO - VICE-CHAIRMAN

aged 55, is the Vice-chairman of the Company. He is also
the Vice-chairman and General Manager of China Everbright
Group Limited and China Everbright Holdings Company
Limited. He is the Chairman of China Everbright Investment
Management Corporation. Mr. Zang graduated from the
Graduate School of the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences.
He was formerly the Division Chief of the State Economic
Commission and Deputy Division Director of the State
Planning Commission. He joined the Board in September
2004.
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Directors (continued)

LI XUEMING - VICE-CHAIRMAN

aged 59, is the Vice-chairman of the Company. He is also an
Executive Director and Deputy General Manager of China
Everbright Group Limited and China Everbright Holdings
Company Limited. He is the Chairman of Shanghai Everbright
Convention and Exhibition Center Co., Ltd. and Vice-chairman
of China Everbright Investment Management Corporation.
Mr. Li is also a Non-executive Director and Deputy Chairman
of HKC (Holdings) Limited. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Industrial Automation from Tsinghua University. Prior to
joining the China Everbright Group in 1998, he was the
Vice-president of China Aerospace International Holdings Ltd.
Mr. Li joined the Board in June 2003.

CHEN XIAOPING - CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

aged 53, is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He
is also a director of China Everbright Holdings Company
Limited, a Standing Director of China Environmental Culture
Promotion Association, a Director of World Eminence
Chinesebusiness Association and a Financial Expert of
Shenzhen Expert Working Federation. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Chen had been a department head in the Bureau
of Investigation & Supervision of The People’s Bank of China,
the Assistant Governor of China Everbright Bank Company
Limited and the President of the Bank’s Guangzhou Branch,
He graduated from the Department of Finance of the
Southwest University in Finance and Economics, the PRC,
finished the MBA class of the Research Institute of Business
Management of Sichuan University, the PRC and holds a
Master’s Degree with a major in Money & Banking from the
Department of Finance and Trade of the China Research
Institute of Social Science. He holds the title of Senior
Economist and Certified Public Accountant in the PRC. He
has comprehensive experience and knowledge in banking,
capital market and management. Mr. Chen joined the Board
in August 2001.
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Directors and Senior Management
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Directors (continued)

FAN YAN HOK, PHILIP - GENERAL MANAGER

aged 57, is the General Manager of the Company and a
director of HKC (Holdings) Limited. Mr. Fan holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Industrial Engineering, a Master’s degree in
Operations Research from Stanford University and a Master’s
Degree in Management Science from Massachusetts Institute
of Technology. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Fan had been
an Executive Director of CITIC Pacific Limited in charge of
industrial projects in China. He joined the Board in November
1997.

HUANG CHAOHUA - DEPUTY GENERAL MANAGER

aged 37, is the Deputy General Manager of the Company
and the General Manager of Everbright Environmental
Protection Engineering (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. He holds a
Master’s Degree in Law from School of Law, Renmin University
of China. He is a qualified lawyer and legal consultant for
business in the PRC. Prior to joining the Group in May 2002,
he used to work for the headquarter of China Everbright Bank
Company Limited and the Bureau of Justice of Beijing

Municipal. Mr. Huang joined the Board in December 2002.

WONG KAM CHUNG, RAYMOND
- CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

aged 43, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He
holds a Master of Business Administration Degree, a Master
of Management Degree in Information Technology
Management from Macquarie University, Australia, and a
Bachelor of Arts with Honours Degree in Accountancy from
the City University of Hong Kong. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
of United Kingdom and a Certified General Accountant in
Canada . He has extensive experience in accounting, finance
and auditing areas. Mr. Wong joined the Board in December
2002.
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Directors and Senior Management
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Directors (continued)

CHEN SHUANG

aged 39, is a director of China Everbright Holdings Company
Limited. He is also the Deputy General Manager of Legal
Department of China Everbright Holdings Company Limited
and China Everbright Group Limited. Mr. Chen is also an
Executive Director and Deputy General Manager of China
Everbright Limited. He holds a Master’s Degree in Laws from
East China Politic and Law University. He is a senior
economist and a qualified lawyer in the PRC. Prior to joining
the China Everbright Group, Mr. Chen was the Chief of Legal
Department of Bank of Communications. He joined the Board
in December 2002.

ZHANG WEIYUN

aged 50, is the Deputy General Manager of Finance
Management Department of China Everbright Holdings
Company Limited. Ms. Zhang holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in
Economics from the Shanxi Financial University. Prior to
joining the China Everbright Group in 1991, she was the
Deputy Division Chief of Capital Division and Division Chief
of the General Affairs Division of Finance Management
Department of China Everbright Group Limited. Ms. Zhang
joined the Board in December 2002.

THE HON SIR DAVID AKERS-JONES, GBM

- INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
aged 80, is the chairman and non-executive director of a
number of Hong Kong companies and a member of many
community organizations. He has been an Independent Non-

executive Director of the Company since March 1995.
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Directors and Senior Management
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Directors (continued)

LI KWOK SING, AUBREY
- INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

aged 57, is a director of Management Capital Limited, a Hong
Kong based financial advisory and direct investment firm,
and has over 30 years’ experience in merchant banking and
commercial banking. He is also a non-executive director of
ABC Communications (Holdings) Limited, The Bank of East
Asia, Limited, Café de Coral Holdings Limited, CNPC (Hong
Kong) Limited, Kowloon Development Company Limited,
Pokfulam Development Company Limited and Value Partners
China Greenchip Fund Limited, and non-executive Chairman
of Atlantis Asian Recovery Fund Plc. Mr. Li has a Master of
Business Administration from Columbia University and a
Bachelor of Science in Civil Engineering from Brown

University. He joined the Board in November 1998.

MAR SELWYN
— INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

aged 71, graduated from the London School of Economics,
University of London. He is a fellow member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of United Kingdom and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is a partner
of Nexia Charles Mar Fan & Co. He is an independent non-
executive director and chairman of the board audit committee
of Standard Bank Asia Limited. He is also an independent
non-executive director and chairman of the audit committee
of Onfem Holdings Limited and Man Yue International
Holdings Limited. He was the President of Hong Kong Society
of Accountants (now known as Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants) in 1991. He was formerly an
Independent Non-Executive Director of several listed
companies in Hong Kong and in the United States. Mr. Mar
is an Honorary Fellow of the Lingnan University. He joined
the Board in September 2004.
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Senior Management

POON YUEN LING

aged 39, is the Company Secretary of the Company. She is
an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Company
Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators. She joined the Group in April 1994, with over
10 years of experience in company secretarial and

administration areas.
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Corporate Governance Report
CEERBEE

“People-oriented, honesty, pragmatism, creativity and
standardized management” are the unchanged management
principles of the Group. The Group strives to achieve high
standards of corporate governance which it believes is crucial
to the development of the Group and to safeguard the
interests of the shareholders of the Company. To achieve this,
the Board has established four committees namely the
Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Management Committee. Besides, the
Group has formed its risk management divisions responsible
for regular risk control and inspection, and has enhanced its
risk assessment and review for investments. In addition to
the aforesaid, the Group has carried out regular internal audit

on investment projects to enhance its management standard.

The Code on Corporate Governance (“the Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing
Rules”) was duly adopted by the board of directors of the
Company (“the Board”) as the code on corporate governance

practices of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2006, the Company has
complied with the provisions of the Code and some of the
recommended best practices as set out in the Code except
that Mr. Wang Mingqguan, the Chairman of the Company, was
unable to attend the 2006 Annual General Meeting of the
Company. However, appropriate arrangements have been
made accordingly before the holding of the Annual General

Meeting.
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ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE IN BREXEAMASEE
RELATION TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition and function
The Board comprises twelve directors, of which nine are

executive directors and the remaining three are independent

non-executive directors.

As at 31 December 2006, the directors were:

Name of Director

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Mingquan

Mr. Zang Qiutao

Mr. Li Xueming

Mr. Chen Xiaoping

Mr. Philip Fan Yan Hok

Mr. Huang Chaohua

Mr. Raymond Wong
Kam Chung

Mr. Chen Shuang

Ms. Zhang Weiyun

Non-executive Directors

Sir David Akers-Jones

Mr. Aubrey Li Kwok Sing

Mr. Selwyn Mar

Title

Chairman

Vice-chairman
Vice-chairman

Chief Executive Officer
General Manager
Deputy General Manager

Chief Financial Officer

Executive Director

Executive Director

Independent
Non-executive Director

Independent
Non-executive Director

Independent

Non-executive Director
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Composition and function (continued)

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company, subject to the manner of retirement by rotation of
directors as from time to time prescribed under the Listing
Rules and notwithstanding any contractual or other terms on
which any director may be appointed or engaged, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the directors for the time
being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation, provided that every director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement

by rotation at least once every three years.

The position of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
are held by separate individuals, with a view to maintaining
an effective segregation of duties respecting management
of the Board and the day-to-day management of the Group’s

business.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year. Under the
lead of the Chairman, the Board is responsible for approving
and supervising the overall strategy and policies of the Group,
approving annual budget and business plans, assessing the
Group’s performance and supervising the work of the
management. All directors have access to board papers and
related materials, and are provided with adequate information
on a timely manner. The directors of the Company may, if
necessary, seek legal or other independent professional

advice at the expense of the Company.

In respect of regular board meetings and audit committee
meetings, the agenda is sent out to the directors at least
fourteen days before the meeting and the accompanying
papers are sent at least three days before the meeting for

information.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Composition and function (continued)

As an integral part of good corporate governance, the Board
has established the following committees with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with the committee’s

authority and duties:—

1. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
The Executive Committee comprises Mr. Wang
Mingquan (Chairman), the Chairman of the Board, and
eight executive directors, namely Mr. Zang Qiutao, Mr.
Li Xueming, Mr. Chen Xiaoping, Mr. Philip Fan Yan Hok,
Mr. Huang Chaohua, Mr. Raymond Wong Kam Chung,
Mr. Chen Shuang and Ms. Zhang Weiyun. Its main duties
include performing the duties assigned by the Board as
well as exercising the authority and rights authorized by
the Board. There was no meeting held during the year.
The general mandate in relation to the Executive

Committee in written form has been established.

2. REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. Wang
Mingqguan (Chairman), the Chairman of the Board, Mr.
Zang Qiutao, the Vice-chairman of the Board, and three
independent non-executive directors of the Company,
namely Sir David Akers-Jones, Mr. Aubrey Li Kwok Sing
and Mr. Selwyn Mar. Its main duties include offering
advice to the Board on the matters pertaining the
remuneration policy and remuneration structure of the
directors and senior management of the Company. The
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are

disclosed on the website of the Company.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Composition and function (continued)

2.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has
reviewed the remuneration policy and structure of the
executive directors and senior management of the

Company, and offered advice on the same to the Board.

The remuneration of all the directors and their respective
interest in share options are set out in note 30 to the
financial statements and under the “Share option
scheme” paragraph in the report of the directors of this

Annual Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, comprising all three independent
non-executive directors of the Company, namely Sir
David Akers-dones (Chairman), Mr. Aubrey Li Kwok Sing
and Mr. Selwyn Mar, is primarily responsible for reviewing
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, as well as discussing and reviewing the internal
control and financial reporting matters of the Group. The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are disclosed

on the website of the Company.

During the year, the Audit Committee has reviewed with
the management and KPMG, the Company’s auditors,
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed the Group’s internal control and
financial reporting matters, including review of the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2005 and the

interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2006.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Composition and function (continued)

4.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Management Committee comprises Mr. Chen
Xiaoping (Chairman), the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, Mr. Philip Fan Yan Hok, the General Manager
of the Company, Mr. Huang Chaohua, the Deputy
General Manager of the Company and Mr. Raymond
Wong Kam Chung, the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company. The Management Committee is the decision-
making body for day-to-day operation and its main duties
include performing the duties assigned by the Board
and/or the Executive Committee as well as exercising
the authority and rights authorized by the same. The
general mandate in relation to the Management

Committee in written form has been established.
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NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS AND
COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND THE
ATTENDANCE RATE OF DIRECTORS

The following shows the number of regular board meetings
and committee meetings held during the year as well as the
attendance rate of each director.

Attendance rate

Board of
Name of Director Directors
EspAR E=zg
Mr. Wang Mingquan THAELE 2/4
Mr. Zang Qiutao NS e 4/4
Mr. Li Xueming TERELE 4/4
Mr. Chen Xiaoping RN R4 4/4
Mr. Philip Fan Yan Hok SBIBEE 4/4
Mr. Huang Chaohua BHAERY 3/4
Mr. Raymond Wong Kam Chung &858 4 4/4
Mr. Chen Shuang BRREE 3/4
Ms. Zhang Weiyun RE=KT 4/4
Sir David Akers-Jones EIRBRT 4/4
Mr. Aubrey Li Kwok Sing TEERE 4/4
Mr. Selwyn Mar FHARESE 1/4

EEERZESERRBREESNY
EIRE

TRENFEARRBMBITNERESTERE
B2 e ABNRES[ERI N HFE R

H R #

Remuneration Audit Management
Committee Committee Committee
FMESS ERERS EEZREY
2/2 N/A N/A
TEA TiE A
1/2 N/A N/A
TiEHR TR
N/A N/A N/A
TiE A TEM TiE A
N/A N/A 14/14

TiER TiEHR
N/A N/A 13/14

TiE A TEM
N/A N/A 14/14

TR TiEHR
N/A N/A 14/14

TiE A NEA
N/A N/A N/A
iR TiEHR iR
N/A N/A N/A
T NiEA T
2/2 3/3 N/A
iR
2/2 3/3 N/A
TEM
2/2 3/3 N/A
TEM
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THE DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES
BETWEEN THE CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
should be separate. The Chairman’s responsibility is to
manage the Board and the Chief Executive Officer’s
responsibility is to manage the Company’s business. The
division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the

Chief Executive Officer is clearly established.

The main responsibilities of the Chairman include providing
leadership for and overseeing the functioning of the Board;
formulating overall strategies and policies of the Company;
ensuring that all directors of the Board are properly briefed
on issues arising at Board meetings and giving each director
an opportunity to express his/her view at board meetings;
ensuring that directors receive adequate information, which
must be complete and reliable, in a timely manner; ensuring
that the Board works effectively and discharges its
responsibilities; ensuring that all key and appropriate issues
are discussed by the Board in a timely manner; drawing up
and approving the agenda for each board meeting taking
into account, where appropriate, any matters proposed by
the other directors for inclusion in the agenda; taking
responsibility for ensuring that good corporate governance
practices and procedures are established; encouraging all
directors to make a full and active contribution to the Board’s
affairs and take the lead to ensure that the Board acts in the
best interests of the Company; ensuring that appropriate
steps are taken to provide effective communication with
shareholders and that views of shareholders are
communicated to the Board as a whole; and facilitating the
effective contribution of directors and ensuring constructive
relations between executive directors and non-executive

directors.
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THE DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES
BETWEEN THE CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER (continued)

The responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer include
taking responsibility for the Group’s operation and
management; implementing decisions and plans approved
by the Board; making day-to-day operational and managerial

decision; and coordinating overall business operations.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules, the Board is of the view that all
independent non-executive directors are independent and
the Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive

directors of the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.

All three independent non-executive directors are appointed
for a term of one year until 31 December 2007, and are subject
to retirement and re-election in accordance with the

Company’s Articles of Association.
NOMINATION OF DIRECTOR

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company, the directors will have the power from time to time
and at any time to appoint any person as a director to fill a
casual vacancy in the Board, or as an addition to the existing
Board. For nomination, consideration will be made to the
qualifications of the nominee. The Company has not
established a nomination committee. During the year, there

was no change to the members of the Board.

EIERTBBBBES T (&)

TREHZNBEBRAEAKENKLEMER:
HITESSMRBMTE LR EEENAE
RF R AEREGEE

BAFHITES

RIE LR BB A B EIES EF
RRERBILIFNTESTHRB AL ME4A
BUIFATESERE LMRRNRERLRAF
REBAEBIIEHNFERRE-

—UBYERTEENZIFHA—F HEEC
ETHF+-A=1+—RH1b WABTARRA
AIBRRERBEEEZRE-

EER?

REAAFNARERAMA ESSHFRTEX
REMSHZREEMARRES AMERRZ
REFTIEEEEKE REAZEZRRERAL
Big AARYEKIIERZES RAFEA:
EEENEBTEIMNER-

China Everbright International Limited B} KEERER A A



‘%: %

% Corporate Governance Report
S ERERBEE

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Group has adopted the model code (“the Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of

conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions.

Having made specific enquiry of the directors, all directors
have complied with the required standard of dealings as set
out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December
2006.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

It is the Company’s responsibility to ensure shareholder’s
interest. To do so, the Company maintains on-going dialogue
with shareholders to communicate with them and encourage
their participation through annual general meetings or other

general meetings.

Registered shareholders are notified by post for the
shareholders’ meetings. Notice of meeting contains agenda,

proposed resolutions and postal voting form.

All registered shareholders are entitled to attend annual and
extraordinary general meetings, provided that their shares

have been recorded in the Register of Shareholders.

Shareholders who are unable to attend a general meeting
may complete and return to the Company’s Share Registrar
the proxy form enclosed with notice of meeting to give proxy
to their representatives, another shareholder or chairman of

the meetings.

ESETESRRS

RE BB _E TR AP 8+ T EL e (IR2EST RID
(MEETA D ERESETARRELFRIHER
ORI

EEFAESENREENE RE-SEAE
+=B=+—AIER AAAFEEF—HNY
FBETFAINRE

IR R By R

ARBBEERRERAOEDS AR RIS R
BRAFASSEMBRAS B R —BEREFE
BYREREFLEBRAE

BB RIATE D AR A GBS KE8
THARRE RENRBRENBERERS-

EAERERG BRI ERCRBFAS RECREF
RIRE HERENRD BADELHBRAMA-

REEHERRAGHBER A HZBEM R ARG RS
MRRZERBAREARBRMDBIE AL
FREZRRI S —BBRRIRETFERKEN
e

Annual Report 2006 —ZEZXFER

/1



Corporate Governance Report
DB LPES

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Right to demand a poll has been included in circular of the
Company accompanying notice convening general meeting
of the Company and has been read out by the chairman at

the general meeting of the Company.
EXTERNAL AUDITORS

It is the auditors’ responsibility to form an independent
opinion, based on their audit, on the Company’s financial
statements and to report their opinion solely to the Company,
as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. They do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person

for the contents of the report of the auditors.

Apart from the provision of annual audit services, KPMG, the
Group’s external auditors, also carried out interim review of
the Group’s results and provided other financial services in
compliance with the requirements under the Listing Rules

and the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance.

For the year ended 31 December 2006, KPMG, the external
auditors received the following remuneration from the Group
in connection with the provision of audit and non-audit

services to the Group:—

Annual audit services FEEZRE
Interim review services EH BEERS
Other services E b iR 7

China Everbright International Limited
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has full responsibility for the Group’s internal control
system, which includes the establishment of a defined
management structure with specified limits of authority. The
system is designed to help the achievement of business
objectives of the Group, safeguard assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or for publication and
ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulation.
The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement

or loss.

The key procedures that the Board established to provide

effective internal controls are as follows:

- Organizational Structure
An appropriate organizational structure is in place with
defined operating policies and procedures as well as

responsibility and lines of authority.

— Authority and Control
The executive directors and senior management are
delegated with respective levels of authorities to carry
out the corporate strategies and policies and the related

matters formulated by the Board.

- Budgetary Control and Financial Reporting
The Group implements budget management, and
financial budget is executed upon approval by the Board.
Relevant procedures have been established to assess,
review and approve major capital and recurrent
expenditures, and regular review and comparison

between operating results and the budget are made.
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INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)

- Budgetary Control and Financial Reporting
(continued)
The Group has established appropriate internal control
procedures to ensure the keeping of accurate and
complete accounting and management records on a
timely basis. Examination and review are carried out
regularly to ensure that the financial statements are
properly prepared in conformity with the generally
accepted accounting principles, the Group’s accounting

policies and the applicable laws and regulations.

- Internal Auditing
The Group has regularly conducted internal audit to
review whether the internal control procedures are

implemented appropriately.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control system. This review covered all
material controls, including financial, operational and

compliance controls and risk management functions.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors confirm that they are responsible for the

preparation of the Group’s financial statements.

The finance department of the Company is taken charge by
the Qualified Accountant. With the assistance of the finance
department, the directors ensure that the Group’s financial
statements have been properly prepared in accordance with

relevant regulations and applicable accounting principles.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A statement by KPMG, the auditors of the Company, about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of
the Group is included in the Report of the Auditors on page
99.

INVESTOR RELATIONSHIP AND
COMMUNICATION

The Company recognizes the importance of good
communications with shareholders and the investment
community. Briefings and meetings with institutional investors
and analysts are conducted regularly to provide them with
up-to-date and comprehensive information about the Group’s
development. Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive
operational and financial performance information to
shareholders and the annual general meeting of the Company
provides a forum for shareholders to exchange views directly
with the Board, which together help enhance and facilitate
communication with shareholders. The Company also
maintains a website (http://www.ebchinaintl.com) which
enables shareholders, investors and the general public to
have access to the information of the Company on a timely

basis.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The board of directors (“the Board”) have pleasure in
submitting their annual report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2006.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

China Everbright International Limited (“the Company”) is a
company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has
its registered office and principal place of business at Room
2703, 27th Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities and other particulars of the
subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical
locations of the operations of the Company and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) during the financial year are set
out in note 13 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2006, the five largest
customers in aggregate and the largest customer of the
Group accounted for approximately 62% and 23%
respectively of the Group’s turnover. For the year ended 31
December 2006, the Group only had one major supplier,
which provided services for the operation of waste-water
treatment plants.

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates
or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had any interest in these major customers and
suppliers.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In June 2004, Qingdao EB-VW Waste Water Treatment Co.,
Ltd. (“Qingdao EB-VW”, a subsidiary of the Company) entered
into an operation and maintenance agreement with Qingdao
Veolia Water Operating Company Limited (“Qingdao Veolia”,
an associate of the Group). Pursuant to the agreement,
Qingdao EB-VW will subcontract to Qingdao Veolia the
provision of the operation and maintenance services in
respect of the waste-water treatment plants (“the Plants”) in
Qingdao, the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). During the
year ended 31 December 20086, service fee for the operation
and maintenance of the Plants paid to Qingdao Veolia
amounted to HK$18,225,000 (2005: HK$18,800,000).

In June 2004, Qingdao EB-VW entered into a waste-water
treatment agreement with Qingdao Municipal Drainage
Company (“Qingdao Drainage”, a minority shareholder of
Qingdao EB-VW). Pursuant to the agreement, Qingdao EB-
VW will provide waste-water treatment services and other
related services to Qingdao Drainage on an exclusive basis.
During the year ended 31 December 2006, waste-water
treatment revenue received from Qingdao Drainage
amounted to HK$52,667,000 (2005: HK$52,423,000).

In June 2004, Qingdao EB-VW entered into a technical
assistance agreement with Veolia Water Asia Limited (“Veolia
Asia”, a subsidiary of a minority shareholder of the Group).
Pursuant to the agreement, Veolia Asia will provide technical
assistance to Qingdao EB-VW in respect of the operation
and maintenance of the Plants in Qingdao, the PRC. During
the year ended 31 December 2006, technical assistance fee
paid/payable to Veolia Asia amounted to HK$2,170,000
(2005: HK$2,211,000).

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
have reviewed these connected transactions and confirmed
that such transactions were:

- entered into in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group;

A BEXESKEBERA
(IE8HxE]- $ RIZKIB AR BE %r}uﬂﬁ
KEBEBRAR ([BEESEIE]  ANEBZHE
NAE)) RN EBREBREGR B TEXE
AHERE A REME ([FE]) E&T5KEERR
(D7KEEMR] ) 2 & B REBRERBINITS
ERVHE-HE_ZTTNF+_A=+—HLHF
B HEEREBRESKEEBRMESN TS
SR M RIS E AE118,225,0007T (—ZEE
F 45 %18,800,0007T) ©

RZZZENFERA FEXRBETEMHKRD
(IBEEHX] EEXRZLERR) .J457J<J=E
BBt EEXEBBERAE SHKREMHS
KEERBEEEMEBRSE -BE_ST - F+
ZA=+—HILFE RESHKKERMEZS
KRB A BB HE2 667,000 (ZBEERE: B
#£52,423,0007T) °

RZZTZWMF XA 55 XEEVeolia Water Asia
Limited ([ HETM ] - NEE D SRR 2 B
UNCIDIRVE (T8 475 1A 3 Al AV - ) b AL
TEABRHEBEEREERETEEESMS
KEEBZ BN ERE - BHE_STF+=
A=Z+—BLFE B MN/EEN TR RN
2R BB A AB2170,000 T (ZTTH
4 2 211,0007T) ©

$®ETZ§%I$E$?L TEZCEMH LR E

/%y

- RAKEBERREBEBEDRIL

Annual Report 2006 —ZZXFEER

7’



/8

Report of the Directors
EEERE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

- conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if
there are not sufficient comparable transactions to
judge whether they are on normal commercial terms,
on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to or from independent third parties; and

- in accordance with the relevant agreement governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

The directors have requested the auditors of the Company
to perform certain agreed upon procedures on the continuing
connected transactions and have received a letter from the
auditors as required under Rule 14A.38 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”).

MAJOR TRANSACTION

On 28 August 2006, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Shenzhen Energy (H.K.)
International Limited (“Shenzhen Energy”), pursuant to which,
the Company agreed to sell and Shenzhen Energy agreed to
acquire the 15 “A” shares of Newton Industrial Limited
(“Newton”, an associate of the Group), representing
approximately 44.12% of Newton’s issued share capital, at a
consideration of RMB663,627,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$657,708,000). The principal activity of
Newton is holding of an 34% equity interest in Shenzhen
Mawan Power Company Limited, a sino-foreign joint venture
established in the PRC which operates two power plants in
Shenzhen, the PRC. The transaction constituted a major
transaction as defined by the Listing Rules and was
announced by way of a press announcement by the Company
on 29 August 2006. Details of the transaction have been
included in the circular to shareholders dated 20 September
2006.
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DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTIONS

(@) On 13 April 2006, On Land Limited (“On Land”, a
subsidiary of the Company) entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with CITIC Ka Wah Bank Limited
(“CITIC Ka Wah Bank”), pursuant to which, On Land
agreed to sell and CITIC Ka Wah Bank agreed to
purchase an investment property located in Hong
Kong at a consideration of HK$122,098,000. The
transaction constituted a discloseable transaction as
defined by the Listing Rules and was announced by
way of a press announcement by the Company on 13
April 2006. Details of the transaction have been
included in the circular to shareholders dated 8 May
2006.

(b)  On 31 October 2006, Everbright Water (Ji'nan) Limited
(“EB Water Jinan”, a subsidiary of the Group) entered
into an asset transfer agreement with Jinan State-
owned Assets Commission and Jinan Utilities Authority,
pursuant to which, Jinan State-owned Assets
Commission and Jinan Utilities Authority agreed to sell
and EB Water Jinan agreed to acquire two waste-water
treatment plants at a total consideration of
RMB400,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$392,209,000). The transaction constituted a
discloseable transaction as defined by the Listing
Rules and was announced by way of a press
announcement by the Company on 31 October 2006.
Details of the transaction have been included in the
circular to shareholders dated 22 November 2006.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2006
and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages
101 to 246.

ASSN
t

ITRERS

‘5%\%1

(@) R-ZEZEXFHNA+=B BRERAA
( Bfal AARZMBAR) B 5RE
RITAR AR ([RERERIT])FIVZE
%Tﬂ%é%o%fﬂtﬁﬁlﬂ%ﬁﬁ%'ﬁﬁﬂiﬂ;?%ﬁ
RITREBE —BAMNREEZRENE:
KRB AB%122,098,0007T° Ll 22 SR
ATHEBERS (EER LMHA) RARAF
EE/\_?7/\$P_T]H+ E!Li&ﬂiﬁi\\%
TUAMH-ERARSG2HBIRZTEAS
FRANARTEREZBHA-

FA

N

TEXRF+A=Z+—8 S AKB OF
BRAR ([RAKBERE] NEE2
EAR)) BEEMARBAREEEE
S EZEe ([EEmBAEEEZE
@D& EEmmBAASEER ([BEEm
PAEER]) ST EEEEGZR BRI B
EMEEEEZEEREMMARSER
RELE M AKEERRZRERR
YEIKERIE R - 4B (E A AR #400,000,000
7T (FEE R 49758392,209,0007T) ° Fifiss
SBRATERRS (EERLEMHER]) &
ARARER_ZENF+A=+—HER
BREQNETURAMM - BARZ ZFHEHR
ZEERF+ A+ ZHARTREZB

T
pE R
m}*@ﬂ‘“\l

e

AEEBE_ZTERNFTA=T—HILEFEZ
Eﬁﬂ'u)&$ Téﬁiﬁ%@ﬁ\\%ﬁzﬁﬁﬂzﬂkﬂ%

—BEE—EEF_BNTNBZUBHRE
ﬁqo

Annual Report 2006 —ZZXFEER

79



80

Report of the Directors
EEERE

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profits attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of
HK$428,050,000 (2005 (restated): HK$122,874,000) have
been transferred to reserves. Other movements in reserves
are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

An interim dividend of HK0.6 cent per share (2005: HKO.6
cent per share) was paid on 31 October 2006. The Board
now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HKO0.6
cent per share (2005: HKO0.6 cent per share) and a special
dividend of HK0.4 cent per share (2005: Nil) in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2006.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets during the year are
set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 31(c) to the financial
statements. Shares were issued during the year to broaden
the capital base and on exercise of share options.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the
Company’s listed securities by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year.

BERERE

AR R (G B F (RIRTAR B AT) % 428,050,000
T (ZZEZRF (BH) 78%122,874,0007T) 2
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fiEE=1—(c) - RAFER RARR T HEARBAK
EREY A TR m BT

RARFEERN ARRREEAHBARMERE -
HEXBOARLQR EHES-

China Everbright International Limited FE ¥ K BB AR 2 7



Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS

The directors during the financial year were:

Executive directors

Wang Mingquan, Chairman

Zang Qiutao, Vice-chairman

Li Xueming, Vice-chairman

Chen Xiaoping, Chief Executive Officer

Fan Yan Hok, Philip, General Manager

Huang Chaohua, Deputy General Manager

Wong Kam Chung, Raymond, Chief Financial Officer
Chen Shuang

Zhang Weiyun

Independent non-executive directors
Sir David Akers-Jones

Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

Mar Selwyn

In accordance with articles 73, 77, 78 and 79 of the
Company’s Articles of Association, Mr Wang Mingquan, Mr
Chen Xiaoping, Ms Zhang Weiyun and Sir David Akers-Jones
retire from the board at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The independent non-executive directors are appointed for
a term until 31 December 2007 and subject to retirement in
accordance with the Company'’s Articles of Association as
indicated above.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is
not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
normal statutory obligations.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

The directors and chief executive of the Company who held
office at 31 December 2006 had the following interests in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company,
its holding companies, subsidiaries and other associated
corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ”)) at that date as recorded in the register
of directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO are as
follows:

(i) Long position in shares of equity derivatives
of the Company

Name of director

EEHR EEEE

Fan Yan Hok, Philip BIER

(i) Long position in underlying shares of equity

derivatives of the Company

Nature of

Name of director interest

EEnA BRE

Wang Minggquan TR Personal f&A
Zang Qiutao BIR Personal {EA
Li Xueming Z2H Personal {EA
Chen Xiaoping B/ Personal {EA
Fan Yan Hok, Philip BB Personal {EA
Huang Chaohua BHE Personal {EA
Wong Kam Chung, Raymond ~ =$388 Personal fEA
Chen Shuang B3k Personal {EA
Zhang Weiyun KE= Personal {EA
Sir David Akers-Jones ERGEELT  Personal A
Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey ZEE Personal {EA

Nature of interest

Personal f&A

ESRFETHRABRRZRM 1HE
RO kESEERKXE

RAR AR ES R RIS AT
HRYEEREBITRABMSERAR BT
HRSET RFEAET A=+ RER
2 AAAEEREBTHABRKAERRA:
HERAR WBARRAMHEAR (EERE
5 RN 210 AR RES S
2T

(i) REQIARGBATEIEZFE

Number of

shares

(ordinary shares)
B E Percentage
(EER) Aot
5,000,000 0.16%

(i) REAXFAEBEARGBRASTETIAZ
Number of equity Number of
derivatives held underlying
(share options) shares

BERK (ordinary shares)

fTETI A HERGEE Percentage
(BRE) (BER) B
30,400,000 30,400,000 0.99%
4,000,000 4,000,000 0.13%
22,000,000 22,000,000 0.72%
23,000,000 23,000,000 0.75%
9,000,000 9,000,000 0.29%
12,000,000 12,000,000 0.39%
7,500,000 7,500,000 0.24%
5,000,000 5,000,000 0.16%
5,000,000 5,000,000 0.16%
1,000,000 1,000,000 0.03%
1,000,000 1,000,000 0.03%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

(iii) Long position in underlying shares of equity
derivatives of China Everbright Limited
(“CEL”), an associated corporation of the
Company

Nature of
Name of director interest
EENE Bt E
Wang Mingquan TR Personal f&A
Chen Shuang B3 Personal fEA

All the above underlying shares of equity derivatives (being
unlisted and physically settled) were beneficially owned by
the directors concerned. The percentage shown was
calculated based on the respective number of issued shares
of the Company and CEL as at 31 December 2006.

Further details relating to the options granted to the directors
and chief executive of the Company are set out in the section
“Share option scheme” below.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the directors and chief
executive of the Company or any of their spouses or children
under eighteen years of age has interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or
other associated corporations, as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies.

EENRFETHRAEBRRZRM 1HE
ROREBESEZRAR (&)

(iii) RADQT 2B N FPEHKKIZER
BRLAT ([FeRER]) B 7R

AFTETEZIFA
Number of equity Number of
derivatives held underlying
(share options) shares

BERK (ordinary shares)

fTETI A HERGHE Percentage
(R (BER) Bk
4,920,000 4,920,000 0.31%
2,030,000 2,030,000 0.13%

BB IRALTET A GE LT REWAEE)
YHERESERRA  LRMBRZA DA
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A B AR EMBE AR Z M BRI K
BEPREEEIARIRE LM ARERET
EHR P FETHAMNEARR 2 ERIAK

A
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Annual Report 2006 —ZZXFEER

33



84

= Report of the Directors
- BEEERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted
on 26 May 2003 whereby the directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of the
Group, including directors of any company in the Group, to
take up options to subscribe for shares of the Company. The
purpose of the scheme is to provide an opportunity for
employees of the Group to acquire an equity participation in
the Company and to encourage them to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the
benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The
share option scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of ten years ending on 25 May 2013, after which no further
options will be granted.

The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal
value of the shares, the closing price of the shares on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock
Exchange”) on the date of grant and the average closing
price of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant. The
options are exercisable six months (or a later date as
determined by the directors of the Company) after the date
on which the options are granted for a period up to ten years
or 25 May 2013, whichever is earlier.

The total number of securities available for issue under the
share option scheme as at 31 December 2006 was
254,831,170 shares (including options for 157,200,000 shares
that have been granted but not yet lapsed or exercised) which
represented approximately 8% of the issued share capital of
the Company at 31 December 2006. In respect of the
maximum entitlement of each participant under the share
option scheme, the number of securities issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
participant in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
Company’s ordinary shares in issue.

Offer of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted
when the letter comprising acceptance of the option duly
signed by the grantee together with a remittance of HK$1 is
received within 28 days from the date of offer. The share
option scheme will expire on 25 May 2013.
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Report of the Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

At 31 December 2006, the directors and employees of the
Company had the following interests in options to subscribe
for shares of the Company (market value per share at 31
December 2006 was HK$1.34) granted at nominal
consideration under the share option scheme of the
Company. The options are unlisted. Each option gives the
holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of HK$0.1

each of the Company.

Directors

gz

Wang Mingquan

No. of
options
outstanding
atthe
beginning
of the year
4
HRTEZ
EREHA

THE 12,700,000

12,700,000

No. of
options
granted

during
the year

FRRH
ZERE
#E

2,500,000

2,500,000

No. of
shares
acquired on
exercise

of options
during

the year
Frfig
BREBA
ZRHER

No. of
options
outstanding
at the

year end
33
WRTELZ
BREHE

12,700,000

12,700,000

2,500,000

2,500,000

BRESTE ()

X
AT

=
AR

\

o SR

S%A

;;;E'E_i__

*IH

=113

H

A=
1.3470) B

BEAR

A=1t—B XRAEZKE
Bl 2 FE R R T 54

ERNFT _A=T—HzBERMmERE

ARE AR T IRIE AR A B AR AT 8

BEHARERL -EREERETE Fi SR
fREETRHEARB—RAQAEREE

B0 TR AR 2 R o
Period
during which
options are Exercise
Date exercisable price
granted BIRE  per share
RYRE R8s SRAEE
29 September 29March 2004 HK$0.296
003 to25May 2013 EE0.2067
It Sk
NAZTAE ZAZThRE
—E-=f
RAZTHA
29 September 29 September 2004 HK$0.296
03 to25May2013 02067
It Sk
RAZTAR NAZThAZE
—E-=f
RAZTHA
3 August 2006 3 August 2007 HK$0.85
1025 May 2013 0,857
Z5TNE 5T
NA=H NA=RZE
3%
il It il
3 August 2006 3 August 2008 HK$0.85
1025 May 2013 H0.857
ZETNE “ETN\E
NA=H NA=RZE
“T-=F
il il
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Market
value per Market
shareat  value per
date of  share on
grantof exercise of
options*  options*
RERE  BRE
RYREz fERZ
SRmE* BRTE
HK$0.296 =
20,2067
HK$0.296 =
20,2067
HK$0.85 -
%0857
HK$0.85 -
%0857
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Directors

£

ELTY

Zang Qiutao s

Li Xueming ZEh

86

No. of
options

outstanding

atthe
beginning
of the year
4
HRTELZ
BREHE

9,000,000

9,000,000

No. of
shares

No. of acquired on

options
granted
during
the year
FRRH
LRRE
#E

2,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

exercise
of options
during

the year
ERfif
BRERA
ZREGHE

No. of
options
outstanding
at the

year end
R
WRTEZ
BREHE

2,000,000

2,000,000

9,000,000

9,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

BIRRESTE (&
Period
during which
options are
Date exercisable
granted BRE
RABH PRI
3 August 2006 3 August 2007
ZZEN to 25 May 2013
NA=H 5Tt
NA=RZE
3=k
AA=thA
3 August 2006 3 August 2008
ZZEX to 25 May 2013
NA=H )2
NA=RZE
3=k
i il
29 September 29 March 2004
2003 1025 May 2013
—Z2%- “TINE
AAZthB ZB=tAhBZ
FA-TEA
29 September 29 September
2003 2004t
-%3= 25 May 2013
AAZThA ZE2EME
ARZTHAZE
ﬁﬁ:+£5
3 August 2006 3 August 2007
ZZEX to 25 May 2013
NA=H R
NA=ZRZE
“3-=E
7A=thA
3 August 2006 3 August 2008
ZZEN to 25 May 2013
NA=H ZETN\E
NA=RZ
3=k
7A=thA
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Exercise
price
per share

SROEE

HK$0.85
#%0.857

HK$0.85
#%0.857

HK$0.296
7%0.2067C

HK$0.296
7%0.2067C

HK$0.85
A%0.857

HK$0.85
#%0.857

Market
value per Market
shareat  value per
dateof  share on
grantof exercise of
options*  options*
RERE  BRE
REBHZ KL
SRHE* BRTE

HKS0.85 =
7150857

HKS0.85 =
750857

HK$0.296 =
#%0.2967T

HK$0.296 -
#%0.2967

HK$0.85 =
7150857

HKS0.85 =
7150857
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) R ERTE (&
No. of
No. of shares
options No. of acquired on No. of
outstanding options  exercise options

at the granted  of options outstanding Period
beginning during during atthe during which
oftheyear  theyear  theyear  yearend options are
B)  EARY  ERAE £4 Date exercisable
Directors WATHEz ZBRE BREBA HAGH2 granted BRE
Bz BREHA #HE ZRGHE BREYA RABH PAILE ]
Chen Xiaoping BT 9,000,000 - - 9,000,000 29 September 29 March 2004
2003 to25May 2013
“%2%- “TIME
NAZTHhA =AZthHE
Z2-Z%
il I it
9,000,000 - - 9,000,000 29 September 29 September
2003 2004 to
Z%%= 25 May 2013
AA=tAR “2EME
AAZTNRE
i)z I it
- 2,500,000 - 2,500,000 3 August 2006 3 August 2007
ZEERE 1025 May 2013
NR=H “TRtE
NA=HZ
IE-cf
ill; e il
- 2,500,000 - 2,500,000 3 August 2006 3 August 2008
ZEERE 1025 May 2013
NA=H ZETN\E
NA=RZE
ZE-cf
i il
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Exercise
price
per share

SROEE

HK$0.296
#%0.297

HK$0.296
#%0.297

HKS0.85
EB0.857

HKS0.85
%0857

Market
value per Market
shareat  value per
dateof  share on
grantof exercise of
options*  options*
RERE  BRE
RYREz fERZ
SRHE* BRTE
HK$0.296 -
02967
HK$0.296 =
02967
HK$0.85 -
BH0857
HK$0.85 -
%0857
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

No. of

options

outstanding

at the

beginning

of the year

£4

Directors WRTEZ
gz BREHE

Fan Yan Hok, Philp €8 5,000,000

5,000,000

No. of

shares
No. of acquired on No. of
options  exercise options
granted  of options outstanding
during during atthe
theyear  theyear  yearend
FREH  FRR 33
ZBRE BREEA HAGHZ
#HE ZRGHE BREYA

- (5,000,000) =
- - 5,000,000
2,000,000 - 2,000,000
2,000,000 - 2,000,000

BREE (F
Period
during which
options are
Date exercisable
granted BRE
RABH PAL L
29 September 29 March 2004
2003 to25May 2013
Z%%=F ZEERE
AAZthB =R-tNBZ
Z2-Z%

il I it
29 September 29 September
2003 2004 to
25 May 2013
Z%%=F ZEERE
ARZtNRB NAZtAREZ
i)z I it
3 August 2006 3 August 2007
ZEERE 1025 May 2013
NR=H 2Rt
NA=HZ
IE-cf%
il); Il il
3 August 2006 3 August 2008
ZEENE 1025 May 2013
NA=H “TI\E
NA=RZ
IE-cf
il il
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Exercise
price
per share

SROEE

HK$0.296
#%0.297

HK$0.296
7%0.2067C

HKS0.85
085

HKS$0.85
%085

Market
value per
share at
date of

Market
value per
share on

grantof exercise of

options*
RERE
REAHZ
BRmE

HK$0.296
50,2967

HK$0.296
50,2967

HK$0.85
0857

HK$0.85
0857

options*

BRE
ik
SR E*

HK$0.99
%0997
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

No. of

options

outstanding

at the

beginning

of the year

£4

Directors WRTELZ
Bz BREHE

HuangChachua 5% 4,500,000

4,500,000

No. of

shares
No. of acquired on No. of
options  exercise options
granted  of options outstanding
during during atthe
theyear  theyear  yearend
FREH  FRfR 38
ZBRE BREEA HAGHZ
#HE ZRGHE BREYA

= - 4,500,000
= - 4,500,000
1,500,000 - 1,500,000
1,500,000 - 1,500,000
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BREE (F
Period
during which
options are
Date exercisable
granted EhE
RABH PAL L
29 September 29 March 2004
2003 t025May 2013
“%2%- ZERERE
NAZTHhA =AZthHE
Z2-Z%
il I it
29 September 29 September
2003 2004 to
Z%%= 25 May 2013
ABZ1hE “2EME
ARZTNRE
il I it
3 August 2006 3 August 2007
ZEERE 1025 May 2013
NR=H IERtE
NA=HZ
ZE-cf
ill; Il it
3 August 2006 3 August 2008
ZEERE 1025 May 2013
NA=H “TIN\E
NA=RZ
IE-cf
i il

Exercise
price
per share

SROEE

HK$0.296
#%0.297

HK$0.296
#%0.297

HKS0.85
%0857

HKS0.85
%0857

Market
value per
share at
date of

Market
value per
share on

grantof exercise of

options*
RERE
REAHZ
BRmE

HK$0.296
%0.2967T

HK$0.296
%0.2967T

HK$0.85
0857

HK$0.85
0857

options*

BRE
ik
SR E*
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

No. of

options

outstanding

at the

beginning

of the year

£4

Directors WRTEZ
Bz BREHE

Wong Kam Chung, ~ &35% 4,500,000
Raymond

4,500,000

No. of

shares
No. of acquired on No. of
options  exercise options
granted  of options outstanding
during during atthe
theyear  theyear  yearend
FREH  FRR 33
ZBRE BREEA HAGHZ
#HE ZRGHE BREYA

- (4500,000) =
= - 4,500,000
1,500,000 - 1,500,000
1,500,000 - 1,500,000

BREE (F
Period
during which
options are
Date exercisable
granted ERE
RABH PAL L
29 September 29 March 2004
2003 t025May 2013
“Z2%- ZERERE
AAZthB =R-tABZ
Z2-Z%
i)z I it
29 September 29 September
2003 2004 to
Z%%= 25 May 2013
AAZThA “2EME
ARZTNRE
i)z I il
3 August 2006 3 August 2007
ZEERE 1025 May 2013
NR=H 2Rt
NA=HZ
IE-cf%
il); Il il
3 August 2006 3 August 2008
ZEENE 1025 May 2013
NA=H “TI\E
NA=RZ
IE-cf
il il
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Exercise
price
per share

SROEE

HK$0.296
#%0.297

HK$0.296
7%0.2067C

HKS0.85
085

HKS$0.85
%085

Market
value per
share at
date of

Market
value per
share on

grantof exercise of

options*
RERE
REAHZ
BRmE

HK$0.296
50,2967

HK$0.296
7502967

HK$0.85
0857

HK$0.85
0857

options*

BRE
ik
SR E*

HK$0.99
%0997



Report of the Directors
EEERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) R ERTE (&
No. of
No. of shares
options No. of acquired on No. of
outstanding options  exercise options

at the granted  of options outstanding Period
beginning during during atthe during which
oftheyear  theyear  theyear  yearend options are
B)  EARY  ERAE g8 Date exercisable
Directors WATHEz ZBRE BREBA HAGH2 granted BRE
Bz BREHE #HE ZRGHE BREYA RABH PRI
Chen Shuang 3 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 29 September 29 March 2004
2003 t025May 2013
“%2%- “TIME
NAZTHhA =AZthHE
Z2-Z%
il I it
2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 29 September 29 September
2003 2004 to
Z%%= 25 May 2013
AA=tAR “2EME
ARZTNRE
il I it
- 500,000 - 500,000 3 August 2006 3 August 2007
ZEERE 1025 May 2013
NA=H “TRtE
NA=HZ
ZE-cf%
RAZTEA
- 500,000 - 500,000 3 August 2006 3 August 2008
ZEERE 1025 May 2013
NA=H ZETN\E
NA=RZE
ZE-cf
i =
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Exercise
price
per share

SROEE

HK$0.296
#%0.297

HK$0.296
#%0.297

HK$0.85
%0857

HKS$0.85
%0857

Market
value per
share at
date of

Market
value per
share on

grantof exercise of

options*
RERE
REAHZ
BRmE

HK$0.296
%0.2967T

HK$0.296
%0.2967T

HK$0.85
0,857

HK$0.85
0857

options*

BRE
ik
SR E*
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Report of the Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

No. of

options

outstanding

at the

beginning

of the year

£4

Directors WRTEZ
Bz BREHE

Zhang Weiyun KEn 2,000,000

2,000,000

No. of

shares
No. of acquired on No. of
options  exercise options
granted  of options outstanding
during during atthe
theyear  theyear  yearend
FREH  FRR 33
ZBRE BREEA HAGHZ
#HE ZRGHE BREYA

= - 2,000,000
= - 2,000,000
500,000 - 500,000
500,000 - 500,000

BREE (F
Period
during which
options are
Date exercisable
granted ERE
REAH PAL L
29 September 29 March 2004
2003 to25May 2013
—Z2%- ZEERE
AAZthB =R-tNBZ
Z2-Z%
il I it
29 September 29 September
2003 2004 to
Z%%= 25 May 2013
AAZThA —2EME
ARZTNRE
il I it
3 August 2006 3 August 2007
ZEERE 1025 May 2013
NR=H IERtE
NA=HZ
IE-cf
il); Il it
3 August 2006 3 August 2008
ZEERE 1025 May 2013
NA=H “IIN\E
NA=RZ
IE-cf
i il
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Exercise
price
per share

SROEE

HK$0.296
#%0.297

HK$0.296
7%0.2067C

HKS0.85
%085

HKS$0.85
%085

Market
value per
share at
date of

Market
value per
share on

grantof exercise of

options*
RERE
REAHZ
BRmE

HK$0.296
50,2967

HK$0.296
50,2967

HK$0.85
0,857

HK$0.85
0857

options*

BRE
ik
SR E*
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Report of the Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) R ERTE (&
No. of
No. of shares
options No. of acquired on No. of
outstanding options  exercise options

atthe granted  of options outstanding Period
beginning during during at the during which
oftheyear ~ theyear  theyear  yearend options are
B)  EARY  ERAE £4 Date exercisable
Directors WATHEz ZBRE BREBA HAGH2 granted BRE
Bz BREHR #R <HRHHE BREHE RABH PAL L
Sir David ERkET 500,000 - - 500,000 29 September 29 March 2004
Akers-Jones 2003 to25May 2013
“%2%- ZEERE
NAZTHhA =AZthHE
Z2-Z%
RA-THA
500,000 = - 500,000 29 September 29 September
2003 2004 to
Z%%= 25 May 2013
ABZthE “2EME
ARZTNRE
i)z e il
Li Kwok Sing, ZE2 500,000 - - 500,000 29 September 29 March 2004
Aubrey 2003 to25May 2013
“%2%- ZEERE
NAZTHhA =ZAZthHE
Z2-Z%
i)z I il
500,000 = - 500,000 29 September 29 September

2003 2004 to
-53= 25 May 2013
AAZtNAE “EERE
NAZTNRE

“g-cFf

AA-tEA

Annual Report 2006 —ZZXFEER

Exercise
price
per share

SROEE

HK$0.296
750,297

HK$0.296
#%0.297

HK$0.296
#%0.297

HK$0.296
#%0.297

Market
value per
share at
date of

Market
value per
share on

grantof exercise of

options*
RERE
REAHZ
gRm{E"

HK$0.296
%0.2967

HK$0.296
%0.2967T

HK$0.296
%0.2967T

HK$0.296
B0.2967T

options*
BRE
ik
BRHE
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Report of the Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

No. of
No. of shares
options No. of acquired on No. of
outstanding options  exercise options
atthe granted  of options outstanding
beginning during during atthe
oftheyear ~ theyear  theyear  yearend
B ERRY  ERAE 33
WAE: BRE BREBN HAORZ
BREHE #E ZRGHE BREYRA
Employees €& 3,000,000 -~ (3,000,000) =
3,000,000 - (1,700,000) 1,300,000
- 18,000,000 - 18,000,000
- 18,000,000 - 18,000,000
* being the weighted average closing price of the Company’s

ordinary shares immediately before the dates on which the

options were granted or exercised, where applicable.

94

BRESTE (=
Period
during which
options are
Date exercisable
granted BRE
REAH PAL L
29 September 29 March 2004
2003 t025May 2013
“%E- ZEERE
ARZthR  =RZfhAE
_E-cf
TA-tAR
29 September 29 September
2003 2004 to
2 25 May 2013
ABZthR “2EME
AAZThAZ
_E-cf
TA-tER
3 August 2006 3 August 2007
ZESRE 1025 May 2013
NR=H “TRtE
NB=R%
2-zf
RAZtEA
3 August 2006 3 August 2008
ZESRE 1025 May 2013
NR=H “TENE
NR=R%
2-zf
RA-tEA

Market
value per Market
shareat  value per
date of  share on
grant of  exercise of
Exercise  options*  options*
price  RERE BRE
pershare HEAHZ 7KL
BROEE SRTE* SRTE
HK$0.296  HK$0.296  HK$1.04
0206 A%0206m  AK104T
HK$0.206  HK$0.296  HK$1.04
A6 A%0206m  AK104T
HK$0.85  HK$0.85 -
AB0ST AR08
HK$0.85  HK$0.85 -
AB0ST AR08

* AR R A EBREZEBRER L ST (RE
JEFE) BB DIk FIGHLTTE -
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The options granted to the directors are registered under the
names of the directors who are also the beneficial owners.
Information on the accounting policy for share options granted
and the weighted average value per option is provided in
note 1(q)(ii) and note 30 to the financial statements
respectively.

No share option was lapsed or cancelled during the year
ended 31 December 2006.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF CEL

As at 31 December 2006, two directors of the Company had
the following interests in options to subscribe for shares of
CEL, which was granted under the share option scheme of
CEL.

No. of options
outstanding No. of options

fEREERTE (B)

RYIEFZBBRENIAEEZ2HERER MKEF
NREZHEA-FHCRLBREZ SHEE
K BB 2 It A (EE 2 B R D BIERN A
BHREMTE—(q)(i) R E=—-

BE_ZTRFT_A=T—HBILEER KE
BB R AT 8

KRR 2 B2
R_EEXRNF+_A=1+—"8 RXAARBESE

B THIRB e R AR AT 819X H PT SR BB
RIER R AD 2 B it o

atthe outstanding

beginning at the

of the year year end

FHNEHRTE FRAERTE

ZBREHRE cBRERE

Wang Mingquan TRk 3,000,000 3,000,000
1,920,000 1,920,000

Chen Shuang PR 750,000 750,000
1,280,000 1,280,000

Annual Report 2006

Period during Exercise
Date which options price per
granted exercisable share
i A BEREZTESR BRITEE
7 July 2003 8 July 2004 HK$2.375
—TE=F to 7 January 2007  B#2.3757T
+tAtR —EEEFLANBE
—ZET+F—-H+H
3 May 2005 4 May 2006 HK$2.85
“TThF to 3 May 2010  &®2.8570
A=A Z—EERFLAMBAZE
—E-FTFhH=H
3 September 4 September 2005 HK$3.225
2004 to 3 March 2008  %&%3.2257T
—TTWF —ZTThF
AA=H NAMAZE
—ZEZN\F=H=H
3 May 2005 4 May 2006 HK$2.85
“TThF to 3 May 2010  &®2.8570
A=A —ETREF
TAMBEZE
—F-TFHA=A
—EEREER
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF CEL (continued)

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors or chief executive of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

The Company has been notified of the following interests in
the Company’s issued shares at 31 December 2006
amounting to 5% or more of the ordinary shares in issue:

China Everbright Holdings
Company Limited (“CEH”") (Note)

Note: Out of the 1,758,595,910 shares, 1,758,215,910 shares are
held by Guildford Limited (“Guildford”). Guildford is owned
as to 55% by Datten Investments Limited (“Datten”) and the
remaining 45% by CEH. Datten is wholly-owned by CEH.
The remaining 380,000 shares are held by Everbright
Investment & Management Limited (“EIM”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CEH. Accordingly, CEH is deemed to be
interested in the 1,758,215,910 shares held by Guildford and
the 380,000 shares held by EIM.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests required to be
recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the SFO
have been notified to the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the
Company as at the date of this annual report, the Company
has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing
Rules.

PENAREEBR AR
(exs®]) (Kat)

KRERZBRETE (B)

fr EX ATt ESN EARFENERER ARF)-
HAEAZER AR KB QR R R B A R I &
SEREMLZH REARRZEFHEIETHRA
BAREBEEAARMEARMAABEBZ RDK
B MBS -

FERRRE AT RS RAAERD
RHER 2 EERRE

ARBBEER-BBAET A=+ —AHEA
DRIBBATR 2 2% B RITEBAE% A
EZBRMT:

Long position Percentage of total

in ordinary issued shares
shares held LEEHE BT
FRERERYR RHBBE D

1,758,595,910 approximately 57.17%

A57.17%

HfaE: 1,758,595, 910k MpAh - HAF
1,758,215,910/% 75 Guildford Limited
([Guildford]) # % °Guildford JhfDatten
Investments Limited ([Datten) # & 55%/%
- E8245% Bl X R EE R -Datten 8% K
EE 2 2E B AR H#2:380,0008% Al H A
EEC2EMBARINAREEEFRAR]
(MEXIEEBTE]) FHE MUt R AEERRA
%A Guildford T34 2 1,758,215,9108% i %
R ARIEEEIRFTRE 2 380,000 i 15

B £ PRt &SN AR RN BIERA H it /R RC
BMKIREE 77 R B R PI £ 336 1% F B 2 B el
W2 Rzt

RANABRIERE
BEARR ARG ZER URAADAES
FTAL AAREE SR S B 8 D R R TR BT

MEZRRIFTIE-
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Company, or any of
its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was
a party, and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the
Company and the Group as at 31 December 2006 are set
out in notes 25 and 28 to the financial statements.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages
247 and 248 of the annual report.

PROPERTIES

Particulars of the major properties of the Group are shown
on pages 249 and 250 of the annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Company provides retirement benefits to all local eligible
employees under an approved defined contribution provident
fund (“the ORSO Scheme”). The ORSO Scheme is
administered by trustees, the majority of which are
independent, with its assets held separately from those of
the Company. The ORSO Scheme is funded by contributions
from employees and employers at 5% each based on the
monthly salaries of employees. Forfeited contribution may
be used to reduce the existing level of contribution by the
Company.

EERNE kR

RS R SANE R RERRRE AR R B
NN =N A =N v S IRvARRC]
ARBEEHEAEANGEZBERH-

RITERRAEMESR

ARBARAEER -_ZTERF+_A=T—"RHZ
RITERNEMEEFTENP B REME =T
ERZ+Ne

LFEREHME

AEEBEREMBRFEZRENEERR G
RENFRF_ANTEAERFE_ANO+N\R-

CYE S

AEBZ T EVEFBIENERE _BUNTNE
FE—_BRTEH-

RIKETE

ARFERBEARMAE BRERRTERA ERAM
KoEE ([BRERFTENRPIGHE]]) -BEERIK
FHEIRBIFHEIBEFEA (REMD ABULETEAN) B
B-HEEREARRZEESHRA -RBENEE
VAR ARG ERPIFH B3 2R RER
HA#HI5% o SRH KA BIER A A RIR B AR

Z R
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EFERE

RETIREMENT SCHEMES (continued)

As from 1 December 2000, the Group also operates a
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously
covered by the ORSO Scheme. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$20,000. Contributions
to the plan vest immediately.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of the retirement schemes operated by the local authorities.
The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to these schemes to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to these
schemes is the required contributions under the schemes.

The Group’s total contributions to these schemes charged to
income statement during the year ended 31 December 2006
amounted to HK$2,971,000.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers all the independent non-executive directors to be
independent.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment. A resolution for the reappointment of KPMG
as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board

Wang Mingquan
Chairman
Hong Kong, 22 March 2007

RIKEHE (F)

BE-TETF+ AR AEEMREEH
wH M A EEBGN AX BB EBRIIEER
RERBRERZRAFTENEPIFEIN 2 BEERE
HRbE LB e ([RERAE]) eERst
2 REBUEFEABE 2 ERHTURING IR
EREEE S EBEREES B AR SIH #
REREEFBARZS% BEARETA LRA
7B #20,0007T - [AET EIE L 2 BB 52 B A B
Affe

BB AR BB IS EE BT ER ZRIK
AE-REMBARARBIFEZETADL
[ EEt B E R -t F EIM S ARE 2
i — B ERRIFILF L PR 4R

AEERBE—TTREFT _A=t—HLFE

AE I E T2 FTE 2 Bt 8 A B 2,971,000
o WE ARREBREKR A

BIUMERE
RNAREEESBYIFNTESRE ETREIE

SABMEMBEZ B ML 2 ERE AN A
RAEERBEY IR TEEHBE -

A

EHHEMEBAERSRLMAEEEE T
ARBRRENKRITERBFERE LIZ2 B
EFEE N EH I RAR AR B RER

AEESMm
T AR
FE

e —ETLF=A-+_H

China Everbright International Limited FE ¥ K BB AR 2 7



Report of the Auditors
BHERE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA EVERBRIGHT

INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Everbright International Limited (“the Company”) set
out on pages 101 to 246, which comprise the consolidated
and Company balance sheets as at 31 December 2006, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

FPBAKRBEBRRRATZTRR
B BT R E

(REBZME LA BRAA])

AAZERE AT [P EERZTINE —BE
—EEF ANt NEARTEXABBRARA
Al ([EAR]) ERE MK iR A MEHRR
BER_ZEERNFT_A=T—HANGEEESR
Bxk BERARMEERBREBEZALFE
MR EaR GARSEPIRNGEARERE

FAREBZ S BRI E MBI AR

EERMBHRRARENSRE

BEAREEEABRESERHMARE G
(BB HREEAND REE (A TGO RRRE
BMARIFIEGA M RE BEEOERE
B M SRR L B U T A4 MV 3R & BT
BEEMONBER HEEANBERTER
fE A S S T B EA S SRR 1R
YRR E B B AR BRI &3
Yt fhate

RBENEE

ZANEETRRERMABTRTENGR HiKa
IEHRIBH B R WIZREE (R REH) 141
EREVARTE - (2[R EE BB AR R & - BRI A SN B APIRY
BEETABIEEMBR - RAMAIRARES
MRS HEREM AT BB RABERERE-
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&% Report of the Auditors
- BRHERE

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2006 and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

22 March 2007

BMERBEEESHMASRMNEEETER
EITEZ LR BRI FIE T BIERE WA
S RATER NAEREFREVBRRES T
FHEEAERERRL

BIZF RAITIEFF ATEINE B4R & I TS R T8
TELRBEENNELRE -FIEENRRFIUR
IRAZERED B 217 - B FERT (S R EREF SR R T 8
iR A M MR TFAERNBERRA A ER R
HZERRE ZBMEEEEZARRULE
BEMA A MI RS P RERABEO A FBEE
UEREHEE MEZREF B IERE AR
NEEENMEERRBER BN BRIEES
PR ESER S BIE R EL & HhET
AN AN ERS M RRNERSIHR
Ho

HIFIRE BIFIFMER TR LT R M}
R TYESERET AR

[
i3

=== E,
TN

BMR R LR a BRI RIEF BV R

SEMEEM AMRER ERFNR BEXER
“EERFT A=+ BB EE

BEREZALFENBNERERE LD IER
BRARANGH) ZEREL

ERARIHAERH
BB AT
BB

ETE 5
AFRENE

—EEL+F=H_+_H
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HERER

For the year ended 31 December 2006 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Consolidated Income Statement

HE—EEAFL+-A=+—-HIULFE (LB¥HH)

Turnover

Direct costs and operating expenses

Other revenue
Other income
Administrative expenses

Valuation gains on investment properties

Profit from operations

Finance costs

Share of profits of associates

Profit before taxation

Income tax

Profit for the year

ERE
BEERMRARRE

R

i

/

R

H At d ot
HAHA
THEM
RENEGHERR

FTIBEE AR BF

BRB AT B A

TS

AEERF

A

Note
et

3& 13

14

5(a)

7(a)
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2006 2005
BERE —TTRF
(restated)
(E#H)
$°000 $000
Fir Fr
235,859 132,855
(71,645) (39,332)
164,214 93,523
26,016 12,413
353,964 -
(92,103) (55,284)
5,831 25,230
457,922 75,882
(52,631) (32,090)
405,291 43,792
32,658 68,045
437,949 111,837
(9,899) 11,037
428,050 122,874
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Consolidated Income Statement
SeER%

For the year ended 31 December 2006 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-—SEANF+-A=1—HLEFE (UEBEGE)

2006 2005
—BERF —ETHEF
(restated)
(EHR)
Note $’000 $000
fiteE Fr Fr
Attributable to: FE(LER 47
Equity shareholders of the Company RARIRE 10 & 31 409,347 106,808
Minority interests PER R = 31 18,703 16,066
Profit for the year REFRF 31 428,050 122,874
Dividends payable to equity B FARDRRE
shareholders of the Company ZEEERES:
attributable to the year: 11
Interim dividend declared during FABRERFHRE
the year 18,371 15,311
Final dividend proposed after EERERZDIK
the balance sheet date REAIR B 18,456 15,311
Special dividend proposed after EERERZDIK
the balance sheet date RIS 12,304
49,131 30,622
Earnings per share BREF 12
Basic HAR 14.15 centsfl 4.19 centsfll
Diluted s 13.85 centsfl 4.13 centsfll

The notes on pages 115 to 246 form part of these financial statements.

FNE-B - +REEF_ANTANAEZHERLEUBRR 2 —BH-
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& Consolidated

Balance Sheet

At 31 December 2006 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R-EEANF+ZA=1+—H (UEBEFE)

Non-current assets

Fixed assets

— Investment properties

— Other property, plant and
equipment

— Interest in leasehold land
held under operating
leases

Intangible assets
Goodwill

Interest in associates
Other financial assets
Finance lease receivables
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Debtors, other receivables,
deposits and prepayments

Finance lease receivables

Pledged bank deposits

Deposits with bank

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Secured bank loans

Amount due to minority
shareholder

Creditors, other payables
and accrued expenses

Current taxation

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities carried forward

Note
i
FkRBEE
BE&E 14(a)
- REYE
—Hin4-
&
- BEBELERE
FEZHE
T iR
BRERE 15
RS 16
R NEIR 18
HB s EE 19

BEMEEEUA 20

EREHIBEE 29(b)
REBEE
FE 21

JE U BR 5K - L At FE UK
FIEEE RTEM A 22
AT E W ke 20
BEKIFRITER 23
RITFER
ReRkREEED 24

REBAE

BEBRTER 25
FEfF L A% R

P/ 26
R ER SN e
RERETER 27
REFI IR 29(a)

REBEERE

BREERME
BEER

2006

—BRAE

$°000 $°000

Fr Fr

168,308

1,209,741

242,583

1,620,632

66,412

48,318

442

62,976

789,177

18,625

2,606,582
3,445
123,319
14,643
99,314
10,909
756,763
1,008,393
88,448
586
538,445
1,515
628,994

379,399

2,985,981
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$'000
T

109,023
2,384
89,197
907
408,566

2005
—ZTTLF
(restated)
(EH)

$'000

FT

262,194

1,031,827

76,045

1,370,066
34,433
48,236

413,304
51,931
131,701
16,433

2,066,104

333,918

2,400,022
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

At 31 December 2006 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R-BEANFFL-ZA=+—H (KEB¥E)

2006
—ETXRE
Note $°000 $°000
i Fr Fr
Total assets less current #BAEERKE
liabilities brought forward £ && &) 2,985,981
Non-current liabilities *RBEE
Secured bank loans BEBETER 25 802,584
Loans from ultimate holding & 4232 i% A 7]
company =4 28 98,828
Deferred tax liabilities EREHIEAE 29(b) 26,276
927,688
NET ASSETS EEEH 2,058,293
CAPITAL AND RESERVES A K fi# & 31(a)
Share capital g 7K 307,601
Reserves &t 1,633,737
Total equity attributable to &2 TR R E1L
equity shareholders of EEAHE
the Company 1,941,338
Minority interests DERRER 116,955
TOTAL EQUITY R 2,058,293

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 March 2007.
EEEN _TELE- R+ ARAERFTES

Chen Xiaoping Philip Fan Yan Hok
R/ BI-H

Director Director

EEd EEd

The notes on pages 115 to 246 form part of these financial statements.
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$'000
T

572,016

535,628

21,163

2005
—ZTTLF
(restated)
(E#H)

$'000

FT

2,400,022

1,128,807

1,271,215

255,181
923,154

1,178,335

92,880

1,271,215



At 31 December 2006 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

% Balance sheet

R-FBERFLZA=+—H (KBHHE)

Non-current assets

Property, plant and
equipment

Interest in subsidiaries

Investment in associate

Other financial assets

Current assets

Other receivables, deposits
and prepayments

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Secured bank loans

Other payables and
accrued expenses

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Secured bank loans

Loans from ultimate
holding company

NET ASSETS

FRBEE

nE -BE
B3]

bt B8 A Rl #E 25

BERRRE

HMMHEE

REBEE

H Al e YRR
me REMNRE
RehReEEY

RBAE
BEMRRITER
H At FE A 3R B
et & A

RBEEFHE

BEEWM
RBAE

kRBEME
AEMBTER
BRI A 7
EX

EERH
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Note
k=3

14(b)
17
18
19

24

25

25

28

$°000

Fr

39,826
332,270

372,096

24,107

2006

—RTAE

$°000
FT

1,727
1,451,949

13,649

1,467,325

312,545

1,779,870

24,107

1,755,763

$'000
TT

30,536

440,480

2005
—ZERF
$°000

T

1,314
978,225
205,199

13,649

1,198,387

183,644

1,382,031

471,016

911,015
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Balance sheet
BEBER

At 31 December 2006 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R-BEANFFL-ZA=+—H (KEB¥E)

2006
—EEXRE
Note $’000 $°000
fff i Fr Fr

CAPITAL AND RESERVES R A K f# 15 31(b)
Share capital P 7K 307,601
Reserves &t 1,448,162
TOTAL EQUITY EEEEHE 1,755,763

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 March 2007.
EEeR T+ E=-A -+ -_ARERFAET

Chen Xiaoping Philip Fan Yan Hok
R /N IR

Director Director

EZ EFE

The notes on pages 115 to 246 form part of these financial statements.
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$'000
T

2005
—ZEERF
$°000

T

255,181
655,834

911,015



GEEREZHYR

For the year ended 31 December 2006 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_STEANF+-A=+—HLFE (KE¥:E)

Note $’000
fif i F
Total equity at 1 January: R—B—HBZEZHEHE:
As previously reported: WA 2
- attributable to equity N1
shareholders of the JE& 16 BB 17
Company 31 1,176,857
— minority interests —LERRER 31 92,328
1,269,185
Prior period adjustments SBEES
arising from change in PT B8 2 Al HA
accounting policy B 31 2,030
As restated BEER 31
Net income recognised EERERER
directly in equity: ZWARE:
Share of exchange reserves F{h B & 2 &)
of associates BE A4 31
Exchange differences on MEME QA
translation of financial A= l/NE] ﬁﬂx
statements of subsidiaries HEXELZ
and associates fE 5 =5 31
Changes in fair value of HEESFLONE
available-for-sale securities 2 & ) 31
Net income for the year BEERERER
recognised directly in ZARFEFERA
equity carried forward FEER

Annual Report 2006 —ZZXFEER

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

$°000
FT

1,271,215

5,088

48,517

26,129

79,734

$'000
FT

1,076,280

3,194

1,079,474

2005
—ETREF
(restated)
(E#H)

$'000

FT

1,079,474

9,598

8,868

8,811

27,277
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BE_SEANFT-A=1+—HIFE (MBEHNEHE)

Net income for the year
recognised directly
in equity brought forward

Net profit for the year:

As previously reported:

— attributable to equity
shareholders of the
Company

— minority interests

Prior period adjustments
arising from change in
accounting policy

Net profit for the year
(2005: as restated)

Exchange reserve realised
on disposal of associate
Transfer from fair value
reserve to profit or
loss on disposal of

available-for-sale securities

Total recognised income

and expenses for the year

(2005: as restated)

ERNESHER
ZARERRA
H BEAACH

rEERBA:

k

T2
S NG §:
FEfh E8 10

n

am|

- L ERRES

B HEE
B B2 146
B

AFEFR
(Z2F1F:
EEH)

HEBEAT
EEPA TR

HEFEERE
D5 EEH
BEz
B

FEEEBRIRA
ERXARE

Note
k=3

2(a)(i)

2(a)(i)

2(a)(i) &
31

31

31

(C2ZLF . BEER)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEHEREEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2006 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2006 2005
=t “TTR%F
(restated)
(E8])
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
T F 7 Tz T
79,734 27277
105,330
15,514
120,844
2,030
428,050 122,874
(14,269) _
(4,122) _
489,393 150,151

China Everbright International Limited B} KBEERER A A



For the year ended 31 December 2006 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_STEANF+-A=+—HLFE (KE¥:E)

Attributable to:
- equity shareholders of
the Company
— minority interests

Dividends declared:
- by the Company to
equity shareholders
- by non-wholly owned
subsidiary to minority
shareholder

Movements in equity
arising from capital
transactions with equity
shareholders of the
Company:

- shares issued under
share option scheme

— issue of ordinary shares

- Equity-settled
share-based
transactions

Note
i

PR D -
— KRR AIRE

— BB RES

ERKE:
—ARAXMTF
R
—2EMBLF
XNTFLH
R

BEAARKRE
ETEERRS
MEEZED
BE:

—IREERER S

#11RAD 31
—BIEARKR 31
— AR 19 A+

2B

X5 31

Annual Report 2006 —ZZXFEER

464,732
24,661

489,393

(33,682)

(586)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEHEREHR

2006
EER

$°000 $'000

Fr SFE

131,771

18,380

150,151

(30,604)

(575)
___(34,268)
4,203
321,723
6,027
331,953

2005
—ETREF
(restated)

(E#)
$'000
FT

888

109



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2006 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-—SEANF+-A=1—HLEFE (UEBEGE)

2006
—gEA
Note $°000 $°000
ft i Fr Fr
Movements in equity FE2EMRBELTF
arising from transactions EEDVERER
between non-wholly ETRS
owned subsidiaries and MmMEE£Z
their minority BRgE:
shareholders:
Capital contribution F2EWB
received by non-wholly 2 7] I ER
owned subsidiaries from DHERR
minority shareholders e gt - -
Total equity at R+=-—HA=+—-Hz2
31 December R 31 2,058,293
Restatements of total TH&FERN
recognised income and EEECER
expense for the year WARBX
are attributable to: ERAE:
— equity shareholders of —KRAARE
the Company
— minority interests —LERRER
Arising from restatement of EBRAFEEF A
net profit for the year FTE%

The notes on pages 115 to 246 form part of these financial statements.

FNE-—B - +REEF AN+ NAEZHERLEUBRR 2 —BH-

110 China Everbright International Limited FEIX ABIERER A A

$'000
FT

2005
—ETREF
(restated)

(E#)
$'000
FT

1,271,215

1,478
552

2,030

2,030



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
SEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2006 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_STEANF+-A=+—HLFE (KE¥:E)

2006 2005
—B2REF —ETREF
(restated)
(E#H)
Note $’000 $'000
fff i Fi FIr
Operating activities RETER
Profit before taxation 3 B 2 7 437,949 111,837
Adjustments for: R
- Valuation gains on investment —REMEME
properties B (5,831) (25,230)
- Depreciation e 23,636 18,464
— Amortisation of land lease premium  — Tt & & &4 4,651 283
— Amortisation of intangible assets — B EESH 1,485 115
- Finance costs —-BBER 52,631 32,090
— Dividend income from listed securities — & & % &% B U A (3,149) =
- Dividend income from unlisted —FEMEBEHRE
securities WA (1,677) (1,135)
— Interest income —F B WA (17,612) (9,072)
— Share of profits of associates —FrhEE AR B F (32,658) (68,045)
— Profit on sale of associate —HEBE QAR (310,000) =
- Profit on sale of investment properties — &R E W £ B F (16,083) -
- Net loss/(gain) on sale of - HERTEEEMSG
fixed assets BB/ () 8 847 (587)
— Profit on sale of available-for-sale -~ HEREESH
securities Z B (11,542) -
- Equity-settled share-based payment —BRHDIFZ2BREAR S
expenses 53 6,027 -
— Excess of interest in fair value of — W 2 A Rl
acquiree’s identifiable assets, BE -BERK
liabilities and contingent liabilities BEREBZARE
over the cost of a business BREBEHZ
combination KA E (16,339) =
- Foreign exchange loss —EXEE 18,111 2,304
Operating profit before changes in 2 E&E£#8a 2
working capital carried forward REBNEE 130,446 61,024
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
SEBHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2006 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-—SEANF+-A=1—HLEFE (UEBEGE)

2006 2005
ZEEXRE —“ZTThEF
(restated)
(E#H)
Note $’000 $'000
fit i Fr FT
Operating profit before changes in 2 E&E£#8a 2
working capital brought forward 5 B R A& EY 130,446 61,024
Increase in inventories FEEM (3,445) -
(Increase)/decrease in debtors, JE LT B 5K - EL b FE MR IE
other receivables, deposits and B RBHNHKE
prepayments (m) ,/md (11,429) 10,011
Increase/(decrease) in amount due to & D B R XA
minority shareholder #m,/ Cd) 11 (7,387)
Increase in creditors, other payables — FEftBR 70~ EH fth /& (218
and accrued expenses R e & R E N 52,823 34,235
Cash generated from operations REEEVESE 168,406 97,883
Interest received B UWF & 17,612 9,072
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) BEfRFEARLNE
income tax paid ([HE])REH (7,470) (2,610)
Net cash generated from operating K& ZBHE4LZ
activities RE&FE 178,548 104,345

112 China Everbright International Limited B} AEBIEER A &



GEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2006 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE—EEAFL+-A=+—-HIULFE (LB¥HH)

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Note
fit i

Investing activities REED
Payment for the purchase of BEETEEZ

fixed assets I
Repayment of finance lease B & M 8 Wk

receivables BER
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets & Bl E & E T8 3B
Increase in pledged bank deposits BRI FFIE
(Increase)/decrease in deposits RITFR

with bank () /my
Payment for purchase of business, BEXK XA

net of cash acquired (M KERERSE) 33
Proceed from sale of associate & Bt & 1 AT 1S BB
Dividend received from associate BlEE QAR S
Dividend received from listed securities B U £ & %8 &
Dividend received from unlisted B3k FT R

securities ik B
Proceeds from sale of other financial HEEMEPKEE

assets P15 318
Net cash generated from/(used in) REZEHEL,/ (FR)

investing activities ZEEFE

Annual Report 2006 —ZZXFEER

2006 2005
—EERE —ETRF
(restated)
(E®R)
$°000 $°000
F Fr
(632,449) (370,449)
6,486 968
119,835 2,845
(10,117) (82,285)
(10,002) 4947
(119,305) (99,883)
657,708 -
88,632 99,818
323 -
1,677 1,135
25,330 -
128,118 (442,904)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2006 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-—SEANF+-A=1—HLEFE (UEBEGE)

Note
fff i
Financing activities MEED
Proceeds from new bank loans MR ITESRAEHIE
Repayment of bank loans EERITER
Repayment of loans from ultimate BRERKERDA
holding company =5
Capital contributions received by FEENBAA
non-wholly owned subsidiaries from WA R R
minority shareholders HE
Proceeds from shares issued RIRERAERT 81T
under share option scheme IR 17 BT 15 508
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares %77 %@ W% FT /8 2B
Interest paid EENEIESS
Dividend paid to equity shareholders 2 "2 &) B& 3 A% &
of the Company
Dividend paid to minority shareholder 2 f+ 4 8% B % &
Net cash generated from METDELEZ
financing activities BReRE
Net increase/(decrease) in cash BeRESZEEY
and cash equivalents #m/ (Bd) B8
Cash and cash equivalents at R—B—BzE$
1 January RESZEEY
Effect of foreign exchange Exgmss
rates changes
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=ZA=+—-H=Z2
31 December ReRALEEY 24

The notes on pages 115 to 246 form part of these financial statements.
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2006 2005
—EERE —ETRF
(restated)

(E®R)

$°000 $°000
Fr Frr
306,830 328,971
(49,319) (88,735)
(440,480) (9,425)
- 24,277

4,203 888
321,723 -
(70,445) (50,853)
(33,682) (30,604)
(586) (575)
38,244 173,944
344,910 (164,615)
408,566 572,358
3,287 823
756,763 408,566




1.

Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“the Listing Rules”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the

Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note 2 provides
information on the changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group for the current and prior accounting

periods reflected in these financial statements.

— FESTHE

(a) BFEH

HEMBRRERRE LS AEHE
Mz BEREENHREEL ([F
BYBRELER]) LR EEMEE
ROEBN(EEMHREEL) (B
BEER) ([FEETER]) k&
B ZELRETRAUREE(RAE
1) 2 3R E MARSL AN W FEHF MK
e BRELMA R HAERARES
EFARA (T EMRAL) FERA R E
BE - AKEFRA RS HRE
EHEINI T

FRGRTENAGRM TH TR L&
R BBUBRELER BHELENBAR
SEMARBNA G HIREFRSR R
AR BT ER A o AN R BB A & 5T R
B ARVIGER B AR E B2
] RSIERT BB MRS ERIME R
S HRES 2 FEC RN TERE
o L E B SR I SR — A
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —. FE&xEE (&)

(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

(b) HBHRERERE

statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2006 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries and the Group’s interest in

associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the following assets and liabilities are
stated at their fair value as explained in the

accounting policies set out below:

— investment property (see note 1(g)); and

— financial instruments classified as available-for-

sale securities (see note 1(f)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

BE—TTRF+_A=1T—HLFE
ZIREMBERREEARR RENMNBL
ARG E B2 QA

AT MR TRA A EREEREL
A ETIIEERBEAAAAE
SR (FER XX ST BURFTEEE) BRSM:

— REWE(BME—(9) &

— SEAFEEAZESBMIA (RK
Z—(f) e

REUETTABBUBREER 2T
WRFBEEIREELHIE - AEt RRR

% E FE B RRREFEBRL
FER NP EEMAE WA KA
XEHR- R EHA RBERBRRIRE
BELR R EEBRERZEBR T
BREZSEREMARSEEMEL"
FTSAERBREEE R B AIRAEICE
KIRMSHANEENBEZREEME
HifEr 2 EE-BERHFHEERINMGE
At

China Everbright International Limited FE ¥ K BB AR 2 7



Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

(c)

statements (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and

future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect

on the financial statements are discussed in note 40.

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In
assessing control, potential voting rights that

presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of

impairment.

— EEEFEE ()

(b) MBHRRMHEEE (47)

(c)

REE B PTVEMET AR RR L
M- gEH bt 2 B EBEREEH A
BREgHAFT#E BN E BRI Z
HEHETE S EE R AR R
A BRAgHhTT BN E B RIARE
FEIRER o

BIEEEEAE BN HRE R AT

B BERERBEARTE 2 At
M EE +e

MEARRDBRRER
MBAR SRR 2 BB -NAE
BEREEZEB U REERE
VA B B R A IR s B - BIF A - 10
AHAE TR BRERS - A St IR B A TT(E 2 7B
ERERE

RIBRR 2 RE S B1EHIF%E B HiE
BHARRGE M BRRA BEEEHIE
REB|R/IL-EEANRFE 2 HEHR R
SINEREARBIE 2R BEE 2 EA
RERENNRELR S M RREFER
HH- I LR AR R EEARF]
B2 XX P FEL 2 RERERANRIRR
W 2 R e
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c) Subsidiaries and minority interests

(continued)

Minority interests represent the portion of the net
assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests that
are not owned by the Company, whether directly or
indirectly through subsidiaries, and in respect of
which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would
result in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that meets
the definition of a financial liability. Minority interests
are presented in the consolidated balance sheet
within equity, separately from equity attributable to
the equity shareholders of the Company. Minority
interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated income statement
as an allocation of the total profit or loss for the year
between minority interests and the equity

shareholders of the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the
minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the
excess, and any further losses applicable to the
minority, are charged against the Group’s interest
except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation to, and is able to, make additional
investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary
subsequently reports profits, the Group’s interest is
allocated all such profits until the minority’s share
of losses previously absorbed by the Group has

been recovered.

— TEEFEE (&

(c) MBRARARDBRRER (&)

DERER IR IFRM AR R EE K
BREBNBAREA 2B
B2 EEME MAKERE U EZ
fem i A AR NG B
SEER FHZERaELTEMEA
EEE EEERG LBBRERSHE
FABERBRZERART HAR
BIRGR Z (b 0 2 e 8
RATERERE 2 s ERAEE
RPIWERARR DB RERRFIK
RZEHFERBEEED I

i L B R A 2 B IR AR B A S HT /8
NI #E - FRRR AR (D R (AT A
PR EIRE RSB AT
e MO BRRBANRN 2B
K A BE 11 H RN & 4 B 1R B bR
SheMtB AR Z A RRBNIGEHEC
FAREE BEEWRE AT RSB AR
ZLBBREIEBERRLL-
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries and minority interests
(continued)

Loans from holders of minority interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
balance sheet in accordance with notes 1(n) or (0)

depending on the nature of the liability.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in
a subsidiary is stated at cost less any impairment
losses (see note 1(k)), unless the investment is

classified as held for sale.

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy

decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the
equity method and is initially recorded at cost and
adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change
in the Group’s share of the associate’s net assets,
unless it is classified as held for sale. The
consolidated income statement includes the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the associates for the year, including any
impairment loss on goodwill relating to the
investments in associates recognised for the year

(see notes 1(e) and (k)).

— EEEFEE ()
(c) MBRARARLBRRER (&)

(d)

LB RESREAZER N EMARE
ZERBAZANRET NEAEER
BRBIEMEE—(n)Z(o) RFAEBME
mE) JAMBaE-

ERRBZEERBRA RHTERF
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Associates (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate, the Group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal and constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate. For this
purpose, the Group’s interest in the associate is the
carrying amount of the investment under the equity
method together with the Group’s long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net

investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associate, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

In the Company’s balance sheet, its investments in
associates are stated at cost less impairment losses
(see note 1(k)), unless it is classified as held for

sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —. FE=:BE (&
(continued)

(e) Goodwill (e) BE

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a
business combination or an investment in an
associate over the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities

and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 1(k)). In respect of associates,
the carrying amount of goodwill is included in the

carrying amount of the interest in the associate.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of a business
combination or an investment in an associate is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

On disposal of a cash-generating unit or an
associate during the year, any attributable amount
of purchased goodwill is included in the calculation

of the profit or loss on disposal.

Also in accordance with the transitional
arrangements under HKFRS 3, goodwill which had
previously been taken directly to reserves
(i.e. goodwill which arose before 1 January 2001)
will not be recognised in profit or loss on disposal
or impairment of the acquired business, or under

any other circumstances.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for
investments in equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries and associates, are as

follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated
at cost, which is their transaction price unless fair
value can be more reliably estimated using valuation
techniques whose variables include only data from
observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise
below. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their

classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are
classified as current assets. Any attributable
transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred. At each balance sheet date the fair value
is remeasured, with any resulted gain or loss being

recognised in profit or loss.

Investment in equity securities that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured are
recognised in the balance sheet at cost less

impairment losses (see note 1(k)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

(9)

Other investments in equity securities
(continued)

Investments in securities which do not fall into any
of the above categories are classified as available-
for-sale securities. At each balance sheet date the
fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognised directly in equity. When these
investments are derecognised or impaired (see note
1(k)), the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit

or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the
date the Group commits to purchase/sell the

investments.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
(see note 1(j)) to earn rental income and/or for

capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated in the balance
sheet at fair value. Any gain or loss arising from a
change in fair value or from the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognised in
profit or loss. Rental income from investment

properties is accounted for as described in note

1(t)(iv).

()

(9)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h) Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment are stated in
the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(k)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located, and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads and
borrowing costs (see note 1(v)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

— toll bridge is depreciated on an units-of-usage
basis which is based on the actual traffic
volume for a particular period over the
projected total traffic volume throughout the
periods for which the Group is granted the right
to operate the bridge. The projected total traffic
volume is based on independent professional
traffic studies. It is a Group policy to compare
the yearly actual traffic volume with the
projected traffic volume. Appropriate
adjustments will be made should actual volume
be materially different from that projected;

(h)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —. FE&EE (&)

(continued)
(h) Other property, plant and equipment (h) Ett%E-BmERRE (&)
(continued)
-~ buildings situated on leasehold land are — fURHEELHMz EEFIIIRHE
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the BRI HEFHRMGFAIFERAF
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their B (BNsEpk B ERRET A+ 2 A)
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 (ABREERE) MEFETE:

years after the date of completion;

—  other fixed assets are depreciated on a — EHEMEEBEENE NYGEAIE
straight-line basis over their estimated useful RFBRAERENE:

lives as follows:

Toll bridge ancillary facilites 5 to 10 years WERRNERE AETE
Leasehold improvements 10 years or over HEMZEEE TELFIBRZ
the remaining term MEFH
of the lease, ESES
if shorter BE)
Furniture and fixtures 5to 10 years BRREE AZ+F
Motor vehicles, electronic 3to 12 years BT ZEFCF
equipment and other REMEEEE

fixed assets

No depreciation is provided in respect of FREIRBYTRTE-

construction in progress.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and E—IEYE BEEEEZ & B E TR
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of AI{E A ET ILIE B B3 2 AR S 1B
the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between ER i mEBnEERERIFTE - EE 2]
the parts and each part is depreciated separately. FRFHEEF®RER (WER) 2 5FETT
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, et e

if any, are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

@)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated in the balance sheet at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
(see note 1(k)). Expenditure on internally generated
goodwill and brands is recognised as an expense

in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of waste-water treatment concession
rights is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives of 25 to 30
years. Both the period and method of amortisation

are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes

the legal form of a lease.

(i)  Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as being held under finance leases. Leases
which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases, with the

following exception:
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group
(continued)

Land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of a
building situated thereon at the inception of the
lease, is accounted for as being held under a
finance lease, unless the building is also clearly
held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time
that the lease was first entered into by the

Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets
under finance leases, the amounts representing
the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower,
the present value of the minimum lease
payments, of such assets are included in fixed
assets and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations
under finance leases. Depreciation is provided
at rates which write off the cost of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where it
is likely the Group will obtain ownership of the
assets, the life of the assets, as set out in
note 1(h). Impairment losses are accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policy as
set out in note 1(k). Finance charges implicit in
the lease payments are charged to profit or loss
over the period of the leases so as to produce
an approximately constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the

obligations for each accounting period.

— FESFBER (&)

() HEEE (&)

(i)

(ii)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(iv)

Assets leased out under finance leases

Where assets are leased out under finance
leases, an amount representing the net
investment in the lease is included in the
balance sheet as a receivable. Finance income
implicit in the lease payments is credited to
profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of return on the outstanding net
investment in the leases for each accounting

period.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part

of the aggregate net lease payments made.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term except
where the property is classified as an

investment property (see note 1(g)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —. FE&:BE (&

(continued)

(k) EEME

() BRAEFFLRERHMEWAKIEZ
and other receivables Pl
TR B 7B S H K AN DI BR 3 B 4
PERGEBFZRABHFIRE
RE AR B EIE R B I RIE S
REEEE B ETRE AHEE
B ERERBER - 1FEEM
FlFER AeET RERFEES

(k) Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities

Investments in equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that are
stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified
as available-for-sale securities are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determine whether

there is objective evidence of impairment. If

cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment losses

for equity securities are not reversed.

For trade and other current receivables
and other financial assets carried at
amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition
of these assets), where the effect of

discounting is material.

any such evidence exist, any impairment loss BT
is determined and recognised as follows:
For unquoted equity securities carried at — BEKARNEFERZIELTR

REHM =  FEERIENTHE
BEZ REESIRAUN K
BEZRITMSEEREER
(MBLRFEBEX) fEFt 2R
KA LME 2 ZRFTH AR
B FRBREBERTTEE-

—  SBLIRBEE RN AR 2 EUCR
R B AR ED IR IR K EoAth
MBEEMS RIEERIZE
EZERmMEREZVEEER
NZEEME B EFEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)
Impairment of investments in equity securities

and other receivables (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised

in prior years.

For available-for-sale securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised
directly in equity is removed from equity
and is recognised in profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that asset previously recognised in

profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss in respect of available-for-sale equity
securities are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the
fair value of such assets is recognised

directly in equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no

longer exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment (other than

properties carried at revalued amounts);

— prepaid interest in leasehold land
classified as being held under an

operating lease;

— intangible assets;

— investments in subsidiaries and associates

(except for those classified as being held

for sale); and

goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is any

indication of impairment.

— EEEFEE ()

(k) BEERRE (&)

(ii)

Annual Report 2006 —ZZXFEER

H & E < FER

AEEEeRNESEGE REHNAE
FONRFTGE R LAREE NIIEE
(FBRRIN BB HIRFEIRHEH
ERAZRBEBEIBFERDE

R

- xR -BEARE (REGHH
BB 2 MEFRIN)

- WOBRAREBEEKEHERHA
ZHE L2 BNAE:

- RWBARRBERRZR
B (B BRFEERIN: Rk

~ @R

fisl HERE R IR - R EE
Z AR S AR SN S E M E
HeJ o e BH bt (Tam
BHREBIR)

131



132

Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating

unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss whenever the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less
costs to sell, or value in use, if

determinable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —. FE&:BE (&

(continued)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued) (k) BEERE (&)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued) (i) EEEZFEE (&)
-~ Reversals of impairment losses — MEFERD

In respect of assets other than goodwill, MBI EET S - WA
an impairment loss is reversed if there has YERE FE AT WK [B] 8RB 2 i 51
been a favourable change in the estimates RENEE QAR OFEEE
used to determine the recoverable B-EmEZREEETSR
amount. An impairment loss in respect of EIE

goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited HEBERBRBRRNZEE
to the asset’s carrying amount that would WARAEBEFEMERZ
have been determined had no impairment FRiEEs 1B © BREE - FE1E /&S
loss been recognised in prior years. B R 2 BN ERE ERED
Reversals of impairment losses are ZFEFFABRKRA

credited to profit or loss in the year in which

the reversals are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment (iii) PRI IR E K FEE

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required RIEETHRA REEBIZRES
to prepare an interim financial report in S ERIE345% — [ HM R
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial HIZHRER BB HEFEE &/ E
reporting, in respect of the first six months of AR B RS - R HRHAR -
the financial year. At the end of the interim RNEEFEAER I BFE 4 RE
period, the Group applies the same impairment EERAZ B —RES #R &
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it BEEIZRAE (MR —(K)) (i) °

would at the end of the financial year (see notes
1(k)(i) and (ii)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

()

(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment
(continued)
Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill and available-for-
sale equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This is the
case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would
have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial
year to which the interim period relates.

Inventories

Inventories, mainly comprise spare parts and
consumables used in the repairs and maintenance
of the waste-water treatment plants and waste-to-
energy power plant, are carried at cost less
provision for obsolescence. Cost is calculated
using the weighted average cost formula. When
inventories are consumed, the carrying value of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in
profit or loss.

(m) Debtors, other receivables, deposits and

prepayments

Debtors, other receivables, deposits and
prepayments are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost less
impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (see
note 1(k)), except where the receivables are interest-
free loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would
be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are
stated at cost less impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts (see note 1(k)).

— TEEFEE (&

(k) EERE (&)

(iii) PEIIHIRE K FERE (E)

R BRI B P B IR A E A
R HERNBLFBRZEEE
BrIeREER HMEE R
28 R B A R RO RIS AT B B B
[E RIS T B8 AR ES
HEEBEN AN EEEE
Bk

nH =&

FETZEEANEERRESKEE
B 2 B 3R A e 2 BB 2 T BB A K OH
an EAZPANMERE R BE R R RS IR
RAEIR IEF AR AN RN GTE R
AEER ARFECEAEENER
KPR/

(m) B R b BRI - RER

FERIE

JEMRR R~ B UK IR 2 & R TR 3R
RS RN f B B 1R AR SHAK
AR RIZ R AR BRI (R M T —
(k)) + MELN G A FE M R IR s T R A
Lz BB MARE L EEEE
RS BEIR B EME RIBRIN-FE LT
ST - B B W IR I A A E R R R R
FERERTIAR (RMEE—(K)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective

interest method.

Creditors, other payables and accrued
expenses

Creditors, other payables and accrued expenses
are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which

case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the

consolidated cash flow statement.

— TEEFEE (&

(n)

(0)

(p)

ER=SEEAN

AT EERVP R AR EREBIERZKA
R HERR 5T EMEBUIR B

5B - T 9] 2 R w0 2 RE B [0 (B (E

E2EMER EREMNENFERE

) REEHRRERNEEAERRR

REER

PR BRRR H b B RIBE R BT E
A

FEATRRR - EoAth e AN XA K e T B )
SRR AR IR IREHR AN B
BNREIR B ERRIBRIN-FELL B T
ARR B AR

RERAEEEY
HehkBReSEYERRTRTHER
& RIRTT MEAMM B R 2R HER
K AIBER R AE MEBRE 2 K
BREtERE REEEDARY AE
R WHEBAEA =EARD R ERE
HEBHIRERK ReMR2FEY
D ERRRERERERBRAEERS
BEH—EOHRITES
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(q) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts are

stated at their present values.

Share based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital
reserve within equity. The fair value is measured
at grant date using the Black-Scholes Option
Pricing Model, taking into accounts the terms
and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the

probability that the options will vest.

— TEEFEE (&

(q) EEER

(i)

(ii)

#2H1E B 18 7 R T BE - SB K AT

723

o FEELFEEHFRY E
BHFRAKFTEIER I ERE
M2 AR EEIRHRE 2 FE
FEER fisi A N OB AE T 3ER E R
B B RESEARRES AR

KRt B
EEERBREZ AR ESER
RBBTRA MERRAZ BAE
BRIERRZIE - R A ETIRE
B EIRA (A e —&F BT 5
REERN WKL BREEE X
HIER R E-EREATE
ERIGHET A ERREZERSE
PR - £ BB AR AR A AR
& BREZ BT AR ERRE
R D AR
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(q) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Share based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed.
Any adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to
not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The
equity amount is recognised in the capital
reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is

released directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the Group demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy
by having a detailed formal plan which is

without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

— EEEFEE ()

(q) BEERF (&)

(ii)

(iii)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
directly in equity, in which case they are recognised

in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of

previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax

losses and unused tax credits.

— TEEFEE (&

(r) Fi8

REZ ST A AT MIEERIA
BERBEZ BB - AHHIAMIEER
REERBBEZEPTERERAME
B EE EE RN R ERZ AR
B QB iR

N EARE TR AR AN R e SR AR
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BRI EE
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BENMABHRMEME A THIRKLE
B EREERMES - BEREAER
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised,
are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit

can be utilised.

— TEEFEE (&

(r)

Fri&® (48)
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BARAE RAABEERBREE (BRR
1 SRAR AT BB S FE AR TR B T < 7R B
ERIAER Z B5n) 15 T HER - BT HER
A TR E R E R AEL ZIRIER
HEEZ AR REARREN BIEEKHE
Al 2 FERTET S 1 22 BBl 2 2B 17
W FRRRE R EEREHRR—HEE
BRI R — R B AU I TR ERAE A]
FHORE 14 = R IBHIREE 2 7 —HfFE
MO S RHREHREEELE 2 R
ERREE O e A 2 HiR A - R
E BRI ERTE R M E R T DR AT
REAREER 2B ER R EEREL
ZEEFHIAE ER KA _ EAAER 2R
® ZEEREEZRAR-HBER
[) [F) — FE SRR BE (L K - I TR ERAE A 7
BRIEBEER CHEARE L FE
ERe

Annual Report 2006 —ZZXFEER

139



140

Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r) Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible for
tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is

probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax

assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and is reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be

available.

— EEEFEE ()
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

Income tax (continued)
Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the

liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities,
if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional

conditions are met:

— inthe case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and

settle the liability simultaneously; or

— inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on a net

basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(t)

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the

expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic

benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Toll bridge revenue
Toll bridge revenue, net of business tax, is

recognised on a usage of the bridge.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t) Revenue recognition (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Revenue from waste-water treatment plants,
waste-to-energy power plant and methane-to-
energy power plant operation services

Revenue from waste-water treatment plants,
waste-to-energy power plant and methane-to-
energy power plant operation services are
recognised when the related services are

rendered.

Finance lease income

Finance lease income is recognised on a
pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of
return on the lessor’s net investment in the

finance lease.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate

net lease payments receivable.

Property management fee income
Property management fee income is
recognised when the related services are

rendered.

— TEEFEE (&

(t) W=wER (&)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

(u)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(vi) Dividends
Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to

receive payment is established.

(vii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues

using the effective interest method.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates

the fair value was determined.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u) Translation of foreign currencies

(v)

(continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items,
including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign
operations acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised
directly in a separate component of equity. Goodwill
arising on consolidation of a foreign operation
acquired before 1 January 2005 is translated at the
foreign exchange rate that applied at the date of

acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in
equity which relate to that foreign operation is
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on

disposal.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred, except to the
extent that they are capitalised as being directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its

intended use or sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v) Borrowing costs (continued)
The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset are being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are

interrupted or complete.

(w) Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a

party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(iy the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the Group or exercise significant influence over
the Group in making financial and operating
policy decisions, or has joint control over the

Group;

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common

control;

(iii) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint

venture in which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent,
or a close family member of such an individual,
or is an entity under the control, joint control or

significant influence of such individuals;
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(w) BEEEA 1

UL FMEHRERM = EALHEE S
AR EA R 0

() ZATHEREIEEKBEEB—
Bk Z AR T AR ARSEE - 5m]
FAME B 7S I AR R SR R B AR
BITFEEATE N EEREE
2 FERIE I

(i) RNEBERZAMTEZELRIZES:

o

(i) FAERANEEZBERBIHRA
SERAET ZRZEDLRE:

(iv) ZATARAEESRASER AT
ZEBEBAB RABBAALZ
EHRREKE X ZEFEBIAL
EH SR ERTECE

g8 -
A5 *

[l::3

k
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(w) Related parties (continued)

(x)

(v) the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such

individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or of any entity that is a related party of

the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings

with the entity.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the
Group that is engaged either in providing products
or services (business segment), or in providing
products or services within a particular economic
environment (geographical segment), which is
subject to risks and rewards that are different from

those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting system, the Group has chosen business
segment information as the primary reporting format
and geographical segment information as the
secondary reporting format for the purposes of

these financial statements.

—. TESBER (&)

(w) BB AL (52)

(x) /'\

(V) RALER()FE IR EKRE
X% E BRI ALERS] S RIS

HBRTEZER =X

(vi) BIRGER T AR EIE A SR
A 2 B 2 R B R T
stale

BRI AL AR R 1R R 2 &%
AALEZEERR (B3
HERIATEZBERER ST E 2 K E

?E%@WT%J D EY AL 55 L
ﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁkf Ems RS (XKD
BB) - AR TE 2 BERE (ME 5 F6)
RHE MRS mER S MBHIAZ 2
J\B [ FT 15 2 [B1 ¥R B2 EL A 75 BR AN

BEBEAEEZ AFHBRESTR RE
B BmRCETEBDIFERABE

EFRFN MRS FERAABLE
%#Kzﬁﬁv
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(x) Segment reporting (continued)

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated on
a reasonable basis to that segment. For example,
segment assets may include inventories, trade
receivables and property, plant and equipment.
Segment revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities
are determined before intra-group balances and
intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of
the consolidation process, except to the extent that
such intra-group balances and transactions are
between group entities within a single segment.
Inter-segment pricing is based on similar terms as

those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost
incurred during the period to acquire segment
assets (both tangible and intangible) that are

expected to be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets, interest-bearing loans,
borrowings, tax balances, corporate and financing

expenses.

—. TESBER (&)

(x)

EW|E ()

’ﬁ%ﬁ”&)\‘ﬁ'ﬂﬁi~%%~ﬁ?&%ﬁ@%
EERBEBRNZABZER UEAZE
BN E DESZIAR - Plgn:
BEARERFE BUSRREYE M
Ehk&iEw-DaBA R BEENREE
RiFARABETHEEEARRIRZ
BHRREEARFIRZ R 5AEE
SEARRREHREZZREESER—
EB DAL EERRIN REARR]
B2 X ZRIBIREE T EMINIALLZ
BIMRRETE -

7802 BANF SR AR S TR ER(E
BE—BRHENIBEE (BRETER
BIVEE) MEL ZBKA-

ﬁi“ﬁﬂlﬁ BEXEERVBREXEE"
AHREFREE BRIRGKR X RUT
sz
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES = BFBRZ25

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs BEAGTRI NGB 76 TR kB2
that are first effective or available for early adoption for ARV BREER SN AEE K
the current accounting period of the Group. SETEIE A AR sk AT R AT A o

Note 1 summaries the accounting policies of the Group PR — S P AR B R AN il ER AR SR [ B
after the adoption of these developments to the extent 2R RASIEETER B 2 BT BRI E 11
that they are relevant to the Group. The following sets AR AT e HEER W EEM
out information on the significant changes in accounting BiRP R 2 T BEREREEHFHEERRN
policies for the current and prior accounting periods TXe

reflected in these financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or A& BN AR e R A A g 5T BRI M AR AR
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current AR ERE (RM s +—) -

accounting period (see note 41).

(a) Restatement of prior periods and opening (a) ERBIHERBAEER
balances
The following tables disclose the adjustments that TREERBEEEEVEREEL 2
have been made in accordance with the transitional BEBR REBEE_TERF A=
provisions of the respective HKFRSs to each of the +—HIEFEHREBERK BERBER:
line items in the consolidated income statement, RenEXAZECD2HER REAME
balance sheet, cash flow statement and other AAEBEREER (EH 2 BB - GET R
significant related disclosure items as previously HEHN T F A —HEKRTE
reported for the year ended 31 December 2005. M=

The effects of changes in accounting policies on
the balances at 1 January 2006 are disclosed in

note 31.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a) Restatement of prior periods and opening
balances (continued)
(i)  Effect on the consolidated financial statements
Consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2005

Turnover EER
Direct costs and operating BEERAR
expenses KEEHR
Other revenue H i ez
Administrative expenses TBER
Valuation gains on investment &X&#%
properties HERH
Profit from operations ReERF
Finance costs H%ER

Share of profits of associates ~ FrfhEE & A & & F

Profit before taxation R ATEF
Income tax Frigi
Profit for the year KEEEF

China Everbright International Limited FE ¥ K BB AR 2 7

—. BRTBRZEE (&)

(a) ERBEHERBAERR (B)

(i) HEEMBRRZZE

BE_ERILF+-A=+—-AH

LtEEZHRERER

Effect of

HK(IFRIC) 4

(increase/

(decrease)

in profit

for the year)

(B (Bl

MB®RE

2005 2EZE®)
(as previously RE) B4 2005
reported) pd-74 (as restated)
“TThF (FREF —TTRF
(A28 Bm ORd)) (BER)

(note 2(c))

(it =(c))
$'000 $'000 $000
Fr Fr Fr
133,823 (968) 132,855
(43,161) 3,829 (39,332)
90,662 2,861 93,523
12,413 - 12,413
(55,284) - (55,284)
25,230 - 25,230
73,021 2,861 75,882
(32,000) - (32,090)
40,931 2,861 43,792
68,045 - 68,045
108,976 2,861 111,837
11,868 (831) 11,037
120,844 2,030 122,874




Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a) Restatement of prior periods and opening
balances (continued)
(i)  Effect on the consolidated financial statements
(continued)
Consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2005 (continued)

—. BETBRZ 2 (&)

(a) ERBEBBRBAEER (&)

(i) HEFEEHBFRRZ

peE (@)

i

7

BEZ_ZTHFE+-A=t—H

Attributable to: FE{LER 4R

Equity shareholders of ARAER
the Company

Minority interests DER R R

Profit for the year KEERR

Earnings per share BREF

Basic HAK

Diluted e

Other significant disclosure HthEAHEEH:
items:

Waste-water treatment EK R
revenue Wz

Revenue from waste-water SRR
treatment plants operation HERG
services Wz

Finance lease income BMEREWA

Rental income HEBA

Depreciation nE

LtEEZGERHR (B)

Effect of

HK(IFRIC) 4

(increase/

(decrease)

in profit

for the year)

(B% (%

S

2005 ZEEZEE)
(as previously 2E) £45 2005
reported) 7 (as restated)
“ETHEF (FRZF —EThHE
(ai2®) M/ Oid)) (BEE®W)

(note 2(c))

(Hizt=(c))
$'000 $'000 $000
Fr T T
105,330 1,478 106,808
15,514 552 16,066
120,844 2,030 122,874
4.13 centsflli 0.06 centflli 4.19 centsfll

4.07 centsflll 0.06 centfll 4.13 centsfll
56,340 (56,340) -

- 51,413 51,413

- 3,676 3,676

14,245 283 14,528
(22,293) 3,829 (18,464)

Annual Report 2006 —ZZXFEER

151



152

B3 R 2 M

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEZEHN FTEEHL B )

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(a) Restatement of prior periods and opening

balances (continued)

(i)  Effect on the consolidated financial statements

(continued)

Consolidated balance sheet at 31 December

2005

Non-current assets

Fixed assets

— Investment properties

— Other property, plant
and equipment

— Interest in leasehold
land held under
operating leases

Intangible assets
Goodwill

Interest in associates
Other financial assets
Finance lease receivables
Deferred tax assets

China Everbright International Limited FE ¥ K BB AR 2 7

FRBEE

—REME

— 2= BE
e

— R E
HERAZ
THE TR

B EE

g
NSl
HioHBEE
BEMEERKFR

BEHIRE E

—. BRTBRZEE (&)

(a) ERBAPERBALER (&)

() HEFEEHBHREZZE (B)
R-ZBZAF+-A=+—-HZ
meEEERER

Effect of

HK(IFRIC) 4

(increase/

(decrease)

in net assets

for the year)

(B (Bl

RS

2005 2EZEg)
(as previously 2E) B4 2005
reported) pd-74 (as restated)
—ZEThF (FRNEEFH —ZTTRF
(WAI2%®) M/ Ohd)) (BEE®W)

(note 2(c))

(Hizt=(c))
$000 $000 $000
Fr T T
262,194 - 262,194
1,163,052 (131,225) 1,031,827
76,045 - 76,045
1,501,291 (131,225) 1,370,066
34,433 - 34,433
48,236 - 48,236
413,304 - 413,304
51,931 - 51,931
- 131,701 131,701
16,832 (399) 16,433
2,066,027 77 2,066,104




Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES —. €t BE2%8 (&)

(continued)

(a) ERBIEWERBANER (2)
() HEeHBHEcZE (B)

(a) Restatement of prior periods and opening
balances (continued)
(i)  Effect on the consolidated financial statements

(continued)
Consolidated balance sheet at 31 December R-BEEF+-A=t+—-R2
2005 (continued) HEEEREBER (B)
Effect of
HK(IFRIC) 4
(increase/
(decrease)

in net assets
for the year)

(B (EE
B HRE
2005 2BZEY)
(as previously 2R FA% 2005
reported) LB (as restated)
“TTHFE (FREEFE —TTRHF
(mRT2%®k)  #m/ CRd)) (BER)
(note 2(c))
(Hfzt=(c))
$°000 $°000 $°000
T Frr Frr
Current assets REBEE
Debtors, other receivables, W ER R E A
deposits and FEW IR e K
prepayments B F0A 109,023 - 109,023
Finance lease receivables BMEHERWZIE = 2,384 2,384
Pledged bank deposits EHERRITER 89,197 - 89,197
Deposits with bank RITER 907 - 907
Cash and cash equivalents & KRS EEY 408,566 - 408,566
607,693 2,384 610,077
Current liabilities RBAE
Secured bank loans BIEARITER 40,227 = 40,227
Amount due to minority e DB R
shareholder IE 575 = 575
Creditors, other payables FERTBRER EL MR
and accrued expenses HIBREER 233,219 = 233,219
Current taxation ANERFR IR 2,138 = 2138
276,159 - 276,159
Net current assets REEETH 331,534 2,384 333,918
Total assets less current BEERABDERE
liabilities carried forward LET 2,397,561 2,461 2,400,022
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a) Restatement of prior periods and opening
balances (continued)
(i)  Effect on the consolidated financial statements
(continued)
Consolidated balance sheet at 31 December
2005 (continued)

Total assets less current HEERRBER
liabilities brought forward ~ 7&A(
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Secured bank loans BEBRITER
Loans from ultimate holding & IERAA]
company g3
Deferred tax liabilities EREBIEEE
NET ASSETS EERE
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRAR
Share capital B
Reserves &
Total equity attributable RATRE
to equity shareholders PEfL R
of the Company Eob |
Minority interests DERRER
TOTAL EQUITY A%

—. BRTBRZEE (&)

(a) EBEHERBAES (&)

() BEEEBEHRERZ

=

=& ()

R-ZBBRF+-A=+-HZ

HReEEREXR (B)

Effect of
HK(IFRIC) 4
(increase/
(decrease)
in net assets
for the year)

(B (B

MBwRE

2005 2EEZE®)
(as previously ) B45%% 2005
reported) LB (as restated)
“ZEThF  (FREEFE “ETRF
(WaI25®k)  2m/ Chd)) (BEER)

(note 2(c))

(KE=(c))
$000 $000 $000
Fir Frr Frr
2,397,561 2,461 2,400,022
572,016 - 572,016
535,628 - 535,628
20,732 431 21,163
1,128,376 431 1,128,807
1,269,185 2,030 1,271,215
255,181 - 255,181
921,676 1,478 923,154
1,176,857 1,478 1,178,335
92,328 552 92,880
1,269,185 2,030 1,271,215

China Everbright International Limited FE ¥ K BB AR 2 7



Notes to the Financial Statements
" B RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES =—. it BFE 285 (&)

(continued)

(a) Restatement of prior periods and opening (a)
balances (continued)
(i)  Effect on the consolidated financial statements
(continued)
Consolidated cash flow statement for the
year ended 31 December 2005

2005

(as previously

ERBEPBRBAERR (B)
() HEEHMBHRRZZE (B)

BZE-_ZEZR¥+=-HA=+—H
LtFEEZFERERER

Effect of

adoption of

HK(IFRIC) 4
R (EE (B 2005

reported) BMEHRERE  (as restated)
“ZTRE Reclassification ZEE) 2E) —2TRE
(INFT2%H) ENNE 4Ry E (BERH)
(note 38) (note 2(c))
(Bix=+1) (Htix=(c))
$000 $000 $000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Net cash generated from ReEgEE
operating activities ZESFE 55,020 50,293 (968) 104,345
Net cash used in investing ~ RE&EZEE A
activities YH4FE (445,007) 1,135 968 (442,904)
Net cash generated from METHEE
financing activities ZBEFE 225,372 (51,428) - 173,944
Net decrease in cash and BERREE
cash equivalents BYNRDFE (164,615) = = (164,615)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b) Estimated effect of changes in accounting

policies on the current period

The following tables provide estimates of the extent
to which each of the line items in the consolidated
income statement, balance sheet, cash flow
statement and other significant related disclosure
items for the year ended 31 December 2006 is
higher or lower than it would have been had the
previous policies still been applied in the year,
where it is practicable to make such estimates.

(i)  Effect on the consolidated financial statements
(continued)
Estimated effect on the consolidated

income statement for the year ended 31
December 2006

Turnover

Direct costs and operating expenses

Profit before taxation

Income tax
Profit for the year

Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the Company
Minority interests

Profit for the year

Earnings per share

Basic

Diluted

—. BRTBRZEE (&)

(b)

Q*E&%%@J%ﬂlﬁﬂ Bz fh 5t

Ti’%%@ﬁlﬂﬁjmzﬁirfﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ &t
BR FAEAEEEE_TT R EF+—
ﬂ_—f-—EIJJ:iE??(:\T% ik BEER
BEXR RERERASMERR REMS
AR FRIA B B - Al BEIE pNskipl A 2
15%)\%%5 (st EE AT RBE
AJAT) e

(i) HEEEHBHRERZTE (B)

HEBE-_SSA F+=-A=+-—
gﬂ:ﬂEFZ%%Eﬁ%Z{EE‘f%

Estimated effect of
HK(IFRIC) 4
(increase/(decrease)
in profit for the year)

(B% (ERMBERERBESS)

R BAR AT
(FRERED GRD))

(note 2(c))

(KtzE=(c))

$’000

FiT

E ] (6,486)

BERAREEER 26,619

BREL AT B F 20,133

FTiS# (3,966)

REEZEF 16,167
FEAEER 17 :

PIN/NE )iy 351 15,131

VBT R AT 1,036

REERF 16,167
EREF

HAK 0.52 centflL

e 0.51 centfl
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES BN ERZ2S (&
(continued)
(b) Estimated effect of changes in accounting (b) %E‘l’@l%@@%ﬂiﬁﬂ CPALEE-
policies on the current period (continued) & (=)
(i)  Effect on the consolidated financial statements () HEEHBHRRTE ()
(continued)
Estimated effect on the consolidated HEZ2-_EEXFE+-A=1+—
income statement for the year ended 31 HEFEZGREBRRZMTE
December 2006 (continued) & ()

Estimated effect of
HK(IFRIC) 4
(increase/(decrease)
in profit for the year)

(B (ERMBERERBEES)

2B Fa AT E
(FRBRZM, CHD))
(note 2(c))
(BtzE=(c))
$°000
Fr
Other significant disclosure items: HthBEBAWEEE:
Waste-water treatment revenue y5IK BRI UL 7 (117,388)
Waste treatment revenue &) B 3R U 25 (14,148)
Electricity income BBRA (20,561)
Revenue from waste-water treatment plants 5 7KERIE R & &
operation services BR & a 99,604
Revenue from waste-to-energy power plant 573 /&2 Bk
operation services EE RS W 18,404
Revenue from methane-to-energy power BREEREE
plant operation services AR Y2 1,204
Finance lease income BERERA 21,450
Rental income e WA 4,949
Depreciation e 26,619
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= Notes to the Financial Statements
" MEBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b) Estimated effect of changes in accounting
policies on the current period (continued)
(i)  Effect on the consolidated financial statements
(continued)
Estimated effect on the consolidated
balance sheet at 31 December 2006

Non-current assets

Other property, plant and equipment
Finance lease receivables
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Finance lease receivables
Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities
NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Exchange reserve
Retained profits

Total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company

Minority interests
TOTAL EQUITY

China Everbright International Limited

—. BRTBRZEE (&)

(b) EFBERSBEARYE 2 5t
- XE-)
() ¥EEHBHREZFZE (B

H-EEAF+ZA=+—-HZ
meEERERZMGHRE

Estimated effect of

HK(IFRIC) 4
(increase/(decrease)

in net assets)

(B8 (BERMERERBEES)
28 FaR 2R E

(BEEFHEEM (D))
(note 2(c))
(BtaE=(c))
$’000
Fr
FkRBEE
HME S KR E (780,299)
RE & R FIE 789,177
BEFIREE (1,192)
___________ 7,686
REEE
R ERE R KGIA 14,643
rnBEEFE 000000000 14,643
HEERRBAERS 22,329
kRBEE
EEFRITEEE 3,718
EERE 18,611
AR fE T
bE 5 (1 371
IR & T 16,609
AARRE
E RS 16,980
DERRER 1,631
ERAEE 18,611
HEXABEBRERA R



Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES =—. it BFE 285 (&)

(continued)
(b) Estimated effect of changes in accounting (b) EFtBERESBH AEE 245 ¥
policies on the current period (continued) & (&)
(i)  Effect on the consolidated financial statements () HEREMBHREZFE (BE)
(continued)
Estimated effect on the consolidated cash HEZ-_EEAE+=-A=1+—
flow statement for the year ended 31 BLEEEvHRERERERZM
December 2006 Eig-2
Estimated effect
of adoption of
HK(IFRIC) 4
Rin(ER (B ERERBEESR)
2R BAF AR E
(note 2(c))
(Kizt=(c))
$°000
F
Net decrease in cash from KRR
operating activities W FR (6,486)
Net increase in cash from KEEE 2
investing activities IR & FREIE N 6,486
Net change in cash and cash equivalents IR& &I & EHEYEE)FHE -
(c) Lease arrangement (HK(IFRIC) 4: (c) HEZH ((BE (BRHMBERER
Determining whether an arrangement BZEE) 2B H45 EE—1&
contains a lease) ZHEAESHE)
In prior years, the Group recognised its waste-water RBEFE AEEEEE [E— K
treatment plants under the build-operate-transfer —#E%] ([BOT)) k@B — K& -8
(“BOT”) and transfer-operate-transfer (“TOT”) %1 ([TOT]) B8 T 257K R IR R e R
arrangements as property, plant and equipment and R B R RS KR ER IR
recognised the waste-water treatment revenue and m RIRBESROERMEET A2 A F iR
depreciation of waste-water treatment plants on a V57K BE IR AT o

straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c) Lease arrangement (HK(IFRIC) 4:

Determining whether an arrangement
contains a lease) (continued)

With effect from 1 January 2006, the Group assesses
each BOT and TOT arrangement in accordance with
the requirements of HK(IFRIC) 4, in order to
determine whether the arrangement contains a
lease. As a result, the Group has determined that
certain BOT and TOT arrangements, although they
do not take the legal form of a lease, convey to the
customer a right to use certain specific assets
owned by the Group in return for a series of receipts
and therefore contain leases that should be

accounted for in accordance with HKAS 17, Leases.

The change in accounting policy has been applied
retrospectively with comparatives restated. As a
result of the change, certain BOT and TOT
arrangements identified as containing lease
elements are classified as finance leases.
Consequently, waste-water treatment plants, waste-
to-energy power plant and methane-to-energy
power plant under the BOT and TOT arrangements
are derecognised as property, plant and equipment
and the fair values of the waste-water treatment
plants, waste-to-energy power plant and methane-
to-energy power plant are recognised as finance
lease. The lease receivables are reduced when
lease payments, being a portion of the waste-water

treatment revenue, waste treatment revenue and

SRR Z28 (&

(c) HEZRH (B (ERMBHRER

BZES) 2B %4 EE—18
ZHEREEHE) (&)
BT F—A AR AEERE
(B (ERMBRERBEE®) 2
) B4R 2 T HRIBBOTRTOTR
PREITRHE LEEAALHIRE AR
%ﬂ%oﬁ{éﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%*%ﬁ
TOTHRH W EABHRE 2 ERFA
HE TEPEN @B — R
BEATESEMBECETHREEE"
B BEARBEREHE WEERRES
SEERE17R - A& B

/

bBlestRRESHDENER L E
WL BB T A DB Ey - 5 TR PR
RBEHEERMN ZBOTRTOTZEH 2
BARERE-HIt EBOTRTOTRHE
N 2IE7KERIR R BRI AE B SR
REEMITBERSYFE BEL&RE
)5 7K B2 32 R - BRI R B B SOAR,
REM AN ENERSREHERK
IR THE KSR SRR EFIR (ANED
17357}< Bl SRR N R EE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c) Lease arrangement (HK(IFRIC) 4:
Determining whether an arrangement
contains a lease) (confinued)
electricity income, are received and an imputed
finance lease income on the lease receivables is
recognised using an estimate of the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate of interest. Apart from
the above, the leasehold land on which the waste-

water treatment plants are situated was also

B BERZ2E (&)

(c) HEZRH (B (HRMBHRER

BZEES) 2B B4 EE |
ZHERBRSHEE) (&)

W) EUER IR H0IR - I & 3 3B A A A
AZ Gt 2FHEERN R mREE R
R HEREHEWA I LEIN
yE7KERIR R ETE S T 3 TR SR BB
EHERNEAEEDEEHEEEDR
AL E - HES WA (BN )57kER 2

identified as containing lease elements and the Wzs) SR EEHRA NSRS N B
Group classified the lease as an operating lease. FKAMER

Rental income, being a portion of the waste-water
treatment revenue, is recognised in profit or loss in

equal instalments over the periods covered by the

lease term.
The adjustments for each financial statement line HE_ZTHhFER-_ZTTFTA=
affected for the years ended 31 December 2005 T—ALFESNBREIFZEEE 2
and 2006 are set out in notes 2(a) and 2(b). Further FEHNHTF—(a) R =(b) - BT
details of the arrangement are set out in note 40. HE— S ER M FE A
3. TURNOVER = EXEE
The principal activities of the Group are toll bridge $E@ZIK¥V%W%$§@ & IRIRIE
operation, environmental protection project operation &8 (5KRIEMR MR IERER AR
(waste-water treatment plants, waste-to-energy power ’*ﬁ?ﬁ) MEKRERER RREEEER
plant and methane-to-energy power plant), property BAR R A E R

investments and management, environmental protection
project management and consultancy and investment

holding.
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B3 R 2 M

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEZEHN FTEEHL B )

TURNOVER (continued)

Turnover represents the toll bridge revenue, revenue from
waste-water treatment plants, waste-to-energy power
plant and methane-to-energy power plant operation
services, finance lease income, rental income and

property management fee income. The amount of each

significant category of revenue recognised in turnover

during the year is as follows:

Toll bridge revenue

Revenue from waste-water treatment plants
operation services

Revenue from waste-to-energy power plant
operation services

Revenue from methane-to-energy power
plant operation services

Finance lease income

Gross rentals from investment properties

Other rental income

Property management fee income

China Everbright International Limited FE ¥ K BB AR 2 7

WEFR R
757K BRI R 4 R A W

AEHEKRA
REMFEHEER
HiEBA
MEEEBRA

BEE (E)

EEBEBREBRRKE REFKEER
BRI R R B SRR B < 28 ARG
® REHERA HEWARMEEREK
A FAEELEBETHIANSAEIZHEA
BRI BRI T -

2006 2005
—BERE —TEREF
(restated)

(E®R)

$°000 $000
Fr Fir
72,584 59,824
99,604 51,413
18,404 -
1,204 -
21,450 3,676
14,082 14,245
4,949 283
3,582 3,414
235,859 132,855




Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

4. OTHER REVENUE AND . Hfrihas REAMBKA
OTHER INCOME
2006 2005
—EERE “ETRHF
$°000 $000
7 F2
Other revenue Rtz
Interest income FEBA 17,612 9,072
Dividend income from listed securities ERBEHFZBREBA 3,149 -
Dividend income from unlisted securities FEmEFZBREBA 1,677 1,135
Others Hit 3,578 2,206
26,016 12,413
Other income Ht A
Profit on sale of associate HERE QA 2 WE 310,000 -
Profit on sale of investment properties HEREYHE 2 Was 16,083 -
Profit on sale of available-for-sale securities HERFEES 2 Wa 11,542 -
Excess of interest in fair value of Pt B2
acquiree’s identifiable assets, ARBIEE BE
liabilities and contingent liabilities RIBEEZAREGR
over the cost of a business combination EBE KA E
(note 33) (HizE=+=) 16,339 -
353,964 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEZEHN FTEEHL B )

5. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/

. BRBLAT R R

BRI BRE R, GEA)

(crediting):
2006 2005
—BERF ZETHEF
(restated)
(E#HR)
$°000 $000
Fr Frr
(a) Finance costs: (a) HIHKER:
Interest on bank advances wholly ARAFANZEEEY
repayable within five years RITEFZFIE 3,758 986
Interest on other bank advances HipiRITERZFIE 42,671 23,540
Interest on loans from ultimate REERATER
holding company ZHE 24,016 17,141
Total borrowing costs BIEEKA 70,445 41,667
Less: borrowing costs capitalised A ERERIRERE
into construction in progress* ZIEER A (17,814) (9,577)
52,631 32,090
* The borrowing costs have been capitalised at rates of * EEKAIZ6.1% —6.8%.27 FEKENL
6.1% — 6.8% (2005: 6.1% — 6.4%) per annum. (CFEZEAHF 6.1%—6.4%) °
(b) Staff costs: (b) BIRA:
Contributions to defined contribution TE R TR INETE
retirement plan R 2,971 1,146
Equity-settled share-based payment PARRAR 2 17 2 IRA R 5
expenses % 6,027 -
Salaries, wages and other benefits He ITENEMET 48,781 29,547
57,779 30,693
Less: Staff costs capitalised into B ERERIRERNE
construction in progress ZBTIKA (17,601) (10,314)
40,178 20,379
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

5. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 5. REBAIBR (2

2006
—EBERE
$°000
Fr
(c) Other items: (c) EAfbIEB:
Amortisation i
— land lease premium —THHEEHR 4,651
- intangible assets —BREE 1,485
Depreciation e
- assets held for use under — AR EHER
operating leases BE 732
— other assets —-HMEE 22,904
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) R EE, (M) 55 6,587
Auditors’ remuneration ZERB &
— audit services —BEZR% 2,440
- other services —Hin R 300
Net loss/(gain) on sale of other property, HEEMYE BHER&E2
plant and equipment EiE/ (k) F58 847
Operating lease charges: minimum REHEER 5D
lease payments HEEH
— hire of waste-water treatment facilities — KRR EAE 976
— hire of premises —MEHE 1,610
Rentals receivable from properties less ERERSREZES L
direct outgoings of $2,252,000 2,252,0007T
(2005: $1,149,000) (CZERE:
1,149,0007%) (16,779)

2005
—ZThF
(restated)
(B®H)

$'000

T

283

115

1,018
17,446
(1,151)

1,825

(587)

959
649

(13,379)
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=y Notes to the Financial Statements
" MBERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

6. SHARE OF PROFITS OF ASSOCIATES

Share of profits of associates before [N
taxation
Share of associates’ taxation BT B A8

N. FrhBE R RRF

2006 2005
ZEEXRE “ETRF
$°000 $000
Fr Fr

AR AT AT
38,246 78,738
BIHE (5,588) (10,693)
32,658 68,045

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED +t. #FREiEmKkZAEHR

INCOME STATEMENT

(@) Income tax in the consolidated income
statement represents:

(a) FEBRERFITNAEHA:

2006 2005
—EBERE “ZTTHF
(restated)
(EH)
$°000 $000
Fr Fr
Current tax - PRC income tax FEABE - HEMEH
Provision for the year REERE 6,847 4,748
Over-provision in respect of prior years BEFERERT - (50)
6,847 4,698
Deferred tax ELEHIE
Origination and reversal of temporary ERNEENEE
differences AR 3,052 (15,735)
9,899 (11,037)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED +. Z41ERKRZAEH (&

INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

(a) Income tax in the consolidated income (a) ZREBRKRFITRWAEBEA: (&)
statement represents: (continued)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made in the financial statements as the Group
sustained a loss for Hong Kong Profits Tax purposes
during the year. Taxation for the PRC operations is
charged at the appropriate current rates of taxation
ruling in the PRC. During the year, certain PRC
subsidiaries are subject to tax at 50% of the
standard tax rates or fully exempt from income tax
under the relevant tax rules and regulations.

HRAFEARNRE 2 EBEEBREHR
TRETIE U AN SR B3 SR B AS R R 5L
FRMNEHRIELBE - PEEB 2R
ERBRITERRET R -F A RIR
BRABRBERIER - ETHEHBER
BHEIRHER RE0% BANTH IR & 2 B
RRFTISH

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense/ (b) WERARERHE2HEXY (&
(credit) and accounting profit at applicable E) EE AR 2R
tax rates:

2006 2005
—EEXE —ETRHEF
(restated)
(E#H)
$°000 $000
Fr Frr
Profit before taxation B AT &R 437,949 111,837
Notional tax on profit before taxation, ERERBRE R AER
calculated at the rates applicable BRAMGHT X
to profits in the tax jurisdictions BRERAFE
concerned HEHIR 83,624 20,859
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses RAFIR ST 2 FIE R 2 6,808 4,002
Tax effect of non-taxable income ERHMA 2 BT Z (76,057) (14,881)
Tax effect of profits entitled to AEZEHERBRRES
tax exemption in the PRC LBz BB E (10,205) (6,874)
Tax effect of prior year's temporary AEEHAZNEEFE
differences recognised this year ERNERE/REYE 1,427 (7,396)
Tax effect of utilisation of unused tax BRBTFERERMNE
losses not recognised in prior years RERZ I EMEEZ
WIEF & (358) (6,715)
Tax effect of unused tax losses AERERHER 2 AJEH
not recognised BEHIBEZE 4,660 18
Over-provision in prior years N FERERT - (50)
Actual tax expense/(credit) EREBES L (BE) 9,899 (11,037)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section

N EEME

RIEEB(ARIRED E—A N +—F5IH2

161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as EEMWELT:
follows:
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement 2006
Directors’ in kind Discretionary scheme Share-based Total
fees H4 2ER  bonuses contributions  Sub-total  payments ZBIAE
Exfe  BUAE  BRERA BAHEMR Nt RBRE #E
(Note)
(i)
$000 $000 $000 $000 $1000 $1000 $1000
fr fr fr fr fr fr fr
Executive directors UhEs
Wang Mingquan THE - 3 - - 3 457 492
Zang Qiutao ke - 1,704 1,000 - 2704 365 3,069
Li Xueming &4 - 1,694 1,000 - 2,694 365 3,059
Chen Xiaoping R - 2170 2400 - 4570 457 5027
Fan Yan Hok, Philip et - 1813 1,000 139 2,952 365 3317
Huang Chaohua EHE - 1,390 1,000 - 2390 274 2,664
Wong Kam Chung, Raymond ~ E$3% - 1,19 750 % 2,041 214 2315
Chen Shuang B - 2% - - 2% 91 116
Zhang Weiyun RE= - 878 - - 878 91 969
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHHTEZ
directors
Sir David Akers-Jones ERBEL 110 50 - - 160 - 160
Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey 5HE 100 50 - - 150 - 150
Mar Selwyn SR 100 50 - - 150 - 150
310 11,054 7,150 235 18,749 2,739 21488
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) N\. EZ=fM& (&

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
Directors’ inkind  Discretionary

Retirement 2005
scheme Share-based Total

fees 2 RHR bonuses contributions  Sub-otal  payments  —EERE
Ezhe  EMAR  RRRL RIGHEER Nt RIER g

$000 $000 $000
T T T

$000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T

Executive directors UnEs
Wang Mingquan THiE - % - - % - %5
Zang Qiutao AkE - 1694 500 - 21% - 21%
Li Xueming TR - 1,694 500 - 2,1% - 2,19
Chen Xiaoping BT - 1944 1200 - 3144 - 3144
Fan Yan Hok, Philip b - 1,60 420 100 2,125 - 2,125
Huang Chachua EUE - 1,13 700 - 18% - 183
Wong Kam Chung, Raymond 3558 - 1026 180 59 1,265 - 1,265
Chen Shuang BRE - % - - 2% - %5
Zhang Weiyun RE= - 878 - - 878 - 878
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHHTEZ
directors
Sir David Akers-Jones BRERT 110 %5 - - 135 - 135
Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey FHE 100 % - - 125 - 125
Mar Selwyn SRR 100 %5 - - 125 - 125
310 10,102 3,500 159 14,071 - 14,071
Note: These represent the estimated value of share options Bzt HARBARRBRETERTESZE

granted to the directors under the Company’s share
option scheme. The value of these share options is
measured according to the Group’s accounting policies
for share-based payment transactions as set out in note

1(a)(i).

The details of the share options are disclosed under the
paragraph “Share option scheme” in the report of the
directors and note 30.
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9.

10.

Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, all
are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company includes a profit of
$457,845,000 (2005: $7,960,000) which has been dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s
profit for the year:

N. BEFHMER A

AEBREFMENATERES RO
SEEHAI -

T. AR FRREERT
AARBRREEEERNBERA

457,845,0007T (ZFF A4 :7,960,0007T)
EIARAR 2B BIHREA-

bt e REFRNARRR BN LR T:

2006 2005
“EEXRE —ZTThEF
$°000 $'000
Fir Fr
Amount of consolidated profit attributable ~ BFIAARR R IEHRE
to equity shareholders dealt with 2 IR (G R E B F
in the Company’s financial statements 457,845 7,960
Final dividends from associate attributable  Ht_E— {88 B & fE (S
to the profits of the previous financial year, B4 Q88K MR ER
approved and paid during the year BES TR ZIRE 88,632 99,818
Company’s profit for the year FARRARRBF
(note 31(b)) (MFE=+—(b)) 546,477 107,778
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. Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEZHI FTEZHLUBREFE)

11. DIVIDENDS

- KRB

(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders (a) BRI FARATBREZAFER

of the Company attributable to the year B
2006 2005
—BERF —ETHEF
$°000 $000
Fir Fr
Interim dividend declared and paid of BEREZFHEBREER
0.6 cent per ordinary share @HXO 6l (ZZETREF:
(2005: 0.6 cent per ordinary share) FhE@R0.61L) 18,371 15,311
Final dividend proposed after the ‘ERBEZED KK
balance sheet date of 0.6 cent R B8R EER0.61l
per ordinary share (2005: 0.6 cent per (CZZREFBR
ordinary share) T @A%0.611) 18,456 15,311
Special dividend proposed after the REEREEZZD KERIRE
balance sheet date of 0.4 cent per FhEAEAR0.410
ordinary share (2005: Nil) (ZZETRE &) 12,304 -
49,131 30,622
The final dividend and the special dividend REEBBEZRD RO RERE R FR!
proposed after the balance sheet date have not REHRAELEERABERRAE

been recognised as liabilities at the balance sheet

date.

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders (b) BAL—EMREE XAFAH

of the Company attributable to the BEX R FARATRE ZEMR
previous financial year, approved and paid -
during the year
2006 2005
—BERE “TTRF
$°000 $000
Fr T
Final dividend in respect of the BRE—EBREE:
previous financial year, approved TRERBEL T2
and paid during the year, of 0.6 cent ﬂiﬁﬁﬂi g H&%@Hﬁ
per ordinary share (2005: 0.6 cent Bl (ZTZTRF:
per ordinary share) H&%@on 61l) 15,311 15,293
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEZEHN FTEEHL B )

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share

. BREF

(a)

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of $409,347,000
(2005 (restated): $106,808,000) and the weighted
average number of 2,892,282,933 ordinary shares
(2005: 2,550,669,234 ordinary shares) in issue

during the year, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January

Effect of ordinary shares issued
(note 31(c)(ii)

Effect of share options exercised
(note 31(c)(iii))

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares at 31 December

R—A—HEHTERR

BRTEERCFE
(HreE=+—(c)ii))

BITRERECYE
(BfzE=—+—(c)iii)

W+ZA=+—B2
LR EF

BREXREF

EREARBFTHZBAAR
FE {5 Z7|409,347,0007T (

EIBATIER
—ETRHF

(E%R) :106,808,0007T) M F AN B 31T
T 3E A% 0 HNHE S 19 8k2,892,282,933 %
TEiE (T T RHF:2,550,669,2340%
TR st E -HetE AT

LB IR TFIIH
2006 20056
—g®xE TR
’000 ‘000
R FR
2,551,812 2,548,812
338,137 =
2,334 1,857
2,892,283 2,550,669
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(b) Diluted earnings per share
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of $409,347,000
(2005 (restated): $106,808,000) and the weighted
average number of 2,955,671,923 ordinary shares
(2005: 2,588,143,435 ordinary shares), calculated

as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

1. BRERN (88)

(b) BREERF

BREEERA TR A B BRI R e
16 Z7%409,347,000T (=TT HF (&
#?) :106,808,0007T) K& & BAR MNAEF
¥9%12,955,671,923 L@k (=TT R
:2,588,143,435/% L AA%) T -Hit
HERRWAT:

BRI F 8 (BF)

(diluted)

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares at 31 December

Effect of deemed issue of shares
under the Company’s share option
scheme for nil consideration
(note 30)

Weighted average number of ordinary

shares (diluted) at 31 December

2006 2005
—BERF —ETHEF
'000 000
FR Fhz
R+—A=+—BZ
TR T 2 2,892,283 2,550,669
WARAIRBEA D RIERERT 2
BEBTRNDZ
=~ 8 (fiF="1)
63,389 37,474
R+—B=+—Hz
LR T (EE) 2,955,672 2,588,143
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

13. SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment information is presented in respect of the
Group’s business and geographical segments. Business
segment information is chosen as the primary reporting
format because this is more relevant to the Group in

making operating and financial decisions.

Business segments
The Group comprises the following main business

segments:

Infrastructure investment  The operation of a toll bridge to generate
and operation toll fee revenue and investment in
associates which engage in power

industry, to generate dividend income.

Property investment and  The leasing and management of office
management premises and shopping arcades to
generate rental and management fee

income and to gain from the appreciation

in the properties’ values in the long term.

Environmental protection The operation of waste-water treatment
project operation plants, waste-to-energy power plant and
methane-to-energy power plant to

generate revenue from operation services,

finance lease income as well as rental

income.

Environmental protection The provision of management and
project management  consultancy services to environmental
and consultancy protection projects to generate

management and consultancy fee

income.

D EPERIEIR AN G B 2 FRE bR 2 B
2 -BHREHDIERHAREE 2 2ER

PRARBEEERA HEEARESHEEL

MEBFER-

EXKnE

NEBZ EEBEB AT :

HE®RE 2B BB IR A BREUL

8 E&&ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ
A B2 N B LABREUAR
/%\”&Ao

YEKRE HENEBPAZTEN

KER LEG A BRRAES NE
BEWA  LAREMER
Bz KRFHESR BRI

IRIRTEH R 855 7K B 32 R N 7 3%

BB RIEHEMMBRES
TR A B B 2 5 AR A U s
BMERERARES K
AO

IRIRIAE RHIRREEEEKE

BIE KRR o AR 7 LABRER & 18 & JBR
ME AW A
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

13. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 1=, 2 EHE (&)
Business segments (continued) KA (&)
Environmental
Infrastructure Environmental protection project
investment and Property investment protection management and Inter-segment
operation and management project operation consultancy glimination Gonsolidated
GEL L HRREREE FRERgE RREREERES gL &a

2006 0062006 206 200 A0 2006 002006 02006 2006

CEENE CTEnE CERRE CETNE CERAE CEEDE CERAE CREIE CERNE CEDF ERNE CEERE
(restatea) (restated)
(2%) E2)

$000 S0 o0 SO0 Seo0 SO0 o0 SO0 SO0 S0 S0 $00
fr 1 @ o R o m i T i Tt fi T

Revenue from extemal cusiomers——— REMRERIA OB K08 Tge4 17680 MR BT - - - - B 13085
Inter-segment revenue B - - - - - - %78 a0 (1%6789)  (37,110) - -
Other revenue and other income REMEP ZEH

from extemal customers KEREBIA 310,762 191 17,068 YY) B 11U 50 - - JE 1909
Unallocated ofher evenue ARk

and oher incame RERHA - - - - - - - - - - B4 05
Total el W6 99 M7 18611 170453 GHG08 137928 300 (1%6,789) (37.10) 615830 145268
Segment results Mz B4l 4130 B3 A8 TeEN 1677 K022 B9 (7126)  (30479) 4668t 90728
Unallocated operating income AHRIRUA

and expenses RER [8659) (14846)
Proft from aperafions w2 590 758
Finance costs BhER (o631) (3200
Sare o proiosses) of it

ass0ciales Eil/ (BB) 08B 680 - - (%) i - - - - e 680
Income tax i (0899) 11087
Proft afer taxaion BHkEN 48050 120874

Depreciaton and amortisaon 1ERfE

for the year e 1626 14175 2,208 220 9,276 %0 1,39 1,16
Valuation gains on investment RENZRE
propertes i - - BA - - - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

13. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 1=, 2 EHE (&)
Business segments (continued) KA (&)
Environmental
Infrastructure Environmental protection project
investment and Property investment protection management and Inter-segment
operation and management project operation consultancy glimination Consolidated
ERREneE HERERER FRERgE FREAERRER gL &&
2006 205 2006 05 2006 05 2006 205 2006 205 2006 205
ZERAE CTIRE C3EAE CTERE IERAE CERRE I3EME CTERE IERRE CTRRE CEINE CIEES
(restated) (restated)
(28) (&%)
SO0 SO0 Sow  Som S0 S0 0w  Som S0 S0 Sow SO
i fr r S r S i 1 i 1 i fr
Segment asses HH4E 75801 64027 200568 36791 2201384 U6 B2 520% - - 3150495 1,967,368
Intrestin assocetes BenTliER - - - W - - - S
Unallocated asses FAREE 464038 295519
Tota assefs EESE 3614975 2676181
Segment liabties i 2314 218 6199 6980 453060  2099% /sl 4649 - SO < /AR
Unallocated liablies FARER 1,089,389 118163
Totalbiltes BlsE 1,556,082 1,404,966
Capltl expenditue incured RERRERD
during the year LT 182 B 1l T 1083381 62074 LYY
Geographical segments HED S

The Group’s business participates in two principal

economic environments. Hong Kong and other parts of
the PRC are the major markets for the Group’s business.

In presenting information on the basis of geographical

segments, segment revenue is based on the

geographical location of customers. Segment assets and

capital expenditure are based on the geographical

location of the assets.

AEBZEGREXNMEIRERMRE-&
BRTEEMR SN EEXE L EED

o

K2R BERR DRRARKER
HIPT A Rt B R E - DR B ERE AR
A PAB E R PRI ARat HE A

N
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEZHI FTEZHLUBREFE)

13. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Geographical segments (continued)

Revenue from external customers:

Hong Kong
Other parts of the PRC

Segment assets:

Hong Kong
Other parts of the PRC

Capital expenditure incurred
during the year:

Hong Kong
Other parts of the PRC

Annual Report 2006 —ZZXFEER

REIREPEA:

B
B A i

D
Dm“
N
e

o oj
o

\|

B E i

AEENELDN
BARMX:

B
PR A i

t=. 2EE®E (&)

HEDEL (&)

2006 2005
—EER “ETRHF
(restated)

(E#)
$°000 $000

Fi Fir
2,473 3,955
233,386 128,900
235,859 132,855
2006 2005
—EER “ETRHF
(restated)

(E#R)
$°000 $000

Fi Fir
462,694 467,094
3,152,281 2,209,087
3,614,975 2,676,181
2006 2005
—EERE —EERF
$°000 $000

Fr Fir
1,314 767
1,034,129 636,025
1,035,443 636,792
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

14. FIXED ASSETS

B BEEE

(@) The Group (a) &=&KE
Motor Interest in
vehicles, leasehold
Leasehold electronic [and held
Toll improvements,  equipment under
bridge  Waste-water fumiture  and other operating Total
ancillary  treatment Machinery ~ and fixtures fixed assets leases fixed
Tol  facilies infrastructre  Land and and  HEHE REEFRE Construction Investment  EEERE assets
bridge ~ WEER  FKEE  buidings  equipment  E5GA REf  inprogress  Sub-total  properties ¥hz  EREE
WERR  KERE @ BEER  IHREF HER3E I%E  EEEE  fRIR M RENE EEIMER 48
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $1000 $000 $1000 $000 $000
i i i i i fr fr fr i i i i
Cost or valuation: HABILE:
At 1 January 2006 REENE
(restated) -R-B (&%) 581,367 20,361 - 139,420 - 444 16,043 358,760 1,120,302 262,194 76328 1458914
Exchange adjustments EXHE 22,489 788 - 1,024 - 81 509 13878 38,769 6,053 2,953 41,175
Addtions KE
- through acauistion -HRE
of business 2K - - 143,749 440 55,048 - 1,198 - 225,005 - 128,012 353,017
- others i - - - 5,724 4,406 562 8,054 591,167 609,933 - 40,330 650,263
Transfer £
- from constructon in -RAERE
progress 1B - - - 123,280 360,235 - - (481,745 ) 1,710 (1,770) - -
{0 "Finance lease -Rft[BERE
feceliables [Jev] - - (B79)  (0805)  (41969) - - - ) - - )
Disposals & - - - - - (2,098) 467 ) - (2565)  (104,000) - (106,565 )
Fair value adjustment MERR - - - - - - - - - 5,831 - 5,831
At31December 006 R-EEAE
A=1-A 603,856 21,149 - 185,833 - 3,006 25,937 482,060 1,321,841 168,308 41628 1781,112
Representing: f&:
Cost HAE 603,856 24,149 - 185,833 - 3,006 25,937 482,060 1,321,841 - 47623 1,569,464
Valuation - 2006 [fE--557F - - - - - - - - - 168,308 - 168,308
603,856 21,149 - 185,833 - 3,006 25,937 482,060 1,321,841 168,308 41628  1781,112
Accumulated depreciation Z3ffiERE#:
and amortisation:
At 1 January 2006 RIEENE
(ieseted) -5-B(29) B0 i - e T ) - RS - % 88
Exchange adjustments S5 1,288 41 - i - 5 130 - 1,865 - 106 1911
Cragelorteyesr  KEEFE Y ) - - W ) - s BW
Writen back on disposal ~ HiEBER - - - - - (1820) (146) - (1,966) - - (1,966)
At31December 2006 RZFENE
e 39,218 12,801 - 52,086 - 510 7,485 - 112,100 - 5,040 117,140
Net book value: EEFE:
At3tDecember 006 W-EERE
+ZR=t-H 564,638 8,348 - 133,747 - 2,496 18,452 482,060 1,209,741 168,308 242,583 1,620,632

At 31 December 2006, the Group was applying for the
property ownership certificates and land use rights in respect
of land and buildings and interest in leasehold land held under
operating leases of $54,662,000 and $89,097,000

respectively from the relevant PRC government authorities.

AR AR

-
e
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R-ZBERFT_A=1T—8B A&EERTED
71 /54,662,0007T }289,097,000 JT.2 - R EF
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= Notes to the Financial Statements
> MBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

14. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(@) The Group (continued)

Cost or valuation:

At 1 January 2005

Exchange adjustments

Additions

- through acquisition
of business

- others

Transfer

- from construction in
progress

- to “Finance lease
recelvables”

Disposals

Fair value adjustment

At 31 December 2005
(restated)

Representing:

Cost
Valuation - 2005

Accumulated depreciation
and amortisation:

At 1 January 2005
Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals

At 31 December 2006
(restated)

Net book value:

At 31 December 2006
(restated)

L gl
ZT-RER)

f&:

ey
[bE--350F

RiffERRE

R-2RRE-A-H
A

RERHE
HERAE

LS g
=t-R(ER)
FESE

LS g
=1-B(E%)

1 BEEE (&)
(a) A8 ()

Motor Interest in

vehicles, leasehold

Leasehold  electronic [and held

Toll improvements,  equipment under
bridge ~ Waste-water funiture ~ and other operating Total
ancilary  treatment Machinery  and fitures ~ fixed assets leases fixed
Tl faclifes infrastuctre Land and and  BEME AEETRE  Constuction Ivestiment  5EEHE assels
bidge  WEER  SKER  buldngs  eoupment  EBFA RER  inpogess  Subdofdl  properties 8. HREE
hEER  WERE O ERER  DHRER  HERER BkE  EREE  ERIE G REME REDHES |
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i i i I I I I I i i i i
571,305 20,009 - 124,160 - 3128 6927 3209 728733 230,054 - 938,787
10,062 352 - 13 - 1 ) - 10650 - - 10650
- - 50232 1527 397 - 438 - 99,994 - 66,076 166,070
- - 15,256 12,358 35,609 1,489 5609 355,551 425922 - 10,252 436,174
- - - (6910) - - - - (6910) 6910 - -
- - (65,488) - (69,566 - - - (135054) - - (135054)
- - - (1850) - (182) (o) - (2943) - - (2943)
- - - - - - - - - %5230 - %5230
581,367 20,361 - 139.420 - 4441 16,043 B0 1120392 262,19 7638 1458914
581,367 20,361 - 139420 - 4441 16,043 B0 1120302 - 16328 1196720
- - - - - - - - - 262,19 - 262,19
581,367 20,361 - 139.420 - 4441 16,043 B0 1120302 262,194 1638 1458914
14,004 5784 - 45477 - 1720 3410 - 70,395 - - 70,395
28 101 - 9 - 1 U - 301 - - 31
10839 3209 - 2962 - 28 1,156 - 18,464 - 283 18,747
- - - (10) - (17) (58) - (685) - - (685)
25,089 9114 - 48438 - 1882 4082 - 88,565 - 283 88,848
556,278 1,47 - 90982 - 2559 12,001 8760 1081827 262,19 6045 12370066
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

14. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(b) The Company

Cost:
At 1 January 2006

Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2006

Accumulated

depreciation:
At 1 January 2006
Charge for the year

Written back on

disposals

At 31 December 2006

Net book value:

At 31 December 2006

180

th BEEE (&)

(b) &AAF)
Furniture Total
Office Leasehold and fixed
equipment improvements fixtures Motor assets
NS HEME BRER vehicles EEEE
R %1 ®E AE am
$'000 $'000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fi
HAE:
R-EE E—A—H 1,201 1,861 232 934 4,228
BE 252 - - 1,089 1,341
HE (140) (1,861) (221) = (2,222)
RZZERE
+-A=+—-H 1,313 - 11 2,023 3,347
2iE:
R=ZE F—A—H 1,040 1,428 196 250 2,914
KEEHE 78 186 15 380 659
HERRE
(136) (1,614) (203) = (1,953)
RZBERF
+=-R=1-8 982 = 8 630 1,620
IREFE:
RZBERF
TZA=t+-H 331 - 3 1,393 1,721
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

14. FIXED ASSETS (continued) i BEEE (&)
(b) The Company (continued) (b) AAT (&)
Furniture Total
Office Leasehold and fixed
equipment improvements fixtures Motor assets
WAE HENE BRR vehicles EEEE
RE % %E "E ok
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Cost: BAfE:
At 1 January 2005 R-EZRF—A—H 1,434 1,861 244 250 3,789
Additions £E 81 - - 684 765
Disposals HE (314) - (12) - (326)

At 31 December 2005 ~ WZZERF

+-A=f+-H 1,201 1,861 232 934 4,228
Accumulated RIE:
depreciation:
At 1 January 2005 R-ZZTHF—HA—H 1,270 1,242 192 188 2,892
Charge for the year TEERE 68 186 15 62 331
Written back on HE R
disposals (298) - (11) - (309)

At 31 December 2005 ~ WZZERF

Net book value: BREFE:

At 31 December 2005 RZEZTHF
+-A=1+—-H 161 433 36 684 1,314
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

14. FIXED ASSETS (continued) T,

(c)

Investment properties of the Group were revalued
as at 31 December 2006 on an open market value
basis calculated by reference to net rental income
allowing for reversionary income potential. The
valuations were carried out by an independent firm
of surveyors, Greater China Appraisal Limited, who
have among their staff associate members of the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent
experience in the location and category of property
being revalued.

The analysis of net book value of properties is as
follows:

In the PRC H

Hong Kong: BA:

— medium-term leases —hEIHE

- long leases —RHHEE

Other parts of the PRC: AR B LA 3 [

— medium-term leases —hHEIHE

— long leases —REHE

Representing: R&:

Land and buildings THREF

Investment properties REME

Interest in leasehold land RECEHERE
held under operating leases ZHE TR

BE&E (&)

(c) AEBZRENMEER _TTRF+-
A=1+—BREFABFE A FHE
SWAMTEZ AFTEETER A
EREAEMTEEMEARARE
T-EPETREBREMEEEER
U il E Y E AR R BT B
[EEE 8

(d) MERREFEZIT:

The Group

rEE
2006 2005
“—EERE —ZTTRF
$°000 $000
Fi Fir
63,895 65,932
1,759 106,200
477,650 255,739
1,334 1,350
544,638 429,221
133,747 90,982
168,308 262,194
302,055 353,176
242 583 76,045
544,638 429,221
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

14. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(e)

Fixed assets leased out under operating leases

The Group leases out properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period
of one to ten years, with an option to renew the lease
after that date at which time all terms are
renegotiated. None of the leases includes

contingent rentals.

All properties held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of investment

property are disclosed as investment property.

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are

receivable as follows:

B EIREE (&

(e) RELLMEMLZETEEE
AEBRBEEHEHEHBEY R Ll
EZFHER LN RBP—2T5 X
EEBEELN BERAAGREEENE
Rl LMHEG T BESAEE-

PIERBREHERALENEREY
XEBRZMEABBEREY -

AEBRBETAFEROGEHERRER
R R E S FRARRRAN T :

The Group
PN |

2006 2005
—EBRE —ETHEF
(restated)
(E®)
$°000 $000
Fr Frr
Within one year —FR 10,323 9,300
After one year but within five years —FREREA 29,877 13,240
After five years HF% 164,742 51,002
204,942 73,542
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B3 R 2 M

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEZEHN FTEEHL B )

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost:
At 1 January

Exchange adjustments

Addition through acquisition of business

At 31 December

Accumulated amortisation:
At 1 January

Exchange adjustments

Charge for the year

At 31 December

Net book value:

At 31 December

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “Direct

costs and operating expenses” in the consolidated

income statement.

China Everbright International Limited FE ¥ K BB AR 2 7

th BELEE

BAE:
w—HA—H

BEE 5 72
BBREERILE
W+=—B=+—8
Rt
w—H—8

P 5 32

NFE G
W+-ZRA=+—H

BRERE:

wt+t-—A=+—H

The Group

EN-

£

Waste-water
treatment concession rights

SEKERE

B
2006 2005
ZEEXRE “ETRF
$°000 $000
F T
34,548 -
1,336 -
32,163 34,548
68,047 34,548
115 -
35 -
1,485 115
1,635 115
66,412 34,433

REREHT AR BERZ [ERERAR
REBER]Ae
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEZHI FTEZHLUBREFE)

16. GOODWILL

Cost:

At 1 January

Addition through acquisition of
business

Exchange adjustments

At 31 December

Impairment tests for cash-generating units

containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating

units (“CGU”) identified according to business segment

as follows:

Infrastructure investment and
operation (Toll bridge)

Environmental protection
project operation
(waste-water treatment plants

and waste-to-energy power plant)

tr BB
The Group
rEE
2006 2005
“—EERE —ZTTRF
$°000 $000
Fr Fir
RAE:

m—A—H 48,236 46,133

BRWIEEREE
- 2,103
R 82 =
Wnt+=ZA=+—8H 48,318 48,236

BEHECRSEEBUZERAR

AEBEREGABIERETAHIZES

HEBMIAT:
The Group
REE
2006 2005
= & %3 “TThEF
$’000 $000
F T
HERENEE
(W BER) 25,340 25,340
RIRERZE
(57K BRIRRR
WOIR I E )
22,978 22,896
48,318 48,236

Annual Report 2006 —ZZXFEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

16. GOODWILL (continued)

The recoverable amount of the respective CGU is
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five year
period. Discount rates of 10% — 12% have been used
for the value-in-use calculations. Management
determined the budgets based on independent
professional traffic studies and/or service agreements
governing the relevant operations. The discount rates
used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the

relevant segments.

ﬂ.

N

BE (&)

WeEEBMN 2 AIREHREREEAEE
Bt ERERBREEBERECRFUH
BEZBReREMT ARG EFEREEBZ
BIAEA10%E12% - EEERBEEY B
ZimREMER,REEBRERZ RIS
B ETAWERE -FEA AR ERREA
BRI e RMBRE D B2 ek

China Everbright International Limited FE ¥ K BB AR 2 7



Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES Tt M A RS
The Company
KA FE]
2006 2005
—EERE —ZETRF
$°000 $000
Fr Frr
Unlisted shares/capital contributions, FE LMD LB
at cost B ANE 388,642 388,642
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSH B A B 508 2,566,729 2,126,938
2,955,371 2,515,580
Less: impairment losses B FEREE (1,438,917) (1,480,947)
1,516,454 1,034,633
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASTF B A R TR (64,505) (56,408)
1,451,949 978,225
Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, fEU (FEfT) INB A R IBAERT 2.8
interest free and not expected to be recovered within RGN —FAEER-
one year.
The following list contains only the particulars of IATNESHEAEEEE BEEKBERBK
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets FEFENBARER BB EEEIN AT
or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is RO AT Eke

ordinary unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

Name of company
DEER

Everbright Environmental
Energy (Changzhou)
Co. Ltd. (“EB Energy
(Changzhou)")*

(note (a))

RRBRRER (M)
BRAT
(TEABER (FM) 1)
(Hiit(a))

Everbright Environmental
Energy (Jiangyin)
Co. Ltd. (“EB Energy
(Jiangyin)")* (note (b))
EARRER (IR)
BRAT
(ERRER (1R 1)
(Hit (b))

Everbright Environmental
Energy (Suzhou)
Co. Ltd. (“EB Energy

(Suzhou)")* (formerly known

as Suzhou SuNeng

Waste-to-Energy Co. Ltd.)

RARBRRAEIR (BRH)
AR (TR

Place of
establishment/
incorporation
and operation
R/ ZEMAL
RSEHH

PRC
G

PRC
i

PRC
i

BeIR (BRI 1)* (AR [ &R M
)

B EEARAR)

17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of
issued and paid
up capital
EBTR
BRREER

RMB137,620,000
N
137,520,0007T

USD6,000,000
6,000,000 7T

RMB167,000,000
NG
167,000,0007C

tt B D RER (&

Proportion of ownership interest

BERRERLA

Group’s held by
effective the held by a
interest Company  subsidiary
x5@z MANE  ARELRE
BiRER oL 2]
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
Note (c) - Note (c)
FizE(c) FizE(c)

China Everbright International Limited FE ¥ K BB AR 2 7

Principal
activity

TEEK

Design,
construction,
operation and
management of
waste-to-energy
power plant

b EE 28R
ERARIE

Design,
construction,
operation and
management of
waste-to-energy
power plant

Rt REEER
ERNINE
2R

Design,
construction,
operation and
management of
waste-to-energy
power plant

Hit s BER
ERARRE
EER



Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

Name of company

Ak

Everbright Environmental
Energy (Suzhou)
Methane-to-Energy
Co. Ltd. (“EB
Methane-to-energy”)*
(note(d))

RABRRAER (BrN)
AREBERAT

(DEXBREERR])"

(Hat(a)

Everbright Environmental
Energy (Yixing)
Co. Ltd. (“EB Energy
(Yixing)")* (note (e))
KRBRAR (HH)
BRAT
(MEARR (ER) ])*
(Kizt(e)

Everbright Environmental
(Suzhou) Solid Waste
Treatment Co. Ltd.
(“EB Solid Waste")*
(note (f))

ARFR () Bl
BEVMREERAR
([EABERERERR) "
(HfzE(r))

Place of
establishment/
incorporation
and operation
R/ ZEM AL L
REE

PRC
FE

PRC
FE

PRC
FE

17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of
issued and paid
up capital
EETR
BRREEH

USD2,100,000
2,100,000 7T

USD11,520,000
11,520,000% T

USD2,432,500
2,432,500 7T

tt. MEARER ()

Proportion of ownership interest

BERRERLA

Group’s held by
effective the held by a
interest Company  subsidiary
r5@z  MmAAE  HARELRE
BiRER oL 2]
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%

Annual Report 2006 —ZZXFEER

Principal
activity

TEEK

Design,
construction,
operation and
management of
methane-to-

energy power plant

Rt s 2ER
ERAREER

Design,
construction,
operation and
management of
waste-to-energy
power plant

Hit s BER
BRNRNE
2R

Design,
construction,
operation and
management of
solid waste
disposal centre
R g 28R
EEEREEY
BERDL
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 1t MiB2A iR (&

Name of company
DEER

Everbright Water
(Ji'nan) Limited
(“EB Water (Jinan)")*
(note (g))
FAKT (ER) BRAR
(MAKT (R |)*
(Hit(g)

Everbright Water
(Zibo) Limited
(“EB Water (Zibo)")*
(note (h))
FHAKH (Ed) BRAR
([FEAKH CeE) 1)~
(Hf&t(h)

Fuzhou Guang Min
Road and Bridge
Construction &
Development
Company Limited
("FZGM")

Rt EBEER
FREFRAH
([ERBERI)*

190

Proportion of ownership interest

BERRERLA
Place of
establishment/ Particulars of Group’s held by

incorporation issued and paid effective the held by a
and operation up capital interest Company  subsidiary
KL/ AR EBTR  AREZ HBEAR  AHKWEAR
RisE BRRTER  HRER oL 2]
PRC USD18,500,000 100% - 100%

H 18,500,000% 75
PRC USD20,508,000 100% - 100%

H 20,508,000% 7T
PRC RMB224,730,000 Note (i) - Note (i)
FE  AR¥224,730,0007 Kzt Kzt

China Everbright International Limited FE ¥ K BB AR 2 7

Principal
activity

TEEK

Operation and
maintenance of
waste-water
treatment plants
2EREERE
KRR

Design,
construction,
operation and
maintenance of
waste-water
treatment plants
R BEEER
BERE
KRR

Development,
construction,
operation and
maintenance of
atoll bridge

FE gk 28R
REREWERR



Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

Name of company

Ak

On Land Limited
BRBERAR

Qingdao EB-VW
Waste Water
Treatment Co., Ltd.
(“Qingdao EB-VW")*

BEERBTKEE
BRAR7
([ESYal)*

Sino Villa Holdings
Limited

* Registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign

Place of
establishment/
incorporation
and operation
R/ ZEM AL L
REE

Hong Kong
&g

PRC
FE

British Virgin
Islands
(“BVI")IPRC
ABRRES/
"

investment enterprise.

# Registered under the laws of the PRC as sino-foreign co-

operative joint venture.

17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of
issued and paid
up capital
EETR
BRREEH

2 shares of $1 each
REREE
17T

USD15,257,380
15,257,380% T

1 share of US$1
1REE
EG)

tt. MEARER ()

Proportion of ownership interest

BERRERLA

Group’s held by
effective the held by a
interest Company  subsidiary
r5@z  MmAAE  HARELRE
BiRER oL 2]
100% - 100%
Note (j) - Note (j)
Ht() Hat()
100% 100% -

*

#

Principal
activity

TEEK

Property
investment

MERE

Construction,
operation and
maintenance of
waste-water
treatment plants
BiE 2EREE
RESKEER

Property
investment

VESIE

IR BDZ LM RSN IR E 5

WRIRH BDE MBI EIER EhEe
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Everbright Environmental Energy (Changzhou)
Investment Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and the foreign investor of EB Energy
(Changzhou), is committed to contribute the full amount
of the registered capital in EB Energy (Changzhou).

Pursuant to a concession right agreement, EB Energy
(Changzhou) will design, construct, operate and manage
a waste-to-energy power plant to provide waste treatment
service in Changzhou city, the PRC for a period of 25.5
years. Upon expiry of the concession period, the waste-
to-energy power plant and related facilities will be
transferred to a local government authority. The waste-
to-energy power plant is expected to have a daily capacity
of 800 tonnes. The fee charged by EB Energy
(Changzhou) is governed by the relevant concession right
agreement. During the concession period, EB Energy
(Changzhou) has the obligation to maintain the waste-to-
energy power plant in good condition.

Everbright Environmental Energy (Jiangyin) Investment
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
the foreign investor of EB Energy (Jiangyin), is committed
to contribute the full amount of the registered capital in
EB Energy (Jiangyin).

Pursuant to a concession right agreement, EB Energy
(Jiangyin) will design, construct, operate and manage a
waste-to-energy power plant to provide waste treatment
service in Jiangyin city, the PRC for a period of 30 years.
Upon expiry of the concession period, the waste-to-
energy power plant and related facilities will be transferred
to a local government authority. The waste-to-energy
power plant is expected to have a daily capacity of 800
tonnes. The fee charged by EB Energy (Jiangyin) is
governed by the relevant concession right agreement.
During the concession period, EB Energy (Jiangyin) has
the obligation to maintain the waste-to-energy power plant
in good condition.

tt. MEARER ()

Wit

(a)

ARAZ 2 EWERRFRICKEER (FM)
SNTHREBEE RARRFREER (BM) REBR
NAE] A EASKEEIR (BIN) 2REEME
P

BB BT A& ek - e RaEIR (BN &%
FHRE REREE —RKUREEER
ABRREMNMREREERE A =TH
FH AT HiE Mg Rk R B B R
K2 AR B 2% e S 45 7 2 St IR T AL A P A - TR
NIFRIEBR BT ZEIE 2 A800ME
REeR (BM) Tkl z R RIBEEEARE
R A R AT E R AT E B o
REER (BM) BE THEFBRR R IEE TR
TER AR

ARRZ2EWBRRIFRICKEER OTR)
SNTIREBEERARRFREER OLR) REAR
NAEl A EANKEIR OLR) 28GEME
P

RBRFFEER R SRER OLR) KR
2R 2ENEE - FRAUPRERER
ATRETEMRENREERSSH=1
F AR ERE ML SRR EER N
HH AR MG B R E B T A B PR B - TR AL
PR ERE B 2 228 R800ME - e X
BEIR OTR2) FRIER 2 B3R R IR B /R A 8
FRFE 2B MER RS HIA - JER
R (U1R) AR AR FRINERERE
REFAR
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

Everbright Environmental Energy (Suzhou) Investment
Limited (“EB Energy (Suzhou) Investment”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company and the foreign joint
venture partner of EB Energy (Suzhou), is committed to
contribute the full amount of the registered capital in EB
Energy (Suzhou). Net profit of EB Energy (Suzhou), after
payment of an agreed sum of RMB880,000 annually to
the PRC joint venture partner, is fully attributable to EB
Energy (Suzhou) Investment.

Pursuant to a concession right agreement, EB Energy
(Suzhou) will design, construct, operate and manage a
waste-to-energy power plant to provide waste treatment
service in Suzhou city, the PRC for a period of 25 years.
Upon expiry of the concession period, the waste-to-
energy power plant and related facilities will be transferred
to the PRC joint venture partner. The waste-to-energy
power plant is expected to have a daily capacity of 1,500
tonnes. The fee charged by EB Energy (Suzhou) is
governed by the relevant concession right agreement.
During the concession period, EB Energy (Suzhou) has
the obligation to maintain the waste-to-energy power plant
in good condition.

EB Energy (Suzhou) Investment, the foreign investor of
EB Methane-to-energy, is committed to contribute the full
amount of the registered capital in EB Methane-to-energy.

Pursuant to a concession right agreement, EB Methane-
to-energy will design, construct, operate and manage a
methane-to-energy power plant to generate electricity in
Suzhou city, the PRC for a period of 25 years. The
methane-to-energy power plant is expected to supply no
less than 12,480,000 kilowatt-hour of electricity per year.
The fee charged by EB Methane-to-energy is governed
by the relevant concession right agreement.

tt. MEARER ()

Htat: (&)

(c)

RARZ2EH B RBFIE AR (FM)
INFEEBHEXRRIRRER (BN IREH
BRAR] ([FEARBER (BRM) & ) AFEEA
HREER (BRMN) 2EEEME R KREER
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BIBR S E R SRR (BN #5:%
R 2EREE RSN TR
ARBEMNTIRES SRR RS AR -+ R
FfFRIF L BB MR BRI B
TR SRR 5 & S B AR - TB ST
RGBT H 2 RIEEA1,5000F F K
BER (BRI FTuk Bz 53R R IB B A A [
R E B T E IR P A S A K
BEIR (BRM) B B TEF R R B BT
RiFkiste

RKRBREBEERRIINTREESARRREER
(BN IRE  AGEIASRNBREER RS
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(e)

Everbright Environmental Energy (Yixing) Investment
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
the foreign investor of EB Energy (Yixing), is committed
to contribute the full amount of the registered capital in
EB Energy (Yixing).

Pursuant to a concession right agreement, EB Energy
(Yixing) will design, construct, operate and manage a
waste-to-energy power plant to provide waste treatment
service in Yixing city, the PRC for a period of 25 years.
Upon expiry of the concession period, the waste-to-
energy power plant and related facilities will be transferred
to a local government authority. The waste-to-energy
power plant is expected to have a daily capacity of 500
tonnes. The fee charged by EB Energy (Yixing) is
governed by the relevant concession right agreement.
During the concession period, EB Energy (Yixing) has
the obligation to maintain the waste-to-energy power plant
in good condition.

China Everbright Environmental Solid Waste Treatment
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
the foreign investor of EB Solid Waste, is committed to
contribute the full amount of the registered capital in EB
Solid Waste.

Pursuant to a concession right agreement, EB Solid Waste
will design, construct, operate and manage a solid waste
disposal centre to provide waste treatment service in
Suzhou city, the PRC for a period of 30 years. Upon expiry
of the concession period, the solid waste disposal centre
will be transferred to a local government authority. The
solid waste disposal centre is expected to have a total
capacity of 600,000 cubic metre. The fee charged by EB
Solid Waste is governed by the relevant concession right
agreement. During the concession period, EB Solid Waste
has the obligation to maintain the solid waste disposal
centre in good condition.

tt B D RER (&

Kiat: ()

(e)
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P
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(9)

On 31 October 2006, EB Water (Jinan) acquired the
waste-water treatment business together with the
corresponding assets from Jinan State-owned Assets
Commission and Jinan Utilities Authority at a
consideration of RMB400,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately $392,209,000). In addition, pursuant to a
concession right agreement, EB Water (Jinan) was
granted an exclusive right to operate the waste-water
treatment plants to provide waste-water treatment service
in certain specified areas in Jinan city, the PRC for a
period of 30 years commencing from November 2006.
Upon the expiry of the concession period, EB Water
(Jinan) will cease to have any rights and obligations under
the concession right agreement and the assets acquired
as referred to above will be transferred back to a local
government authority.

The designed daily capacity of waste-water treatment
plants is 420,000 tonnes. The revenue charged by EB
Water (Jinan) is governed by the relevant waste-water
treatment service agreement. During the concession
period, EB Water (Jinan) has the obligation to promptly
repair or upgrade the waste-water treatment facilities and
equipment.

On 1 December 2005, EB Water (Zibo) acquired the
waste-water treatment business together with the
corresponding assets and liabilities from Zibo Finance
Bureau and Zibo Environmental Waste Water Treatment
Company (“the Transferors”) at a consideration of
RMB224,055,000 (equivalent to approximately
$214,891,000). In addition, pursuant to a concession right
agreement, EB Water (Zibo) was granted the exclusive
right to operate the waste-water treatment plants to
provide waste-water treatment service in certain specified
areas in Zibo city, the PRC for a period of 25 years
commencing from December 2005. Upon expiry of the
concession period, EB Water (Zibo) will cease to have
any rights and obligations under the concession right
agreement and the assets acquired as referred to above
will be transferred back to the Transferors.

tt B RER ()

Kiat: ()

(9)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

The designed daily capacity of waste-water treatment
plants is 250,000 tonnes. The revenue charged by EB
Water (Zibo) is governed by the relevant waste-water
treatment service agreement. During the concession
period, EB Water (Zibo) has the obligation to promptly
repair or upgrade the waste-water treatment facilities and
equipment.

Greenway Venture Limited (“Greenway”), an 80% owned
subsidiary of the Company and the foreign joint venture
partner of FZGM, is committed to contribute the full
amount of FZGM’s registered capital. Net profit (after
payment of an agreed sum ranging from RMB600,000 to
RMB2,500,000 annually to the PRC joint venture partner
of FZGM) of FZGM should first be applied for the
repayment of capital and advances made by Greenway.
After the capital and advances made by Greenway have
been fully repaid, the net profit of FZGM (after payment
of an agreed sum to the PRC joint venture partner
mentioned above) is to be shared by Greenway and the
PRC joint venture partner on a 90:10 basis.

Pursuant to the joint venture agreement of FZGM, FZGM
was granted a right to construct, operate and maintain a
toll bridge in Fuzhou city, the PRC. After the completion
of the toll bridge construction, FZGM has an operating
period of the toll bridge for a period of 30 years
commencing from January 2003. Upon expiry of the
operating period, FZGM will transfer all the fixed assets
and the operating right to the PRC joint venture partner.
The toll fee is based on the type of vehicles and it is
subject to the approval from the relevant local government
authorities. During the operating period, FZGM has the
obligation to maintain the toll bridge in good condition.

EB-VW HK Holding Company Limited (“EB-VW”), an 60%
owned subsidiary of the Company and the foreign joint
venture partner of Qingdao EB-VW, is committed to
contribute 60% of Qingdao EB-VW's registered capital.
The remaining 40% registered capital is contributed by
the PRC joint venture partner, by way of transferring
waste-water treatment plants to Qingdao EB-VW. EB-VW
is fully entitled to the net profit of Qingdao EB-VW for the
first 14 years of the joint venture period. From the 15th
year of the joint venture period onwards, the net profit of
Qingdao EB-VW is to be shared by EB-VW and the PRC
joint venture partner on a 98:2 basis.

tt B RER ()

Kiat: ()
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

Pursuant to a waste-water treatment agreement, Qingdao
EB-VW will provide the PRC joint venture partner with
design, construction, maintenance and operation services
for waste-water treatment facilities and the provision of
waste-water treatment services in Qingdao, the PRC for
a period of 25 years commencing from January 2005.
Furthermore, Qingdao EB-VW is obliged to construct
extension of the existing facilities.

Upon expiry of joint venture agreement, the fixed assets
of Qingdao EB-VW will be transferred to the PRC joint
venture partner. The waste-water treatment plants are
expected to have aggregate daily capacity of 220,000
cubic metre. The waste-water treatment revenue charged
by Qingdao EB-VW is governed by the relevant waste-
water treatment agreement. During the joint venture
period, Qingdao EB-VW has the obligation to maintain
the waste-water treatment facilities in good condition.

tt. MEARER ()

Kiat: ()
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BEREERE X ATEESMRETKE
BRE A —TTRF AR /M- TH
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

18. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

T\ BEQEER

The Group The Company
PN | ¥ /NG
2006 2005 2006 2005
—gTiE -—TTRF —EEAE —TTHES
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Frr
Unlisted capital FLEMEE:
contributions, at cost B AME - - - 205,199
Share of net assets PTG B E T 442 413,304 - -
442 413,304 - 205,199

The following list contains only the particulars of
associates, all of which are unlisted corporate entities,
which principally affected the results or assets of the

ATEFIHE ARSI R BN EEBKEIEY
BOMANT (BAELTRLER) SR

Group.
Proportion of ownership interest
BEERERLH
Group’s held by
Form of Place of effective the held by

business  establishment interest Company subsidiaries Principal
Name of associate structure  and operation KXEEZ HAAH HHEAR activity
L NGEA $HRENHE RUREEHR BRER 2] 2] TEXH
Qingdao Veolia Water Established PRC 21% - 21% Operation
Operating Company X3z s of waste-water
Limited treatment
BERVIKKES plants
BRAF EETKRER

Note: During the year, the Company disposed of its 44.12%
interest in Newton Industrial Limited (“Newton”). Newton
holds an 34% equity interest in Shenzhen Mawan Power
Company Limited, a sino-foreign joint venture
established in the PRC which operates two power plants
in Shenzhen, the PRC.

MaF: FR-AAREHE T Newton Industrial
Limited ([Newton])44.12%#z5e
NewtoniF B &5 EE N BR AT (—K
A B2 RINE BB FE) 34%ARANHE
A RERBRY A S IR BB R
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ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

18. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued) TN BEQATRER (&

Additional combined financial information in respect ERAEEKE N2 EIIN TR ERE
of the Group’s associates is given as follows: BT
2006 2005
ZEBERRE —_ZTTRF
$°000 $000
Fr Fr
(i) Operating results (Note) () &S (W)
Turnover BEH 18,600 18,000
Depreciation nE -
Profit before taxation bR AT & F 86,236 178,492
Profit after taxation PRiiE 2R 73,571 154,255
Group's share of profits after REBEFGBE AR Z
taxation for the year attributable AEERBIEBT
to associates 32,658 68,045
Note: Operating results of Newton are included up to the date MfsE: NewtonZ & & HEEANREHEB AL
of disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEZEHN FTEEHL B )

Additional combined financial information in respect
of the Group’s associates is given as follows:

(continued)

18. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

th BERTER (F

AFRAEEKRE AR EISHTKERR
Bl (&)

2006 2005
—EEXRE —TERHF
$°000 $000
Fi Frr
(i) Balance sheet (i) BEBEX
Non-current assets FEREBEE 241 935,314
Current assets TRENBE 5,481 4,671
Current liabilities FEEE (3,619) (2,045)
Net assets BEFHE 2,103 937,940
Group’s share of net assets REEFT{h
attributable to associates NElZ BEFE 442 413,304
19. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS th BB EE
The Group The Company
KEE ARQFE
2006 2005 2006 2005
—BEARF —TTLRF —BTANF TTIF
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Frr Fi Frr
Available-for-sale equity FERAES:
securities:
- Listed in Hong Kong —BALEM 49,327 38,282 - =
— Unlisted outside Hong Kong —BAEIMERIE ETH 13,649 13,649 13,649 13,649
62,976 51,931 13,649 13,649
Market value of listed tm@EEHEe
securities mE 49,327 38,282 - =

China Everbright International Limited FE ¥ K BB AR 2 7



& Notes to the Financial Statements
" B ERRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

20. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

Additional combined financial information in respect
of the Group’s associates is given as follows:
(continued)

The Group’s waste-water treatment plants, waste-to-
energy power plant and methane-to-energy power plant
are under BOT and TOT arrangements. Based on the
key attributes of the BOT and TOT arrangements (note
40), the Group’s management has determined that the
BOT and TOT arrangements contain lease elements and
classified the leases as finance leases in accordance
with HK(IFRIC) 4, and have accounted them as such in
the financial statements.

Finance lease receivables represent the Group’s net
investment in finance leases and are analysed as:

Finance lease receivables:

Within one year —FR
After one year but within —&%E
five years RER
After five years TFk
Total gross investment REBE

Unearned finance income

Present value of future
finance lease receivables ZBE

Finance lease receivables
within one year included
under current assets

BEMEERYGR:

RIREXZ B E WA

T REEERWRIR

FRAEEBRE AR EISHTKERR
Gt (&)

REBZSKEER SIRREEERRE
REBMIVBIEBOTRTOT LZHHEE-ER
BOTRTOTZH 2 X BFE (MM +) &
SEEEEREBOTRIOT LB HER
i WRE(EL (BRMERE2ERES)
BE)F4REEREE D AAREME U
R B RER PRI AG 2 AR

AR ERKH R AR EERATE R
EFE RHTT:

AKEEHE YRR

AARBEEL R —FA
FIH s MEBERKGA

The Group
rEE

2006 2005
—BERE —TEREF
(restated)

(EH)

$°000 $000
Fir Fr
64,252 10,678
257,006 42,712
1,259,782 208,920
1,581,040 262,310
(777,220) (128,225)
803,820 134,085
(14,643) (2,384)

789,177 131,701
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEZEHN FTEEHL B )

20. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

(continued)

The lease receivables are reduced when lease payments
are received and an imputed finance lease income on
the lease receivables is recognised using the estimated
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate of interest at the

inception of the lease. The average interest rate used in

“tREHERWRE (B

the lease arrangements ranges from 6.1% to 6.8%. There fEe

is no allowance for uncollectible minimum lease

payments receivable.

The present value of future finance lease receivables is

analysed as follows:

Within one year
After one year but within five years

After five years

)

TH S FE MR IR & 70 HH B R IR M R R HIRL
WeEBNRABEAZ G RIHEEN =
EREERKFAZEERERERA-H
ELHEATER 2 FIFER N F6.1%£6.8% °
I B AU 2 AR AKAE B PR IR 1 H

ARBEHERWFIAZREDITIT

The Group
FEE
2006 2005
—BERE —TTRF
(restated)
(E®R)
$°000 $'000
Fir Fr
—FR 14,643 2,384
—FREREA 68,522 11,170
hF& 720,655 120,531
803,820 134,085
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

21. INVENTORIES -RFE8
Inventories in the balance sheet comprise: BEEBERATEERRE
The Group
rEE

2006 2005
“EERE —ETRHEF
$°000 $000
7 F2
Plant materials and operating supplies BEYE K& %R m 3,239 -
Other raw materials HA R 206 -
3,445 -

22.DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, - EWERE -HEWZIE-IRESRTE

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS TR

Included in “Debtors, other receivables, deposits and AREEZ [FEYERZ  EMEWRIE - IHe Kk
prepayments” of the Group are trade debtors of TARFIE] PR R E 5 RRE40,434,000
$40,434,000 (2005: $14,343,000), of which $6,001,000 T (ZZEZRF:14,343,000T) &
(2005: $4,595,000) is due from a minority shareholder. 6,001,0007T (ZZFZ A4 :4,595,0007T) 4
The trade debtors are current and not yet due for FEU DB RE BR TB -4 B ENE S R B Bl
payment and represent toll bridge revenue and revenue R RPN RN E Al EBERNaE N IRE
from waste-water treatment plants, waste-to-energy VIKBRIER  t IR R B B R B
power plant and methane-to-energy power plant 2 BRI ES A FIBIE A Y ffe

operation services which are settled on a monthly basis.

The Group’s credit policy is set out in note 32(a). REB 7 EEBHREAME=1T"(a) °
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23. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

24,

Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

The amounts are pledged to secure certain bank loans

of the Group.

Rz B ane

S EERARITER

ZEFRRDEER ERAKEETRITE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RRERREEEY
The Group The Company
AEE PN
2006 2005 2006 2005
“EERE —ETTHF CZEBERE —TTHF
$°000 $°000 $°000 $'000
Fr Fir Fr Fir
Deposits with bank RITFER 516,072 215,946 325,761 198,203
Cash at bank and in hand RITHEB RIS 240,691 192,620 6,509 30,204
756,763 408,566 332,270 228,407

Included in “Cash and cash equivalents” in the balance
sheets are the following amounts denominated in a

currency other than the functional currency of the entity

to which they relate:

United States Dollars

B AEA:
The Group
AEE

2006 2005
—EERE _—TTRHF
$°000 $000
Fr Fir
e UsD21,217 USD10,809
21,217%5x  10,809%7C

EEERBRTZ R REEFEY B85

THIFIR EAERRER 2 e BRI

The Company
N

2006 2005
—EEXF —TTRHF
$°000 $000
Fr T
USD9%4 UsD21
94ETT AEv
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

Notes to the Financial Statements

otherwise indicated)

25. SECURED BANK LOANS TR EEARITERN
At 31 December 2006, the secured bank loans were RZZEEF+A=1+—1 BiRFET
repayable as follows: ERZEFEBIAT:
The Group The Company
KEE ¥ /NG|

2006 2005 2006 2005
—RERF —TTLRF —BEANF TTIF
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fir Fir Fr Fir
Within one year or on demand —FRFIREK 88,448 40,227 21,429 31,429
After one year but within two years ~ —FR&ERER 85,404 55,607 6,429 6,429
After two years but within five years MWEREBRER 361,507 218,764 17,678 19,286
After five years hFk 355,673 297,645 - 4,821
802,584 572,016 24,107 30,536
891,032 612,243 45,536 61,965
At 31 December 2006, the banking facilities of the Group R-EERNF+_A=1+—"H KEBZIR
are secured by revenue from the operations of toll bridge, TRVE AR E BB IR 5K B IR MR R B3R

WG B 2 Was - B E R EREUGRIE - R1T
i BEBEERBRARARNEARRKRSL
EER-RN =TT F+-A=+—H Lt
1,185,329,0007T (ZZEZH % :975,180,000
JL) Z $R1TREE B 8)F891,032,0007T (=&
T A :612,243,0007T) °

waste-water treatment plants and waste-to-energy power
plant, finance lease receivables, bank deposits,
mortgages on fixed assets and shares of a subsidiary
of the Company. Such banking facilities, amounting to
$1,185,329,000 (2005: $975,180,000), were utilised to
the extent of $891,032,000 (2005: $612,243,000) at 31
December 2006.
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26.

27.

Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

AMOUNT DUE TO MINORITY BN D ERERRE

SHAREHOLDER

The amount is unsecured, interest free and repayable

within one year.

CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND -7t

ACCRUED EXPENSES

Included in “Creditors, other payables and accrued
expenses” of the Group is an amount of $3,798,000
(2005: $1,393,000) which is payable to an associate.
The balance is due within one month and represents

service fee for operation of waste-water treatment plants.

Apart from the above, there are other payables to related
companies and a minority shareholder of $45,759,000
(2005: $32,012,000) and $21,606,000 (2005:
$18,756,000) respectively as at 31 December 2006. The
amounts are unsecured, interest free and expected to

be settled within one year.

Included in “Creditors, other payables and accrued
expenses” are the following amounts denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the entity

to which they relate:

BRFASERN RERAR—FAREER-

P BRFR AR IR R BT &
H

REE 2 [FERARR B 5 IE R BT
AlFEE RN T —REE AR ZNIE
3,798,0007T (ZZEZ A :1,393,0007T) °7%
AR —E R RBIE . B R &5 /KR MR
ZRis %

B EXFrtEIN R_EERNFE+ A=+
—B RAREBEENTHEB AR R—&D
BERREZEMENREBE @B I5 A
45,759,0007T (ZZFZF A% :32,012,0007T)
%21,606,0007T (—ZZZH 18,756,000
T0) R ERIBAEER 28 WIHEER—
FRZTo

[ERTRRR BN SIRRE B R B
NHIBIR AR ER 2 e BRI 2
E¥REBEM:

The Group The Company
rEE N

2006 2005 2006 2005
ZEBEAF —TTLF ZEEAF —ZTThF
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
F T F T
United States Dollars T USD2,895 Nil USD2,895 Nil
2,895% T i 2,895% T =
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

28.LOANS FROM ULTIMATE HOLDING

COMPANY

The Group

At 31 December 2006, the loans are unsecured, interest

free and not expected to be settled within one year.

At 31 December 2005, the loans were unsecured, interest
bearing at 4.9% to 5% per annum and not expected to
be settled within one year, except for a loan of
$95,148,000 which was interest free. The interest-bearing

loans were fully repaid in 2006.

The Company

At 31 December 2005, the loans were unsecured, interest
bearing at 4.9% to 5% per annum and not expected to

be settled within one year. The loans were repaid in 2006.

Included in “Loans from ultimate holding company” are
the following amounts denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to which they

relate:

United States Dollars e

SRR

B2 A&

A

R-FERFT-A= —I— Bk EERR
EEM RERFERIEN—FAEER-

RZZEZRF+_A=+—HB BT %%
#H7395,148,000t 2 ER AR BN LEE
E %ﬂﬁﬁ#ﬁ~%;zifﬁum.g%%%at%\wﬁiﬁﬁ
ER—FREE  LHFTEERERZT
NEEBHER-

*IH{

RZZETRF+_A=+—H WEEFRA
ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁi&ﬁﬂ%.g%ﬂ%ﬂ SREHTE

—FREE LR EFRER T RFR
%(1%& o

[RAZER DR ER] B35 THIRRIE E A
FAERZIEERIAINZ G REN:

The Group The Company
rEE N

2006 2005 2006 2005
NE —TThF ZRFRE _TTHF
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
F TiT Fi T
Nil USD43,886 Nil USD43,886
/& 43,886%ETT /& 43886%TT
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£ . Notes to the Financial Statements
83 R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHN FFELEL BRI E)

29. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET hWEEEBRIITHNAEH

(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet represents: (a) EEAGERAMTHWABEIEA:
The Group
AEE
2006 2005
—BERF —TTREF
$°000 $000
Fr Fr
Provision for PRC income tax for the year 7R [Z f BIFT1S R B 6,847 4,748
Provisional tax paid ERTESAER (5,332) (2,610)
1,615 2,138

China Everbright International Limited FE ¥ K BB AR 2 7



Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

29. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET -T.EZEESBXMTNMAEH (&)

(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (b) EEIRELEHBEERER
The Group KEHE
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities ERREEERBERER ZELEIR
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and (BE) BEBHRAFESHIT:

the movements during the year are as follows:

Depreciation
in excess of

related
depreciation

allowances Revaluation

BHEBIFE of properties Total
RBBEZNE YIS L k]
$000 $000 $000
Fir Fir Fir
Deferred tax arising from: ERERTAR B
At 1 January 2005 R-ZEERF—F—H 1,284 19,537 20,821
Addition through acquisition of BBKIER
business ®E (356) = (356)
(Credited)/charged to profit EEREET GTA) 0k
or loss (restated) (E5R) (16,930) 1,195 (15,735)
At 31 December 2005 RZZETRF
(restated) +ZA=+—H8(E#) (16,002) 20,732 4,730
At 1 January 2006 (restated) RZZZRF—A—H(EH)  (16,002) 20,732 4,730
Exchange adjustments R (81) (50) (131)
Charged to profit or loss TEBmEZP NG 1,176 1,876 3,052
At 31 December 2006 RZZETRF
+=-A=+—H (14,907) 22,558 7,651
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¢ Notes to the Financial Statements

B ngEms

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

29. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET
(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised

MEERERITNFAES (&

(b) CEIELEHHAEEREE (&)

(continued)
The Group
K%M
2006 2005
—BERE —TTRF
(restated)
(E®R)
$°000 $000
Fr Fr
Net deferred tax assets recognised RireBERBRERZ
on the consolidated balance sheet EERIBEE SR (18,625) (16,433)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised R BERBRERZ
on the consolidated balance sheet ERERIBRETE 26,276 21,163
7,651 4,730

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 1(r), the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
$30,693,000 (2005: $26,033,000) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which
the losses can be utilised will be available in the
relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses

do not expire under current tax legislation.

(c) AERELERAEE

RIEMFE— (TS 2 5T B NEE
Wt 25t AR E B RRRE IR
E30,693,000 L (=TT HF:

26,033,0007T) ' RERER @B A
R R BB AR REES R AT M
RRBEEBNER - RIBRITHEE
Bl el ESIE R E AR
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED -t UROXTZRAEARS
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was RARRE —AEREAS ER=_FT=
adopted on 26 May 2003 whereby the directors of the FRHAZHRNAEM-BIL NARERER
Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite ERAIREREARE RS (BEAEEEMA
employees of the Group, including directors of any KERARZES) BN IREZBARERE
company in the Group, to take up options at nominal RRATID 2 B - BB AR A B % 0 A 78
consideration to subscribe for shares of the Company. NEA (BARREFRTZREBE) £E
The options are exercisable six months (or a later date MEETEEERNRTT T ETFRES
as determined by the directors of the Company) after T—=FRAZ+HAL UREEEE) -
the date on which the options are granted for a period R T AR A ARBE—IRAARE

Pz R

i

up to ten years or 25 May 2013, whichever is earlier.
Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for

one ordinary share in the Company.
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30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

Notes to the Financial Statements

EEEEA R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEZEHN FTEEHL B )

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

The terms and conditions of the grants that
existed during the year are as follows, whereby

all options are settled by physical delivery of

shares:

Number of
instruments
XEHE
Options granted to directors:
RYEECBRE:
— on 29 September 2003
- ZZET=FAHA=THAH 49,700,000
- on 29 September 2003
- ZTT=FAA=TNA 49,700,000
- on 3 August 2006
— —EEXENA=H 15,000,000
— on 3 August 2006
— —EEXENA=H 15,000,000
Options granted to employees:
RYREZERE:
— on 29 September 2003
—- ZZE=FAA=+AA 8,000,000
— on 29 September 2003
- —EE=&EAA-+AHA 3,000,000
- on 3 August 2006
- B ENA=AR 18,000,000
- on 3 August 2006
— —EEXENA=H 18,000,000
Total share options
IR 71,400,000

Vesting conditions

£ iRt

Six months from the date of grant
AR B EEE S E A

One year from the date of grant
AR SRt —F

One year from the date of grant
R B EE —F

Two years from the date of grant

=R h s

Six months from the date of grant
AR B EEE S E A

One year from the date of grant
X H B —F

One year from the date of grant
X H B —F

Two years from the date of grant

=Rl h s

China Everbright International Limited FE ¥ K BB AR 2 7

ot RGN ZBRAR S (F

(a) FPXEINFRERTEZBREZZL
R KR B R EUR G B
MRPFRNEER:

Contractual

life of options

BREZANER

9.7 years
9.7F
9.7 years
9.7F
6.8 years
6.8
6.8 years
6.8

9.7 years
9.7F
9.7 years
9.7%F
6.8 years
6.8
6.8 years
6.8
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEZHI FTEZHLUBREFE)

30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise

prices of share options are as follows:

Outstanding at the
beginning of the period
Exercised during the period

Granted during the period

Outstanding at the end of
the period

Exercisable at the end of

the period

HAR A
111

HMANBETTE

BN

HmR
7fe

AT
7fe

it MR ZRERS (&)

(b) BREZHERNEFIITEEDT:

2006 2005
i 2 A%:2 —TThEF

Weighted Weighted

average average

exercise exercise
price Number of price Number of
NG options kY options
TEE BREHA 171EE FERESA

$0.296
$0.296
$0.85

$0.529

$0.296

The weighted average share price at the date of

exercise for shares options exercised during the

year was $1.01 (2005: $0.45).

The options outstanding at 31 December 2006 had
an exercise price of $0.296 or $0.85 (2005: $0.296)

and a weighted average remaining contractual life

of 6.4 years (2005: 7.4 years).

105,400,000 $0.296 108,400,000
(14,200,000) $0.296 (3,000,000)
66,000,000 = =
157,200,000 $0.296 105,400,000
91,200,000 $0.296 105,400,000

FREITEBRFERTTE B 8 2 kT8
BA1.017L (CZEZHF:0457T) ©

NoZBEREF+-_A=+—BHRTEZE
BeAE 2 1T{E (B 50.2967T8£0.857T (Z T T H
#:0.2967T) - MANE TR T & HFHA A
6.4F (ZEZERF 745F)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the
fair value of share options granted. The estimate of
the fair value of the share options granted is
measured based on Black-Scholes Option Pricing
Model. The contractual life of the share option is
used as an input into this model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

Fair value at measurement date

Share price

Exercise price

Expected volatility (expressed as weighted
average volatility used in the modelling under
Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model)

Option life (expressed as weighted average life
used in the modelling under Black-Scholes
Option Pricing Model)

Expected dividends

Risk-free interest rate (based on Exchange
Fund Notes)

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for any
expected changes to future volatility based on
public available information. Expected dividends
are based on historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect
the fair value estimate.

There were no service conditions or market

conditions associated with the share options
granted.

China Everbright International Limited

ot MR ZBRARS (&

(c) BREZAAERRBR

AEBARLBREMES 2R
REREXBERE L DA EFE- B
BREZ A ARERMB R -8
Hi | e BRAG E-BhRE A HF
MR EA 2 —RE A28

2006
ZBERE
BREZAABEREBRR
REt2ER#8Z AR E $0.29
RME $0.85
1B $0.85
AR IR (DA TR N = — &7 AR AT ) 2Rk
TEERAREANNETESKE)
52.13%
BEAEEE (A h 5w —&FM AT Hi
TEERANEANETLSFE) 3 years
3F
FEHRR B 2.28%
ZRBAE (REBINEESTR)
4.30%

FERR R TR IBE SR R Rt B (AR
Rz IE PRI F I E)  BREE
RPN E R R BRI R 2 (b
H-BHBRE IRBEEREREE AT
RATBRRZEHIHE AR B A
BRERTE-

5 15 42 B A 4 2 TR
ST -

HEEKRERERA R



= Notes to the Financial Statements
> MBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES - BRARFE
(a) The Group (a) &~EHE
Revaluation
Goodwill reserve of
Capital arising on [and and
redemption consolid- buildings Minority
Share Share  Special  resere  Capital ation  Exchange 14K Fairvaie  Reseve  Retained interests Total
capital  premium reserve X reseve  SAEE reseve  BRZ resene fund  profits Tt JBRE  equity
Bx  RbRE  #HBE REHE  EABE BioBE  EXRE EGEE OABBE GRS REEY ] Bi  BufE
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
S S i S S S S S S S S S S S
AttJanvary 2005 R-3ERE
-B-1 254,881 445,204 112016 10 - (12614) 1677 3 - 274803 1,076,280 3,194 1079474
Dividend approved in - £EEB &S
respect of the (hit-)
previous year
(e 1) : : : : : : : : : (58] (529) )
Shares issued under  RIEERE3TE
share option scheme 77
(nots 31(c)ii) (a=1-
(i) N - - - - - - - - -
Shareofexchange  FRIEBEAR
reseves of EiGR
associates - - - - - - 9,598 - - - 9,508 - 9,598
Exchange diferences  £EHBAAR
ontiansation o BEDFEE
financial statements ~ FREEZ
of subsidiaries and B EH
associates - - - - - - 8,868 - - - 8,668 - 8,668
Revaluationresenve  HiELHRET
redised on cisposal  MEG &M
of and and buildings & - - - - - - - (243) - 43 - - -
Changes n fairvalue  fEREAE
of avalebleorsale 2
securities - - - - - - - - 8611 - 8611 - 8611
Pofitfor heyear  AEEEA
(ieseted) %) - - - - - - - - - 106808 106808 16065 122674
Tansleroresene  BEZGES
fund . . : : : : : . S 3w () . : :
Shareof resenvety  DERRER
minorly nieesss GG - - - - - - s - - S paM) 23 :
Capital contrbution 2 EHEAR
receedbynon-  AEOEHR
wholly ouned LR
subsiciaries from
minority shareholders = = = = = = = = = = = 71,881 71,881
Diidendpaidto  ERF48RE
minority shareholder ~ ZIR& - - - - - - - - - - - (575) (575)
Dividend declaredin - AEREERRS
respect o the curent (i)
Jear (ot 11 . . : : : : : . . (311) (53] - (183
Transfer fiom ERRETIER
special reserve (W=t~
o3 i) - - ) - - - - - - 686 . : :
At31 December 2005 R-EZTE
(as restated) tZA=1-8
(RER) 255,181 445,792 11,330 10 - (12614) 17829 - 8811 3740 348196 117833 92880 1271215
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2 Notes to the Financial Statements

" HBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) - RARG#E (E)
(a) The Group (continued) (a) &%H8 (&)
Revaluation
Goodwill reserve of
Capital arising on [and and
redemption consolid- buildings Minority
Share Share  Special  reserve  Capital ation  Exchange 1#R  Fairvaie  Reseve  Retained interests Total
capitl  premium  reserve X reseve  SAEE reseve  BRZ resenve fund  profits Tt JBRE  equity
Bx  RbRE  #HBE  REHE  EABE BLoBE  EXRE  EGMEE OAERE  BEE  REEY &5 Bi  BafE
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
F S S S S F S S S S S S S S
At 1 January 2006 E@:?gﬁ
- a5 previously o
reported 295,181 445,792 11,330 10 - (12614) 17829 - 8,811 3740 346718 1176857 9238 126,18
- prior period -H(EE (ER
adustments in IfaERE
respect of ZEE)2E)
HK(FRIC) 4 BUEAHE
AR - - - - - - - - - -4 14 B 20
-5 restated -BER 255,181 445,792 111,330 10 - (12614) 17829 - 8811 3740 34819 117833 92880 1271215
Dividend approved in- ZEEEHERS
respect of the (Hitt-)
previous year
(e 1) : : : : : : : : : - B3 (183) - (B3
Issueofordinary ~ BA7EER
shares 51000 270723 - - - - - - - - - R - s
Shares issued under  EEREH 3]
share option scheme  E731Rt7 (it
noedli) i) 1 27 - - - - - - - - - -
Share of exchange  FRIGEEDR
resenves of EiER
associates - - - - - - 5088 - - - - 5,068 - 5,068
Exchange diferences  £EMBARR
ontiansationof  BEEDFEE
financial statements  FREEZ
of subsidiaries and B EH
associates - - - - - - 48517 - - - - 48517 - 48517
Bxchangeresene  (HEEERTE
realsed on disposal  £EERER
of associate - - - - - - (142609) - - - - (14269) - (14269)
Fouty-settled Wi Z
Share-based kaxs
ransactions - - - - 6,027 - - - - - - 6,027 - 6,027
Malableforsale  ER%
securities
- changes n -Rif2Y
fair value - - - - - - - - 26,129 - - 26,129 - 26,129
~transfer to profitor —HEFERZE
lossondisposal &% - - - - - - - - [41) - - 412) - (412)
Poftforheyer  AEEEA - - - - - - - - - S MW 18003 48080
Tansleroresene  BEZGES
fund . . : : : : . . S (48%) . : :
Shareofesenvety  VERRER
minoriy inferests ARG - - - - - - (%) - - - - (%) 5% -
Diidendpadto  BHIHERE
minority shareolder 28 - - - - - - - - - - - - (586 (586
Dividend declaredin - AEREERRS
respectof the curent (it -)
Jear (ot 11) . . : : : : . . . -3 (183 - 18a)
Transfer fiom ERALTIER
special reserve (Wi=1-
o3y (i) - o) - - - - - - B TTR . : :
At31 December 2006 R-F3/E
TZRA=T-B 307601 719,298 - 10 6,027 (12614) 51207 - 30818 8639 830202 1941338 116955 2,058,293
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¥ BB RN

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

L

31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) SRR #E (B)

(b) The Company (b) &"AF
Capital
redemption
Share Share Special reserve Capital Retained
capital  premium reserve % reserve profits Total
Rx  RHEE  RERE 2 BERE  EARE  REER L
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T f f fr fr T
At 1 January 2005 RZEERF-A-H 254881 445,204 112,016 70 - 20,782 832,953
Dividend approved in FEEEHAERS

respect of the previous (Wt t-)

year (note 11) - - - - - (15,293) (15,293)
Shares issued under RERR RS2

share option scheme <)

(note 31(c){ii) (H=+—(c)ii) 30 568 - - - - 888
Profit for the year KEREF - - - - - 107,778 107,778
Dividend declared in FERBRERRE

respect of the current (Wt t-)

year (note 11) - - - - - (15,311) (15,311)
Transfer from special aRakiIGR

reserve (note 31(d)(ii) (W= F—(a)i) - - (686) - - 686 -
At31December 2005 HZEERE

t-A=1-H 205,181 445,792 111,330 70 - 98,642 911,015
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" MBERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

At 1 January 2006

Dividend approved in
respect of the previous
year (note 11)

Issue of ordinary shares

Shares issued under
share option scheme
(note 31(c)(iii)

Equity-settled share-
based transactions

Profit for the year

Dividend declared in
respect of the current
year (note 11)

Transfer from special
reserve (note 31(d)ii)

At 31 December 2006

(b) The Company (continued)

R=8% F-A-H
FEEERERS
(Wi t-)

BTERR
RiERRET 2
Rkt
(WfzE=+—(c)i))
W2
huse
KEERF
FEERERRS
(WizEt-)

aRaRRIGR
(BsE=+—(a)ii))

RZEEXE

tZA=t+-H

31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

- RAER M E ()

(b) &AATF (&)

Capital
redemption
Share Share Special reserve Capital Retained
capital premium reserve Ex reserve profits Total
Rx  RoEE KRG BERE  EARE  REEA ag
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T T T T
255,181 445,792 111,330 10 - 98,642 911,015
- - - - - (15,311) (15,311)
51,000 210,723 - - - - 321723
1,420 2,183 - - - - 4,203
- - - - 6,027 - 6,027
- - - - - 546,477 546,477
- - - - - (18,371) (18,371)
- - (111,330) - - 111,330 -
307,601 719,298 - 70 6,027 722,767 1,755,763
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ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) - BRAREE (E
(c) Share capital (c) A&
(i) Authorised and issued share capital (i) EERBEITHA
2006 2005
—BEXRE —ETRF
No. of No. of
shares shares
[ A% 21
000 $°000 ‘000 $000
TR Fr T & Frr
Authorised: ZE:
Ordinary shares of FAREE0.107T
$0.10 each 2T 5,000,000 500,000 5,000,000 500,000
Ordinary shares, BER
issued and EBTR
fully paid: BHHE:
At 1 January n—A—H 2,551,812 255,181 2,548,812 254,881
Issue of ordinary shares 1T E@E 510,000 51,000 = -
Shares issued under IR RE AR R 2
share option scheme BTG, 14,200 1,420 3,000 300
At 31 December W+=-—B=+—-H 3,076,012 307,601 2,551,812 255,181
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to TERIEE AU TRESIRZ
receive dividends as declared from time to time RS WHRARBIRE LR fiEARARX
and are entitled to one vote per share at DFR R - BA DR ZFIER
BEmMS MESAR=ZEREE

meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares

gl

o

rank equally with regard to the Company’s

residual assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Issue of ordinary shares

On 4 May 2006, 510,000,000 new ordinary
shares were issued and allotted at a
subscription price of $0.66 per share. The
share capital and share premium account have
been increased by $51,000,000 and
$270,723,000 respectively.

Shares issued under share option scheme

During the year ended 31 December 2006,
options were exercised to subscribe for
14,200,000 ordinary shares in the Company at
a consideration of $4,203,000 of which
$1,420,000 was credited to share capital and
the balance of $2,783,000 was credited to the

share premium account.

- RAER M E ()

(c) B (&)

(ii)

(iii)

EITEHEAR
RZZTXERAMA  AARET
X F2 #510,000,0000% 7 & i A% » 73
BEAER0.667T - BRA KM E
BER DRI N51,000,000L K&
270,723,0007T°

RIBBIR R BT THR (7
REBEZE-_TERF+A=1+—H
IEFE BIRER B AfTERBRE
FRBE 14,200,000 AN A 71 @A% - K
{8 54,203,0007T £ 7 1,420,0007C
B AR #:T2,783,0007T Al
A&7 45 (B AR o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) - BRAREE (E
(c) Share capital (continued) (c) BA& (&)
(iv) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share (iv) R#EE H e R EBIR K 15 K177
options at balance sheet date 122 FERR 1B 2 1K
2006 2005
Exercise “EERE —ZThEF
Exercise period price Number Number
e fTEE 2R 28
29 March 2004 to “ETNF=RA=-+NBZE
25 May 2013 —T—=FRA-+HAH $0.296 40,200,000 52,700,000
29 September 2004 to “ETOFEAAZTNEBZE
25 May 2013 —ZT—=F#AA-1+HA $0.296 51,000,000 52,700,000
3 August 2007 to —ETHFEN\A=HZE
25 May 2013 “Z—=F#RA-+HHAH $0.85 33,000,000 -
3 August 2008 to —ETN\FNR=HAZE
25 May 2013 “Z—=FRA-+HAH $0.85 33,000,000 -

157,200,000 105,400,000

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for BRERER THREARTRE—
IRAN A R E AR 2 BT o It AR A
ZE—SERERIBREWE=
A

one ordinary share in the Company. Further
details of these options are set out in note 30

to the financial statements.
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RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(i)

Share premium and capital redemption reserve
The application of the share premium account
and the capital redemption reserve is governed
by Sections 48B and 49H respectively of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of
the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to employees of the
Group recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share based

payments in note 1(q)(ii).

Special reserve

On 5 January 2004, the Company announced
its intention to put forward a proposal for the
reduction of the Company’s share premium
account by the sum of $2,372,172,824 (i.e.
accumulated losses of the Company as at 30
September 2003) and the application of the
same amount of credit arising from such
reduction towards the elimination of the
accumulated losses of the Company. The
reduction of share premium account, approved
by the shareholders at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 2 February 2004, was
confirmed by an order made by the High Court
of Hong Kong (“the Court”) on 2 March 2004
and became effective upon registration of the
said order by the Registrar of Companies in

Hong Kong on the same date.

- RAREE (2

(d) FEEEEREHN

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

iy N ]

Pt it (8 Bl e B AN [2 fefh 5 2 AR 2
D RIZEEC(AREH) EM+ B
BERETN T NAHERE -

BARFEEERIBME—(a)(i)PrE
AR ENRAZ ST BORERE
BREAAERTARBREARRK
TEZBEERR 22 RE.

SdllA]

AZTEMF—AAB AREAM
HEHMR 223 HURA R RRG HE
#R2,372,172,824 7T (BIARRHZE
—EE=FAA=ZTHZRFE
18) WHHIR ARG S EBREE
Al —gf R EANEHEARR
2 BEtEEHIRR G R EBREER
RZZEZMF-AZARTZRE
FRIAE LERF#E TR T
ME=RA_BEFESF AR (D&
B2)) fEHBES T AR KRR AR A
ERBRAESREFMESR it
BB ER
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ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(continued)

(i) Special reserve (continued)

To safeguard the interests of the Company’s

creditors, the Company undertakes to the Court

to create a special reserve upon the reduction

of share premium account on the terms set out

below:

(i)

that for so long as there shall remain
outstanding any debt of or claim against
the Company which, if the date on which
the reduction of the share premium
account of the Company (“the Effective
Date”) were the commencement of the
winding-up of the Company, would be
admissible to proof in such winding-up
and the person entitled to the benefit
thereof shall not have consented to the
said reduction of share premium account
or agreed otherwise, the Company shall
credit to a special reserve in the books of

the Company (“the Special Reserve”):

— any amount arising by reason of a
release of any provision taken into
account in establishing the
accumulated losses of the Company
shown in the balance sheet of the
management accounts of the
Company for the nine months ended
30 September 2003; or

- RAREE (2

(d) REMEREN (E)

(iii) FFIEE (&)
BT RERATEEA 2R AR
AIANERT VL G B AR (2 5= (B
AR e 2% 37 — 1R 5 Bl 4 - IR n T~

(i) MHRARABEDRE EERE
BB (TE%A8]) (F%A
BERRRRFAKAE) XA
BEARBEETIART &H
R MEEEFXRRB/AAF]
FREEZAENER AR
BmZ AMETHUESRTREE L
BEVRR R EREER AIAR
BRI R SIREEAKR R AR
BZHRlEeE ([l E])
T

- BEBREEHARRREER
—EE=FAA=THL
NERZERREHTZE
ERBRAMRRER
ZEMBERELZ S
B
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RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(continued)

(i) Special reserve (continued)

(i) (continued)

any amount received by the
Company as profit by way of
distribution from a corporation which
was a subsidiary or an associated
company of the Company at the
Effective Date (a “subsidiary” or an
“associated company” respectively)
which is made by such subsidiary or
associated company out of profits
available for distribution prior to the
Effective Date or any dividend paid
to the Company in respect of any
liguidation of a subsidiary or an
associated company commencing

prior to the Effective Date; and

(i) the Special Reserve:

shall not be treated as realised profits

of the Company; and

shall, for so long as the Company
shall remain a limited company, be
treated as an undistributable reserve
of the Company for the purposes of
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
32 of the Laws of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region of the
People’s Republic of China) or any
statutory modification or re-enactment

thereof.

- RAR#E ()

(d) REHEREN (AF)

(iii) HFIEE (&)

(i)

(i)

China Everbright International Limited FE ¥ K BB AR 2 7

(%)

ARABW—FRK A BUEAT
BIERDIREN 2 T8
BRAARNERBR/AR
SPGB N
(D RIEREAHERR]
X [HERE]) - bt
B0 A RN B A m K
&R B A AR A #RT A
DR 2 B SIS AR
AEFLAE A BRI 2 Fn
RITED 2 MY E A Bk
DERERFTIS 2 RS

D

Tiff

/

ol

FrhlfE

TMEEERARRZEE
Rar &k

RERARADRBRA
Bl RIBEAFED] (FFEEA
REMBEEERRITTHER
ERIFE32E) HOEBIRE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(continued)
(iii) Special reserve (continued)
Provided always that:

(1)

3)

(4)

the Special Reserve may be applied for
the same purposes as a share premium
account may lawfully be applied;

the amount standing to the credit of the
Special Reserve may be reduced by an
amount equal to any increase, after the
Effective Date, in the share premium
account of the Company which results
from an issue of shares (other than for the
purposes of any redemption or purchase
by the Company of its own shares) for cash
or other consideration or by way of the
capitalisation of distributable profits or
reserves, and the Company shall be at
liberty to transfer the amount so reduced
to the general reserves of the Company
and the same shall become available for
distribution;

the amount credited to the Special
Reserve in accordance with the foregoing
provisions of this undertaking shall not at
any time exceed $1,762,999,500 (“the
Limit”);

the Limit may be reduced by the amount
of any increase, after the Effective Date,
in the paid-up share capital or share
premium account of the Company which
results from an issue of shares (other than
for the purposes of any redemption or
purchase by the Company of its own
shares) for cash or other consideration or
by way of the capitalisation of distributable
profits or reserves;

- RARE ()

(d) REEEREN (&)

(iii) 45 5UEh (4)
e

(1) B RB EE ARBR i
BB AEMR

(2) HHIREEERSEARAER 2K
BAELEME SR RETRN
(ARARERRBEAT R
MERIN MECR S HEM K
EBHERBENMERAI D IRE N K
{3 T 3| BN 2 B R D 4 (B AR
yilid - Y NI 3 Tl
PZBENRE 2 —RERE T
BRSBAIHIIRZA:

(8) MMIBAHEGEZ Ll E AR
R E 2 ©BEET ARG R
B#83/1,762,999,5007T (B R
PREE])

(4) ‘EEKBBRE AETRN (B
ARAERSKBERFRNE
BRON) HEIR & 3K H A LB =X
BREAME A DR BN L
M 5 BN A B) 2 B B AR S
04 (B RRIB I 2 SR B IR
BRARER:
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RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(continued)

(i) Special reserve (continued)

()

the Limit may be reduced upon the
liquidation, disposal or other realisation,
after the Effective Date, of a subsidiary,
an associated company or any of the
financial or fixed assets of the Company
by the amount of the provision made in
relation to such subsidiary, associated
company or financial or fixed assets as at
30 September 2003 less such amount (if
any) as credited to the Special Reserve
as a result of such liquidation, disposal or

realisation; and

in the event that the amount standing to
the credit of the Special Reserve at any
time exceeds the Limit after any reduction
of the Limit pursuant to provisos (4) and/or
(5) above, the Company shall be at liberty
to transfer the amount of any such excess
to the general reserves of the Company
and the same shall become available for

distribution.

During the year, the entire amount of
$111,330,000 was transferred from the Special

Reserve in accordance with the undertaking.

This was due to the increase in the share

premium account of the Company which

resulted from an issue of shares for cash during

the year.

- RAR#E ()

(d) REHEREN (AF)

(iii) ¥ 5t ()
(5) MAEMHBEMER EFR HEH
AR AR B AR B
RA AR BERF B HEE
BER R-_TE=FNA=1
AR BB AR BEARX
ISR EE B EFTIR R 2 R
SRR HERBRE
BEEZEHHRERSE
(Ag) 28 A RERD AR

R R

(6) MFMBIR EXXE(4) R H(5) G
HIR B R AR R R 2 &
IREREBE MRS AN A
BRBEZHEARARZ—R
FHE mMAEBESEAIHRIIRZ
)Eﬁo

FR BRE ERAGERENEER
FEHEE111,330,00070 RA AR
AIRFRBEITRGRER € F R
1P ERRA AT INFT B
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Goodwill arising on consolidation
The goodwill arising on consolidation has been
set up and dealt with in accordance with the

accounting policy set out in note 1(e).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out

in note 1(u).

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
securities held at the balance sheet date and
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting

policies in notes 1(f) and (k).

- BRARGREE (F
(d) EEERBN (&)

(iv) e RBATELZ BE
ERBEM T (o) TE SRR
MR A RBREE ZEE-

(v) [EZf#E
PE Lt R AR R B SN 5 2 B 7%
WRAELE 2 FABE S ZH A RF
WRBHIE—(u) Pl & 5 BOR R 12
e

(vi) AR 1ERFE
AhERBEENEERRAZREF
EBFAAREZRFEBFELE
RBIHEE— () R () FAEE SRR R
#e

N,
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RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(continued)
(vii) Reserve fund

Statutory reserve — wholly foreign-owned
enterprises
Subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC, which
are wholly foreign-owned enterprises, follow the
accounting principles and relevant financial
regulations of the PRC applicable to wholly
foreign-owned enterprises (“PRC GAAP —
WFOE”), in the preparation of its accounting
records and financial statements. Pursuant to
the accounting regulations for business
enterprises (X E5H1E [B12 (2000) 25 %)),
the subsidiaries are required to appropriate
10% of the profit arrived at in accordance with
PRC GAAP — WFQOE for each year to a statutory
reserve. The profit arrived at must be used
initially to set off against any accumulated
losses. The appropriations to statutory reserve,
after offsetting against any accumulated losses,
must be made before the distribution of
dividends to shareholders. The appropriation
is required until the statutory reserve reaches
50% of the registered capital. This statutory
reserve is not distributable in the form of cash
dividends, but may be used to set off losses or
be converted into paid-in capital.

(e) Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2006, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company was $722,767,000
(2005: $98,642,000). After the balance sheet date
the directors proposed a final dividend of 0.6 cent
per ordinary share (2005: 0.6 cent per ordinary share)
amounting to $18,456,000 (2005: $15,311,000) and
a special dividend of 0.4 cent per ordinary share
(2005: Nil), amounting to $12,304,000 (2005: Nil).
These dividends have not been recognised as
liabilities at the balance sheet date.

2t RARARE (F)
(d) RELERBEN (&)

(vii) BB £
FEERE-—EINELE

REBURFPEZHMBAREASE
SNERE-FEXRIBEARZINE D
EoHPEERAIREBRMBER
(TFERAREHRA —2IMEDR
%)) mESITRERMBHRE R
BAEESHHE[F®(2000)25
5D B ARERRBIEARE
FTRAI-2INECEAERF 2R
FE A 10% BB E A TE Fif - B F
A 5T R AR SH (A 25T 1B o
REEEEEMN (B MR ERREE
f’é:)éi%ﬁ%%ﬁéﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁ
BRE-MEBARAE—HEBBNEL
EfFEE EE /szuﬁﬁa_iziﬂﬁé%
50% &1k I EERET S AR SR
BRRSIR: ] AR EE 18k
BRAEBRBRA-

(e) ﬁﬁ% JE'%/R
RZTERNF+ZA=1+—HB fI#oR
TARAIRE 2 #FELREE /722,767,000
TT (ZZZHF: 98,642,0007T) & HE
B EFEZRE KBRS SR LA
0.6l (=TT HF: FRLBAR0.6IL) &

$£18,456,0007T (ZZEZAF: 15,311,000
o0) RERIR EFRE BI04 (ZFF

R &) %@%‘57%12 304,0007T (ZZEF
RE ) PEER WERETEERA
Bf&-
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ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS tLEmIT A
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency REEERAEEFREFAZELRNRER B
risks arises in the normal course of the Group's business. FEERR nEEeRERREKRER KNEH
These risks are limited by the Group’s financial FHR T EERBE R SREE LR R

management policies and practices described below.

(a) Credit risk (a) FERMR

Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis. Debts are usually due within 30 days

from the date of billing.

Debtors of the Group represent receivable in respect
of toll bridge revenue and revenue from waste-water
treatment plants, waste-to-energy power plant and
methane-to-energy power plant operation services
which are settled on a monthly basis. In addition,
the Group has finance lease receivables in respect
of the BOT and TOT arrangements (note 2(c)).

At the balance sheet date, the Group’s trade debtors
amounted to $40,434,000, of which $33,433,000
was due from five largest customers of the Group.
The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the balance sheet. The Group does not provide any
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit

risk.

BEERTE THRENEERR LiHEE
SEMEHZEERR-ERBEHE
EEIﬁH%EﬂE-I-EI MEHe

REE 2 EUERTIE B R BB R = &
RESKEIER bR EEEREBR

B 2B RGN 2 BIGRIE - B
BT A WER AN AR B TR E A BOT
RTOTZREEzmEME R FIE (I
FE=(c)) e

REEH TXEB2REBKERR
40,434,0007T & 7133,433,0007T/R B A
SERAREF-FERRZZSECRE
ERBERPREMBEEZFEAERZY
REEVERHEEBAEEAZEER
82 PR
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RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,
including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands, subject to approval by the parent
company’s board. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity requirements
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements

in the short and longer term.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents, bank deposits, bank loans and loans
from ultimate holding company. The Group does
not use financial derivatives to hedge against the

interest rate risk.

tLEmIT A

(b)

(c)

(%)

RBE Tk
AEEBE T 2B 2EERABTARR
SERIE RRERSRBRZERRER
ERETUAERNTERRE TR MEAES
NRABFEZHAET AMEE - AREZEK
REETHERNRRENRSESHTE:
EREEESERNRSFHEREE2Y
BB EHNAHEEERE RN
HEMEREHRSHESTR-

SRS
REBEE 2 ME RS ER EEERBT
KB RE KR EFEY RITHERRIT
ER KRR A RE R AR E L &R
AeiTE TARE A =R
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MR RME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) eI A (E
(c) Interest rate risk (continued) (c) M=ERAM (52)
Effective interest rates and repricing analysis ERMEREZTE X
In respect of income-earning financial assets and BB A B EE Rt R B AaEm
interest-bearing financial liabilities, the following T IRESNEENEER 2 ERFFER
tables indicate their effective interest rates at the HEH SR 2 HFEEER (hARE
balance sheet date and the periods in which they )

reprice or the maturity dates, if earlier.

The Group AEH
2006 2005
= “535%
Effective Effective
interest One year 1-2 2-5  More than Interest One year 1-2 2-5  More than
rate Total or less years years  Syears rate Total 0r less years years 5 years
RRA= g8 -F9IT  -EcE CERE BEME ERE g T -E0f ZERE RENME
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i r r i i i S S S S
Repricing dates for HIBRAETRE
assets/(iablities) which ZEE/(8f)2
reprice before maturity EHEES]]
Pledged bank deposits BERGITRR 14%-1.9% 9314 99314 - - - 07%-19% 89197 89,197 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents RERRLEEN 07%-15% 240691 240,691 - - - 03%-14% 192620 192620 - - -
Secured bank loans BERSER 45%-51%  (455%6) (45,56 - - - 54%  (36965)  (36.965) - - -
24469 294,469 - - - 4862 244852 - - -
Maturity dates for TERIBRAET
assets/(liabilities) which donot ~ £%74%/ (&)
reprice before maturity ZHHA
Deposis with bank i 25% 10909 10909 - - - 21% 9w W - - -
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEN 16%-54% 516072 516,072 - - - 16% 215046 215946 - - -
Secured bank loans BHERGER 48%-68%  (B454%6)  (67,019)  (18975) (43829) (305673) 4M%-64% (675218)  (38798)  (49.178)  (199478)  (2928%4)
Loans from ulimate holding RAERAAEH
company - - - - - - 49%-5%  (440480) - (40480) - -
(318515) 450962  (78975) (343820)  (365673) (198905) 183,055  (489.658) (199.478) (292:8%4)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEZEHN FTEEHL B )

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

Effective interest rates and repricing analysis

(continued)
The Company
Repricing dates for i PEREE
assets/(iablities) which &E/(8) 2E7
reprice before maturity £E04
Cash and cash equivalents BERRESEN
Secured bak loans EfASAE
Maturity dates for BERHEAAET
assets/(liabilities) which donot ~ £%74%/ (&)
reprice before maturity ZHHA
Cash and cash equivalents BERAESEN
Secured bank oans BARRAER
Loans from ulfmate holding SAERATER
company

LRI A (8)

(c) M=k (&)
ERFERETEE ()

YN
2006 2005
= 2 S
Effective Effective

interest One year 1-2 2-5  More than inferest One year 1-2 2-5 More than
rate Total or less years years  Syears rate Total or less years years 5 years
ERiE B -Fat  -3zF CER§ O ERNL SRR g £ -Ef ZEEE O IENE
§1000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
S S i i i L S S S S
0.7% 6,509 6,509 - - - 0.3% 30,204 30,204 - - -
45%-51%  (45506)  (45,536) - - - 54%  (36965)  (36969) - - -
(39,027)  (39,027) - - - (6761)  (6761) - - -
-43% 35761 325,761 - - - 16% 198208 198,203 - - -
- - - - - - 41% (25000)  (25000) - - -
- - - - - - A9%-5%  (440.480) - (Mo480) - -
35,761 325,761 - - - (%67.217) 173203 (440.480) - -
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ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk

(e)

Forecast transactions

Presently, there is no hedging policy with respect
of the foreign exchange exposure. The Group’s
transactional currencies are Chinese Renminbi and
Hong Kong dollars as substantially all the turnover
are within Hong Kong and other parts in the PRC.
With the nature hedging of the revenue and costs
being denominated in Chinese Renminbi and Hong
Kong dollars, the Group’s transactional foreign

exchange exposure was insignificant.

With respect to borrowings denominated in United
States dollars (USD), the impact of foreign exchange
rate fluctuations is insignificant as the HKD is

pegged to USD.

Sensitivity analysis

In managing interest rate and foreign currency risks,
the Group aims to reduce the impact of short-term
fluctuations on the Group’s earnings. Over the
longer term, however, permanent changes in foreign
exchange rates and interest rates would have an

impact on consolidated earnings.

At 31 December 20086, it is estimated that a general
increase of one percentage point in interest rate
would increase the Group’s profit before tax by
approximately $7,586,000 (2005: $2,449,000) so far
as the effect on interest-bearing financial

instruments is concerned.

tLEemIA (B

(d) FME R Bz
BEHRE
B AT A EE Y EA BINERR 2 SR
FAEBMT R HERBAREESE F
EAEA LAY EERAEERTE
H At 7 o AU AR AR A RS R85
Wi T B R MER AR
TR 5 EFET 2 SNERBEM-

AR REM 2 EFRME - A E kR
RTTH E RN B EE N

BREDN
BEBERHNERINERR AEE SR
T A R B A R BB 2 o 4
- R ER RAE 2 RS Y
GERMBRTE

(e)

RZZETAFTZA=+—H 3itEe
MITEZZEmS BAKEGT FSE
B EA—EE e EREE 2 REBAT
AFIE 47,586,000 (Z T T AHEF:
2,449,0007T) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(f)

(9)

Fair values

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
debtors, bank deposits, other receivables, deposits
and prepayments and creditors, other payables and
accrued expenses are not materially different from
their carrying amounts because of the immediate
or short term maturity of these financial instruments.
The carrying amounts of other financial assets,
finance lease receivables, bank loans and loans
from ultimate holding company approximately their

fair values.

As set out in note 17, the Company had amounts
due from/to subsidiaries, it is not practical to
estimate the fair values of the amounts due to the

related party nature of these instruments.

Estimation of fair values
The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values of

the following financial instruments.

(i) Securities
Fair value is based on quoted market prices at
the balance sheet date without any deduction
for transaction costs.
(ii) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
The fair value is estimated as the present value
of future cash flows, discounted at current
market interest rates for similar financial

instruments.

tERmTIA (F

()

(9)

DE

R kRS FEY BURR RITHEH
HAh FEKGRIR 2 & RIRNFIR - A R
fRa Bt SRR BT ERERE 2
ARAEEREZEAETEENEE R
AR ES R T ARSI
Hlo At 5 B B M E M EEUGIR iR
TERESEEER AR ERZ AR EER

FZREERE-

FAF PR AR R AA UL PR
(BERIENGIE R ERY:2)iS i Ed =) N S
g T EGBERRZARE

N REME
TR TH S BT AR A ERE
Az EBHARBHe
() #Ex
ARBEIREER 2SR ERE
3 R (AT 22 S Pk AR o
(i) FHEEZKEES

ARERRRRSREZHRE AR
UM T AAKGZRAMGMEREY
RiEHE-
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

33. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESS

On 18 November 2006, the Group acquired the waste-
water treatment business together with the
corresponding assets (“the Acquired Business”) from
Jinan State-owned Assets Commission and Jinan Utilities
Authority at a consideration of RMB400,000,000
(equivalent to approximately $392,209,000). For the one
and a half month period ended 31 December 2006, the
Acquired Business contributed net profit of $11,889,000
to the consolidated net profit for the year. It is
impracticable to disclose the impact on the Group’s
revenue and net profit had the acquisition occurred on
1 January 2006 since the Acquired Business was
previously held by the local government authorities in
the PRC and no revenue was charged for treatment of

waste-water.

The acquisition had the following effect on the Group’s

assets.

St BB K

RZZERF+—ATN\B - REERERE
TARBNEEEEEEERLZE S REM
TMMBAREERWESKERER ER
HEAERE ([WEEK]) RERARK
400,000,0007T (1HE 7 47392,209,0007T) ©
REE-_ZEF+-_A=1t—BIt—@E%
ABRAR WEEBRAFE 256587
BEENFEF)11,889,000 T iz B ETEN =
T NF-A—HEBREZBREBEBEEEAE
SEWRERFENZEBA T NER RE
ANEEBRIHTREEMENES B
WML E R 2 SRS KRR B

WESEHAREZEEBK NMIFE-
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEZEHN FTEEHL B )

33. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESS (continued)

The net assets of the Acquired Business at the

acquisition date:

Other property, plant
and equipment
Interest in leasehold land held
under operating lease
Intangible assets
Debtors, other receivables,
deposits and prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents

Net identifiable assets

Excess of the Group’s interest in
fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over
the cost of a business
combination (Note)

Consideration, satisfied in cash
Balance payment shown as
“Creditors, other payable
and accrued expenses” in the
consolidated balance sheet
Cash acquired

Net cash outflow

Note: The excess of the Group’s interest in fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of a business combination which
arose on the acquisition of business was a result of

gain from bargain purchase.

St RERER (E)

WHEEBNWER 2 BEFE:
Carrying Fair value Recognised
amount adjustments values
IREE 2AAEAE CRIEE
$°000 $°000 $'000
Fr Fr Frr
HaZE B k&
241,711 (16,706) 225,005
BELCEHERE
ZHE i 177,723 (49,711) 128,012
BEEE - 32,163 32,163
JE 5 BR R~ HAth R UL
B R e RIEFRIE 2,867 - 2,867
ReRBEEEY 20,501 - 20,501
AR EE R 442,802 (34,254) 408,548
REB TG TS A
HREE BERK
BaEzARERR
EBE Ptz AE
(K1)
(16,339)
RE LRSI 392,209
EHREEEAER
51 [ FEATBR R EAth
e FIB R ERTE A
2 ERERT IR (252,403)
WIEMSIRE (20,501)
W& FEE 119,305

ZWzse
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& Notes to the Financial Statements
B HRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

3. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY :{REERBAMGZEARS
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed BRI 5 BA R Sk ELAth BB PR BE 2 22 5 B 4

elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group ERON AR B BB AT TAIE R

entered into the following material related party Z:

transactions:

(a) The Group entered into the following related party (a) AREEEFLIERARFBRIAEE
transactions with its ultimate holding company, BRARIEIMZTA T ZEBMALERS:

China Everbright Holdings Company Limited:

2006 2005
—EEXRE —TTRF
$°000 $000
1 72
Interest expense FIEXZH 24,016 17,141
Rental income for provision of office REMAEEA
premises iEALON 833 999
(b) The Group entered into the following related party (b) ANEEE—KEEENRIZIL T 5 EEHE
transactions with an associate: AR5
2006 2005
—EEXRE “TTRF
$°000 $000
Fr T
Service expense for operation of BREETKEER
waste-water treatment plants PRA%
(note 34(g)) (Hiat=+m(g)) 18,225 18,800
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& Notes to the Financial Statements

" HBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

3. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) The Group entered into the following related party
transactions with the minority shareholders of the
non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group:

SR EBEBMACCEARS (&

(c) AEBEHEIFZEMBATZDHBRR
RIS T NOIBEREA LR 5

2006 2005
“EERE —ETREF
(restated)
(ER)
$°000 $000
Fr Frr
Revenue from waste-water treatment TIKRIERR &8
plants operation services MRS Wz
(note 34(g)) (Hiat=+m(g)) 48,500 48,328
Finance lease rentals received BEhpEHERS 921 849
Interest element of finance lease BEmERERE 2
rentals received 2215 3,246 3,246
Technical service expense (note 34(g)) RREE (Fz=+r(g)) 2,170 2,211
Operating lease charge in respect of BH5KEEEEL
waste-water treatment facilities RERET H 976 959

(d) The Group entered into the following related party

(d) AEBEHEIF2EMBATZDEBRR

transactions with subsidiaries of a minority ZWB ARG T THIMEBATRS:
shareholder of a non-wholly owned subsidiary of

the Group:

Fee paid/payable for work performed
in connection with the construction
of waste-water treatment plant
pursuant to an engineering,
procurement and construction
contract and a service contract

Purchase of equipment

2006 2005
—EBRE —ETTRF
$’000 $000
FI FI
RIRBETR HER
A RIA KRS
B RIS KEE R
FrierT 2 T2
BB
77,446 51,446
EELE 8,430 3,114
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£ Notes to the Financial Statements
> MEBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

3. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY :tlEEBEBALZEARS (&)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(e) The Group paid key management personnel (e) ARBEINTEEEEABZEAR
compensation as follows: [N
2006 2005
—EBEXRE —ZTAHF
$°000 $000
Fr Fir
Salaries and other short-term e REAMREH
employee benefits & SR 22,267 16,883
Retirement scheme contributions RIRGT B 361 319
Equity compensation benefits BRAEREF 4,420 -
27,048 17,202
Total remuneration is included in “Staff costs” (see B @gET ATETAA] A (RMEFER
note 5(b)). (b))
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

SR EBEBALCZEARS (&)

VERAA NI RER AL

(f) Included in the balance sheets are the following () BREEEE
balances with related parties: 2 EERR
The Group
rEH
2006 2005
—EEXE —TTHHF
(restated)
(E®)
$°000 $'000
Fr Fr
Amount due from minority WD EIRER A
shareholder (included in (PREIRERE
“Finance lease FEWIA] M)
receivables”) 55,179 50,021
Amount due from minority U B FIE
shareholder (included in (BT [EUKEER
“Debtors, other H A EURRIE
receivables, deposits Ee REMNREIA)
and prepayments”) 6,001 4,595
Deposits placed with TE R Bl AL ERAT
related party bank 2ER(BREERS
(included in “Cash and KRS EEY A)
cash equivalents”) 36,112 27,394
Loans from ultimate holding &4 ARIER
company (98,828) (535,628)
Amount due to minority e D ER R IR
shareholder (586) (575)
Amount due to minority e D EAR R IR
shareholder (included in (BT [ERERR
“Creditors, other payables ~ EENZIER
and accrued expenses”) FEETER] M) (21,606) (18,756)
Amount due to associate JE Bk A BRI
(included in “Creditors, (BIEE [EREER
other payables and H A FER I R
accrued expenses”) EEER]A) (3,798) (1,393)
Amounts due to related A A X R 3R
companies (included in (BAEETERERR
“Creditors, other payables — HAEMFIER
and accrued expenses”) FEETER] M) (45,759) (32,012

240

The Company
NN
2006 2005
ZEEXE _—_TTHF
$°000 $000
Fr Frr
27,989 23,737
- (440,480)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(g) During the year ended 31 December 2006, the
Group entered into certain continuing connected
transactions. The Company’s independent non-
executive directors have reviewed these
transactions. Details of which are disclosed under
the paragraph “Continuing connected transactions”

in the report of the directors.

35. COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December
2006 not provided for in the financial statements

were as follows:

SRERBACCEARS (&

(9) BE_FERF+_A=+—HLLHF
B AKERN TETRHEREZ S A
ARZBIFRTEECLEREER

5 BRRZEREE

ER S| 8 MR-

IthRIE

SHET A

(a) RZBEEXE+_A=+—80 V&AL
SRR BE 2 BARENT

The Group The Company
rEE N

2006 2005 2006 2005

“EEXRE —TThHE ZBBERE —ITThHF

$°000 $°000 $°000 $000

Fr T Fr T

Contracted for SEIES) 310,623 289,081 136,308 27,564
Authorised but not EERRBERTY

contracted for - 19,667 - -

310,623 308,748 136,308 27,564
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

35. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b) At 31 December 2006, the total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases are payable as follows:

Within one year —FR
After one year but within five years —FHERFA
After five years hFE

The Group leases waste-water treatment facilities
from a minority shareholder under an operating
lease. The lease runs for twenty years, with an option
to renew the lease for a further five years. The Group
also leases a number of properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period
of one to two years. None of the leases includes

contingent rentals.

36. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of assets pledged are set out in note 25. The
aggregate net book value of assets pledged amounted
to approximately $919,947,000 as at 31 December 2006
(2005: $662,693,000).

SHRME (B

(b) RZBEXNFE+_A=1+—H HBRET
AERBRALEHEE AR ENNRIER

Ef @ EnT
The Group
rEE

2006 2005
—EERE = i
$°000 $000
Fr Frr
1,575 1,341
4,018 3,836
12,951 13,427
18,544 18,604

AEBERBLEHER—RDEBREMS
IKERIEER M- A RHERH — T4 WANEE
BHAF UM AEERBEEEHERRZ
BYE-BEHE—RVS R —EME B
Y AEEREHEE-

S EEERA

EEHEEFBINMHE-TRH-R=ZF
NETZA=+—B 2EREEZREEF
E#EEE45919,947,000 T (Z ST RHF:
662,693,0007T) °
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38.

39.

Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

NON-ADJUSTING POST BALANCE SHEET
EVENT

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth
National People's Congress passed the Corporate
Income Tax Law of the People's Republic of China ("new
tax law") which will take effect on 1 January 2008. Certain
PRC subsidiaries of the Group have been granted tax
incentives and are subject to tax at 50% of the standard
tax rates or fully exempt from income tax under the
existing relevant tax rules. According to the new tax law,
the Group will continue to enjoy the tax incentives.
However, the detailed implementation rules regarding
the preferential tax policies have yet to be made public.
Consequently, the Group is not able to make an estimate
of the expected financial effect of the new tax law on its
deferred tax assets and liabilities. The expected financial
effect of the new tax law, if any, will be reflected in the
Group's 2007 financial statements. The enactment of the
new tax law is not expected to have any financial effect
on the amounts accrued in the balance sheet in respect
of current tax payable.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted or
reclassified as a result of the changes in accounting
policies. Further details are disclosed in note 2. In
addition, “Interest paid” has been reclassified from
operating activities to financing activities in the
consolidated cash flow statement with comparatives
restated as the directors considered this presentation
reflects more appropriately the nature of the interest paid.

PARENT AND ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

At 31 December 2006, the directors consider the parent
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Guildford
Limited and China Everbright Holdings Company
Limited, which are incorporated in BVI and Hong Kong
respectively. Neither of them produces financial
statements available for public use.

HAEEBRRARCER

RZZEZLF A+ B EAREMEH

FTEZEARRKXRAGEFRLAGHAB
(hE ARFEMBMEMSEE) (AT EHE
[FFUA]) WK T N\F—A—H4E
BARBIRITE AR £ AEEE TS T
PR E A BB ER IR ER X
50% AT IR Sk IE 2 E A L NPT 1S T o 1R
BEBUA ANEBER BB ETHEES A
- EBRE BEREBRT B R 2 BRIFE
MR A B IR E R AT A HIE
ERTBEER BB BV E-HMTBE
Z TR E (1) KeERBAEREE —
S FUBBRR -BRIBETSHEE
BERTRENARERIE 2 ©RBEK A&

hr8=7- 2

St EEREE

ETHEEFE IFE\ ATERERE )M T A

BHEM DR~ THBHNME
IvERFERERER [ENFEIEHEE

ABEMARSMERS WEERLERE
FoEH EMBBHRANEETRRUERT
AR REMRRENME 2 1EE-

B AT RBRER

R-ZEZERF+-_A=+—H BEFRAX
SEZ2ERAERRRERAESHA
Guildford Limited &2 B¢ K& E B R A 7]

BEDRINABR LS REBIMNL
BEHBEEVBERFABRRIRALIA

Annual Report 2006 —ZZXFEER

243



244

Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

40. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

Certain critical accounting judgements in applying the

Group’s accounting policies are described below:

Determining whether an arrangement
contains a lease

In prior and current years, the Group entered into BOT
and TOT arrangements in respect of its waste-water
treatment, waste-to-energy and methane-to-energy

projects.

Although the arrangements are not in the legal form of
leases, on the initial application of HK(IFRIC) 4 (see note
2(c)), the Group concluded that the arrangements
contain leases of assets, because fulfilment of the
arrangements is economically dependent on the use of
the specific assets, and it is unlikely that any parties
other than the respective customers will receive more

than an insignificant part of the output.

The leases were classified as finance leases as the
duration of the arrangements are for more than a major
part of the specific assets’ useful lives and the present
value of the minimum payments under the arrangements
amount to at least substantially all of the fair value of the
specific assets. At the inception of the arrangements,
the present value of the minimum lease payments relating
to the lease elements has been estimated based on the
fair value of the specific assets and the imputed finance
charge on the finance lease receivables have been
estimated using the lessees’ incremental borrowing
rates. The remaining receipts under the arrangement are
accounted for as revenue from waste-water treatment
plants, waste-to-energy power plant and methane-to-
energy power plant operation services and are therefore
recognised in accordance with policy set out in note

1(1)(ii).

aErHE

S B PR T
st

R B TRERE

BE- AR EEEHE
R R A A E 5k
BE WREREHEEA RAREEEA T
IBOTRTOTZ B

BEABLHLEAGHE DERTA I
RIRERC(ERE (BRMBRERBERE
) Ra’) B4 (R (c)) B REEHE
EERAZHBEEEERE REASKKES

EmME BRLFERITESIRANEEE
EZERBR mMARTEBEFIN A
TIREE REREREIEEBRANIRS-

FRAMEE > EAMENRE AREHETHE
2 SFERTE BN A 7 v A SR AR KB R
- mEBEALHz ZENRBRERERE
ABEEERFEEEZ 2B AR BT
VEBLRER ERBEREEAEZ AAEMR
STHEBRNSRERENRZERE YEER
MAABAZ G EABENE HEHE
EM B HERERERY EEARH
TZHTRIEARGRE)5/KEERM - B3R
REHEHEBREER 2 L ERB W
AR P 5 — (1) (il FTE BUR FE AR
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

41. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2006

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2006 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements:

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and new interpretations is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position except for HK(IFRIC) 12, Service concession
arrangements.

Service concessions are arrangements whereby a
government or other public sector entity grants contracts
for the supply of public services, such as roads, airports,
prisons and energy and water supply and distribution
facilities, to private sector operators. Control of the assets
remains in public hands but the private sector operator
is responsible for construction activities, as well as for
operating and maintaining the public sector
infrastructure. HK(IFRIC) 12 draws a distinction between
two types of service concession arrangement. In one,
the operator receives a financial asset, i.e. an
unconditional contractual right to receive cash or another
financial asset from the government in return for
constructing or upgrading the public sector asset. In
the other, the operator receives an intangible asset, i.e.
no more than a right to charge for use of the public sector
asset that it constructs or upgrades. A right to charge
users is not an unconditional right to receive cash
because the amounts are contingent on the extent to
which the public uses the service.

- ERAMERBEZZEAF+A

=t —HILEFEEHRERZET
MEARREZARSE

RIS BHRRTIERY BESHILE
BEAMEIRER] FEA KRR -ZFER
MERRERBE _TTF+-_A=1
—BIFFE W ARERC b F I WK IR
R FER] | ke

AEREERHEZFER] LA KR E
BEERMELZZE E5HEER AR
MZFER BRI TR BEARE &
ERENVMBAATEBEEGTE H(FB
(BT HRERBERE®) 2B £125% -
[BRAG R AR L TR ] RSN

RERBRFHELRLE BT E BB
BBEERHNARREAARBZEK (B
o0 B EK 5 B BETR Bk ML 3H R
i) TREAR - BEZENEDEART
& MALERRARRRETE UREER
HERBEALEMER (BE (BABEMBR
TREZEe) 2B R 125528 OMmA
R E LB -5 - AR EEIE
M EE BEGERIT A RN ATIEBA
WERER @ B G B E - (ERIEERIRTT
AEBEZE®R F_HRKEENEER
BE AERNMEEERRAZARKEE
W ER 2 PR B A R o [R) 5 PR B LU B 2 #E AN
B HON KBRS EN ARG
SRIVRNARALERERRE 2150
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¢ Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS R M et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2006 (continued)

Certain BOT and TOT arrangements of the Group, such
as the toll bridge project, waste-water treatment projects,
waste-to-energy projects and methane-to-energy
project, may be service concession arrangements under
HK(IFRIC) 12. The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the impact of HK(IFRIC) 12 but is not yet
in a position to state the impact on the Group’s results of

operations and financial position.

In addition, the following developments may result in new

or amended disclosures in the financial statements:

HKFRS 7

BB TGRS LERIE 7 R T A HEE

Amendments to HKAS 1

BB ERIFE 1R ZIEFT
MBEmEZE

Financial instruments: disclosures

Presentation of financial statements:
capital disclosures

% EAHE

p-ERAMERBEZZEAF+A

=t —HILEFEEHRERZET
MEARZREB AR E (B)

NEBRETBOTRTOTLRHE (flan: WEiE
RIEE SKEEIAR W ERERE &
BREBIRE) ABC(ES (BRVBHRER
BZEE)RB) B12R T2 REHTLE
%%SFOKE B2 EFTEEE (BRI%
ZEZES)RB) 12X E ER

Eﬁﬂiﬁuﬁﬁmﬁﬁ$§%l%«%%ZE&WIBZHNR
-5

=

BEAN THIFER R EEHAR
R EHI G RAIE AT -

BIZRERI 5

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
BUTHE#SR 2%
Btz ST HEER

1 January 2007
—FTtF—A-H

1 January 2007
—EE+F—-H—H
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#% Five Year Summary
" RELEHNE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBZHIN FFELBELUBRAE)

At 31 December

Wt=A=+-H
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
“EERX “ZTHE “TTNE S 2 S 2
(restated)
(E#)
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
¥ Fr Fr Fr r
Assets and liabilities BEREHE
Fixed assets BE&E 1,620,632 1,370,066 888,392 878,121 562,084
Intangible assets BREE 66,412 34,433 = = =
Goodwill mE 48,318 48,236 45453 26,715 -
Interest in associates BENAER 442 413,304 435479 928,408 904,934
Interest in jointly controlled AEDRER
entity = - - - 523,585
Other financial assets HtEgEE 62,976 51,931 46,462 46,462 81,300
Finance lease receivables HERERENFE 789,177 131,701 = = =
Deferred tax assets ERHBEE 18,625 16,433 = = =
Net current assets/(liabilities) TBAE/ (Af) FE 379,399 333918 546,402 33,080 (248,177)
2,985,981 2,400,022 1,962,188 1,912,786 1,823,726
Non-current liabilties ¥nBaE (927,688) (1,128,807) (880,052) (912,390) (870,736)
NET ASSETS FAE 2,058,293 1,271,215 1,082,136 1,000,396 952,990
Share capital i 307,601 255,181 254,881 254,831 254,831
Reserves Fis 1,633,737 923,154 824,061 745,565 691,270
Total equity attributable to NG ES
equity shareholders iR e
of the Company 1,941,338 1,178,335 1,078,942 1,000,396 946,101
Minority interests DHRFER 116,955 92,880 3,194 - 6,889
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 2,058,293 1,271,215 1,082,136 1,000,396 952,990

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs that
are effective or available for early adoption for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2006. Information on the changes in
accounting polices resulting from initial application of these new and
revised HKFRSs is provided in note 2 to the financial statements.
Figures for 2005 have been adjusted for these new and revised
policies and as disclosed in note 2. Earlier years’ figures have not
been restated as the adoption of new and revised HKFRSs has no
significant impact on the Group.

BR G AGRM T LRI REER]
ZEREVHRELL -AAENE —FTTX
—A—BARRE 2 ST HIR AR A]
HIRRTRA - IR VDB R SR AT A (&
Rl BAEMERE L MER ST BRE
B ERBRHBRAMF—-—FFTLF
ZBFEREZEH] MBI BERIEL
AR WE M R TR RS
A2 BAMBRELENHAKEREFE
ZEFIEZE RLEATAER
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¢ . Five Year Summary
L LERENE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRE BB FFELEUERE)

Results

Turnover

Profit/(loss) from operations
Finance costs

Share of profits of associates

Share of profit of jointly
controlled entity
Gain on sale of

discontinued operation

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Equity shareholders
of the Company

Minority interests

Profit for the year

Basic earnings per share

feril/ (Bi8)
BHER

FABER
il

LIS

2

2l

A7)
A7)

NG

Ul

HER HEZXHNE

BHAIAR

hA

AEERF

FefEE(3:
ARFRR

DHURREL

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HLEE

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
ZEERE “ZTRE —TINF “ETF e S
(restated)
(2%)
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
235,859 132,855 65,244 83,613 261,049
457,922 75,882 28,322 (41,237) (25,420)
(52,631) (32,090 (27,614) (31,374) (64,612)
32,658 68,045 85,182 83,233 90,826
- - - 31,982 2132
- - - 19,576 -
437,949 111,837 85,890 62,180 2,926
(9,899) 11,037 328 (4,512) (974)
428,050 122,874 86,218 57,668 1,952
409,347 106,808 86,776 56,837 1,009
18,703 16,066 (558) 831 943
428,050 122,874 86,218 57,668 1,952
14.15 centsfl 419 centsfll 3.41 centsfll 2.23 centsill 0.04 centfl

China Everbright International Limited FE ¥ K BB AR 2 7



As at 31 December 2006
R-EEANF+=-HA=+—H

Location

o B

Units 2703 and 2704, 27th Floor
Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

EEERE TR
ERDET O

Tttt AT =RCAEMOE

Flat A on 22nd Floor
Good View Court

21 Robinson Road
Mid-Levels

Hong Kong

HEF LR
FERBE %
HREZ T AR

Units 3 and 4, 11th Floor
Qingsong South Lane
Dalian Development Zone
the PRC
PEAERERERESE
T—E=RME T

Shop Units at Sections 1 & 3 of
Lower Ground Floor and on
Levels 1 & 2, Office Units

on Level 3 of the commercial
podium, Zhongshan Garden
Shenzhen

Guangdong Province, the PRC
PEIERE

RYITTH LTERE
BHEREMTE—E
E—E kB =EMD
E-ERE_EEH
FE=BHAE

Major Properties held by the Group
AREFMBREZEIENE

Existing use
BEAZ

Commercial

[SES

Residential
F=

Residential
x=

Commercial

[SES

Term of lease

HEFHY

Medium

R

Long
KAt

Medium

R HAE

Medium

R

Annual Report 2006 —ZZXFEER

Percentage
of interest

FrisEEa ot

100%

100%

100%

100%
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% Major Properties held by the Group

" AEEARRBAZEENE

As at 31 December 2006
R-EEXNF+=ZA=1+—H

Percentage
Location Existing use Term of lease of interest
bk BEA® HEFH FriERERB oL
8. Room 1301-1309 Commercial Medium 100%
Central Business Building [SES FRERIE
No. 88 Fuhua Road One
Futian District
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
the PRC
FEIERERITRER
BE—BN\T/URPLUEBRE
— =T E—="FNFE
6. 24th Floor Commercial Medium 100%

Tower of Education, Science [EES R ER
& Technology Buildling

Zhuzilin, Futian District

Shenzhen, Guangdong Province

the PRC

P EERE R

REETFM®

BERMBRE=TNE

250 China Everbright International Limited B} AEBIEER A &



é CHINA EVERBRIGHT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
FEEABERESRA S

www.ebchinaintl.com



